
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

JULY 21, 2008 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the governing 
body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with these 
goals. 
 

Goals 

 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City 

government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic 

planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

July 21, 2008 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Jeff Totten – Troy Police Department 

Chaplain 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Legislative Update from State Representative Marty Knollenberg ....................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – EcoMotors, 1055 
West Square Lake 1 

C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to EcoMotors, 
1055 West Square Lake 2 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Building Demolition 3 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 4 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 4 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None b) City 
Council Appointments: Building Code Board of Appeals and Library Advisory 
Board 4 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations: None (b) City Council Nominations:   Historic District Commission; 
Historic District Study Committee; Historical Commission; Liquor Advisory 
Committee; and Parks and Recreation Board 5 

E-3 Fire Station 2 Kitchen Renovation 7 

E-4 Request to Set Dates for the Annual Performance Evaluations of the (a) City 
Manager and (b) City Attorney in Closed Session 7 

E-5 Request for Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offer to Purchase Property for 
John R Road Improvements, Square Lake to South Boulevard – Project No. 
02.204.5, Parcel #43 – Sidwell #88-20-02-279-002 and Request for Authorization 
to Institute Court Action 8 

E-6 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 20 of Troy City Code – Financing of Water and 
Sewer Benefit Fees 8 

E-7 Conservation Easement to the State of Michigan – Department of Environmental 
Quality in Connection with Sylvan Glen Golf Course and Section 4 Weir Projects 9 

E-8 Charter Revision Committee Recommendation of Proposed Ballot Language to 
the Citizen Petition Initiated Charter Amendment Proposal – Section 9.16.5 and 
Proposed Amendment to Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elective Office 9 

E-9 Verizon’s Request for Amendment to Lease – Sylvan Glen Communications 
Tower 11 



 

 

 -  -  

CONSENT AGENDA: 12 

F-1a Approval of ―F‖ Items NOT Removed for Discussion 12 

F-1b  Address of ―F‖ Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 12 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 12 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 12 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 12 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirts ...... 12 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – General Consulting 

Engineering Services .......................................................................................... 13 

F-5 Contract Extension – Banking Services 13 

F-6 Request for Approval to Purchase Property from the Oakland County Drain 
Commission – King Drain District, Sidwell #88-20-04-476-011 and -012 14 

F-7 Application for New SDM License, Agrusa International Marketplace, LLC – 5047 
Rochester Road 14 

F-8 Application for New Outdoor Service Permit, Transfer of Class C Resort and SDM 
License, Loccino, Inc. – 5600 Crooks Road, Suite 106 15 

F-9 Application for Location Transfer of SDD and SDM License, Arbor Drugs, Inc. – 
1980 E. Big Beaver Road 15 

F-10 Schedule a Public Hearing for the Purpose of Receiving Public Input on the City of 
Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds 16 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 17 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 17 

G-2 Memorandums: 17 

a) Proposed New Liquor License Ordinance – August 11, 2008 ............................ 17 



 

 

 -  -  

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 17 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 17 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 17 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 17 

REPORTS: 17 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 17 

a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 10, 2008 ........................................... 17 

b) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Special/Final – March 20, 2008 ............... 17 
c) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Special/Final – March 31, 2008 ............... 17 

d) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – April 9, 2008 ........................ 17 
e) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – April 15, 2008 ............................... 17 
f) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – May 12, 2008 .............................................. 17 

g) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – June 3, 2008 ........................................... 17 
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 4, 2008 ....................................... 17 

i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – June 17, 2008 ................................................ 17 
j) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 17, 2008 ................................................ 17 

k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 24, 2008 .............................. 17 
l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 24, 2008 .............................. 17 

m) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – July 2, 2008 ........................................ 17 
n) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – July 9, 2008 ............ 17 
o) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Draft – July 9, 2008 ......................... 17 

p) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – July 14, 2008 .............................................. 17 

J-2 Department Reports: 17 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued July 2007 through June 2008 ................ 17 
b) Building Department – Permits Issued January through June 2008 ................... 17 
c) Building Department – Permits Issued during the Month of June 2008 ............. 17 
d) Purchasing Departments – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction – Fleet 

Vehicles – June 2008 ......................................................................................... 17 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 17 

a) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Adult Services Librarian Barbara 
Williams Regarding the Service Received from Laura Campbell ....................... 17 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 18 

a) City of Royal Oak – Resolution Requesting the Federal Legislature to 
Increase the Formula for Community Development Block Grant Funding ......... 18 



 

 

 -  -  

J-5  Report from Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company – City of Troy Incentive Plan for 
Volunteer Firefighters – 28

th
 Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2007 18 

J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Program 
Year 2008 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds 18 

J-7  Communication from City Manager Phillip Nelson Regarding CNNMoney.com 
Designation of America’s Best Cities 18 

STUDY ITEMS: 18 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 18 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 18 

CLOSED SESSION: 18 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 18 

ADJOURNMENT 18 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 19 

Monday, August 11, 2008 ........................................................................................ 19 
1. City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority – William Beaumont Hospital 

2008 Financing Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds (pending approval) ....................... 19 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 19 

Monday, August 11, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................... 19 
Monday, August 25, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................... 19 
Monday, September 8, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................ 19 

Monday, September 22, 2008 Regular City Council .............................................. 19 

Monday, October 6, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................... 19 
Monday, October 20, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................. 19 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Jeff Totten – Troy Police Department 

Chaplain 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) Legislative Update from State Representative Marty Knollenberg  
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – EcoMotors, 1055 West 

Square Lake 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for EcoMotors International, for property known as 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, MI 
48098, Parcel # 88-20-08-226-002, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-
06-238; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

No: 
 

C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to EcoMotors, 

1055 West Square Lake 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on July 
21, 2008, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 1055 
West Square Lake, Troy MI, 48098, Parcel # 88-20-08-226-002;  
 
WHEREAS, An application has been submitted by EcoMotors International,  for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, 
MI 48098, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on July 21, 2008, 
held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility that 
the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for EcoMotors International, 
at 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, MI 48098 may have the effect of substantially impeding the 
operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for EcoMotors International, at 1055 
West Square Lake Troy, MI 48098 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 

Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City 
of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for EcoMotors International, Inc., at 1055 
West Square Lake, Troy, MI 48098, Parcel #88-20-08-227-004, for personal property for a term 

of twelve (12) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the 
City of Troy and EcoMotors International, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
amended; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and EcoMotors, 

International, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to 
complete the application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Building Demolition 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
Option #1 
 

Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award To Low Bidder – Ferguson Enterprises, Inc. 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide demolition of 
various building sites for park land expansion acquisitions to the low total bidder, Ferguson 
Enterprises, Inc. of Detroit, MI, for an estimated total cost of $22,435.00, at prices contained in 

the bid tabulation opened May 19, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 

OR 

 
Option #2 
 

Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award To Low Bidders – Ahern Contracting, Inc. for 

Proposal A, Ferguson Enterprises, Inc. for Proposal B, and Blue Star, Inc. for Proposal C 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide demolition of 
various building sites for park land expansion acquisitions to the low bidders:  Ahern 
Contracting, Inc. of Chesterfield, MI for Proposal A — 4265 Rochester Road, Ferguson 
Enterprises, Inc. of Detroit for Proposal B – 4305 Rochester Road, and Blue Star, Inc. for 
Proposal C – 1660 East Square Lake at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened May 19, 

2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 

OR 

 
Option #3 
 

Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award To Low Bidders – Ferguson Enterprises, Inc. 

for Proposals A and B and Blue Star, Inc. for Proposal C 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide demolition of 
various building sites for park land expansion acquisitions to the following low bidders after 
combining proposals:  Ferguson Enterprises, Inc. of Detroit for Proposals A and B – 4265 & 
4305 Rochester Road, and Blue Star, Inc. for Proposal C – 1660 East Square Lake at prices 

contained in the bid tabulation opened May 19, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None b) City 

Council Appointments: Building Code Board of Appeals and Library Advisory 

Board 

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  
 

(a) Mayoral Appointments – No appointments scheduled 

 
(b) City Council Appointments  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Building Code Board of Appeals  
Appointed by City Council (5-Regular) 5-Year Terms  

  
Theodore Dziurman Term Expires 07/31/13 

  

Library Advisory Board  
Appointed by City Council (5-Regular) 3 Year Terms  

  

Junxiao (Joel) Xu-Student Term Expires 07/31/09 

 
Yes: 
No: 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: None (b) City Council Nominations:   Historic District Commission; 

Historic District Study Committee; Historical Commission; Liquor Advisory 

Committee; and Parks and Recreation Board  

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations – No nominations scheduled 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council  hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 

 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Terms 

 

Student Term Expires 07/01/09 

 

Historic District Study Committee 
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular) – Ad Hoc (1 Member from Historic District Commission;  
1 Member from Local Historic Preservation Organization 

 

 Ad Hoc 

 

Historical Commission 
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 07/31/11 

 

Student Term Expires 07/01/09 

 

Liquor Advisory Committee 

Appointed by City Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Terms 

 

Student Term Expires 07/31/09 

 

Parks & Recreation Board 

Appointed by City Council (7-Regular: 3-Year Terms) (1-Troy School Board: 1-Year Term)  

(1-Troy Daze Committee: 1-Year Term ) (1-Adv. Comm. for Sr. Citizens: 1-Year Term) 

 
**Troy School District Rep. Term Expires 07/31/09 

**NOTE:  Recommendation scheduled for Troy School District’s July meeting. 

 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

 

E-3 Fire Station 2 Kitchen Renovation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management to renovate the 
kitchen at Fire Station 2, including the purchase of kitchen cabinets from The Home Depot 
utilizing the U.S. Communities contract, for an estimated total project cost of $27,600.00 as 
detailed in Appendix A, using in-house personnel, approved contracts and standard purchasing 
procedures. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 

E-4 Request to Set Dates for the Annual Performance Evaluations of the (a) City 

Manager and (b) City Attorney in Closed Session  
 

(a) City Manager Evaluation – Request for Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Closed Session for    , 
2008 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan for the 
purpose of performance evaluation of the City Manager, pursuant  to MCL 15.268(a);  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) City Attorney Evaluation – Request for Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Closed Session for    , 
2008 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan for the 
purpose of performance evaluation of the City Attorney, pursuant  to MCL 15.268(a). 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

E-5 Request for Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offer to Purchase Property for 

John R Road Improvements, Square Lake to South Boulevard – Project No. 

02.204.5, Parcel #43 – Sidwell #88-20-02-279-002 and Request for Authorization to 

Institute Court Action  
 

(a) Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offer  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, In order to proceed with the proposed John R Road Improvements, between 
Square Lake Road and South Boulevard, it is necessary for the City to acquire the property at 
6675 John R, having Sidwell #88-20-02-279-002 from James W. Munchiando and Elizabeth S. 
Munchiando; and 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate and 
Development Department to make an unconditioned offer to purchase property at 6675 John R 
in the amount of $531,881.75, plus closing costs. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) Authorization to Institute Court Action 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

WHEREAS, In order to proceed with the John R Road Improvements, from Square Lake to 
South Boulevard, it is necessary for the City to obtain the needed property from the property 
owners of 6675 John R, having Sidwell #88-20-02-279-002; and 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney, if 
necessary, to institute condemnation litigation and to execute and deliver any and all 
documents and papers, and to expend necessary funds expedient for the prosecution of such 
proceedings or settlement of such claims on proceedings by and with the express approval of 
this Council. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 

E-6 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 20 of Troy City Code – Financing of Water and 

Sewer Benefit Fees  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending Section 10.03 of 
Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code, to include additional financing options for new homes 
constructed to replace an existing home in accordance with the proposal prepared by City 

Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-7 Conservation Easement to the State of Michigan – Department of Environmental 

Quality in Connection with Sylvan Glen Golf Course and Section 4 Weir Projects  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has received and is implementing MDEQ Permit 03-63-0084P, 
which requires the City of Troy to grant a Conservation Easement of 2.24 acres to the State of 
Michigan; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has created over 7 acres of wetlands as a part of the Sylvan Glen 
Golf Course Streambank Stabilization Project; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS a Conservation 
Easement over 1.1 acres at the Section 4 Weir Project site, and 1.14 acres of wetlands at the 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course to the State of Michigan; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached 
Conservation Easement between the City of Troy and the State of Michigan, and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the Conservation Easement, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the installation of 
signage at both sites to ensure that these areas remain natural wetland, and educate visitors 
about the importance of wetlands. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-8 Charter Revision Committee Recommendation of Proposed Ballot Language to the 

Citizen Petition Initiated Charter Amendment Proposal – Section 9.16.5 and 

Proposed Amendment to Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elective Office  
 

(a)  Recommended Motion Citizen Petition Initiated Charter Amendment To Section 

9.16.5 Ballot Language Form: 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the placement of the Citizen Initiated 
Petition Proposed Charter Amendment to Section 9.16.5 including the modification of form, as 
recommended by the Charter Revision Committee, for placement on the November 4, 2008 
General Election, as follows: 

 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER BY ADDING SECTION 9.16.5 – 

MILLAGE RATE LEVY LIMITATION 

 
Shall Section 9.16.5 regarding Millage Rate Levy Limitation, be added to the Troy City 
Charter as follows:   
 

―Section 9.16.5 – Millage Rate Levy Limitation: 
 The Council shall not increase the millage rate imposed pursuant to Section 9.16 of 

this charter above a current rate actually imposed, levied, and collected unless the 
increased rate shall be first approved by a majority of the City electors voting on the 
question.‖? 

 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes:    
No:  
  

(b) Recommended Motions To Section 6.2(G): 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
Option #1 

 

Charter Revision Committee Recommendation: 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the placement of Section 6.2(g)-
Vacancies to Elective Office as recommended by the Charter Revision Committee for 
placement on the November 4, 2008 General Election ballot as follows: 

 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN 

ELECTIVE OFFICE 

 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, regarding vacancies in elective office, be amended  
to allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at the next municipal election, to 
file for an office (other than their own) without resigning from Council by deleting the 
wording of current Section 6.2(g) in its entirety and inserting ―Any member of City Council 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

whose term is not expiring at the next municipal election, filing a petition for any City 
elective office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign their current Council position at 
least 21 days before filing for municipal election.‖? 

 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 

 OR 
 
Option #2 
 

City Administration Recommendation: 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REFERS the proposed amendment to Section 
6.2(g) back to the Charter Revision Committee for consideration of additional amendment 
options to be provided by administration. 

 
Yes:    
No:   
 

E-9 Verizon’s Request for Amendment to Lease – Sylvan Glen Communications Tower  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

(a) Granting a Gas Line Easement to Consumer’s Power  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS to Consumers Power the attached ten- 
foot wide easement for gas pipeline at the Sylvan Glen Golf Course, Parcel Number 88-20-10-

200-001, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, and DIRECTS 
the City Clerk to record the document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting.    
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) Approving the First Amendment to the Lease Agreement  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the First Amendment to the Lease 
Agreement, between the City of Troy and New Par, d/b/a Verizon Wireless, allowing for a 
generator to be located on the Sylvan Glen Golf Course for the communications tower 

equipment, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07-  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 5:00 PM Special 
City Council Meeting of July 7, 2008 and the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of July 7, 
2008 as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 

   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirts               
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

 
WHEREAS, On October 15, 2007, a one-year contract with an option to renew for one 
additional year for tee shirts was awarded to the low total bidder, EA Graphics of Sterling 
Heights, Michigan (Resolution #2007-10-294-E-4c); and 
 
WHEREAS, EA Graphics has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew the contract 
under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract with EA Graphics to provide tee shirts under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions for one year at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 2, 2007, to 
expire September 30, 2009. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – General Consulting 

Engineering Services               
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contract(s) to provide General 
Consulting Engineering Services for three (3) years with an option to renew for three (3) 
additional years, to the three (3) highest rated bidder(s), Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc., (HRC), of 
Pontiac, MI; Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc., (SDA), of Rochester Hills, MI; and Orchard, 
Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM), of Livonia, MI,  as a result of a best value process expiring June 
30, 2011, at unit prices contained in the tabulation opened June 18, 2008, with additional 

services priced as outlined in their respective rate schedules, copies of which are ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon consultants’ submission 
of properly executed proposal and contract documents, including agreements, insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the agreements once in acceptable form. 
 

F-5 Contract Extension – Banking Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
 
WHEREAS, On July 19, 1999, City Council approved a three (3) year contract to provide 
Banking Services with an option to renew the contract for an additional three (3) year period to 
Fifth Third Bank (formerly Old Kent Bank), the most qualified and lowest bidder as a result of a 
request for proposal process (Resolution #99-349-E-2c), and on May 6, 2002, exercised the 
renewal option for an additional three years under the same prices, terms and conditions 
expiring September 30, 2005 (Resolution #2002-05-288-E2), and on June 20, 2005, the 
contract was extended for a three-year period expiring October 1, 2008, with fee reductions in 
Controlled Disbursement Accounts from $100.00 to $50.00 per account per month and deposit 
fees from $.60 cents to $.50 cents per deposit (Resolution #2005-06-304-F3);  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

 
WHEREAS, Fifth Third Bank has offered to extend their contract for three years under the 
same prices, terms and conditions currently in place; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City has successfully implemented lock box and procurement card services to 
enhance payment collection and improve efficiencies of purchasing procedures; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a three-year 
contract to provide Banking Services with Fifth Third Bank under the same pricing, terms, and 
conditions expiring October 1, 2011.  
 

F-6 Request for Approval to Purchase Property from the Oakland County Drain 

Commission – King Drain District, Sidwell #88-20-04-476-011 and -012 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the purchase of two parcels of land 
located in the City of Troy owned by the Oakland County Drain Commission – King Drain 
District, having Sidwell #88-20-04-476-011 & 012 in the amount of $3,240.00; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this 
purchase. 
 

F-7 Application for New SDM License, Agrusa International Marketplace, LLC – 5047 

Rochester Road 
 

(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Agrusa International Marketplace, LLC, for a new SDM license to be located at 5047 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-07- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Agrusa International Marketplace, LLC, for a new SDM license to be located at 5047 

Rochester, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County, from MJMN, Inc., and AUTHORIZES the Mayor 

and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Application for New Outdoor Service Permit, Transfer of Class C Resort and SDM 

License, Loccino, Inc. – 5600 Crooks Road, Suite 106  
 

(a) Transfer License and New Outdoor Service Permit 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Loccino, Inc., to transfer ownership of 2007 Resort Class C licensed business (MCL 
436.1531(4); minimum seating 250; non-transferable and SDM license in conjunction with 
Official Permit (Food), and new Outdoor Service Permit; located in escrow at 5600 Crooks, 
Suite 106, Troy MI 48098, Oakland County, from Palm Troy Company, LLC (an Illinois Limited 
Liability Company). {MLCC Req #441407}; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-07- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Loccino, Inc., to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C licensed business (MCL 436.1531(4); 
minimum seating 250; non-transferable and SDM license in conjunction with Official Permit 
(Food),and new Outdoor Service Permit; located in escrow at 5600 Crooks, Suite 106, Troy MI 

48098, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Application for Location Transfer of SDD and SDM License, Arbor Drugs, Inc. – 

1980 E. Big Beaver Road 
 

(a) Transfer Location 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Arbor Drugs, Inc. to transfer location of 2008 SDD and SDM licensed business from 2963 E. 
Big Beaver  to 1980 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; and 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Arbor Drugs, Inc. to transfer location of 2008 SDD and SDM licensed business from 2963 

E. Big Beaver to 1980 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and AUTHORIZES the 

Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Schedule a Public Hearing for the Purpose of Receiving Public Input on the City of 

Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
 
WHEREAS, William Beaumont Hospital is anticipating a financing through the City of Royal 
Oak Hospital Financing Authority utilizing tax-exempt bonds;  
 
WHEREAS, The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the ―Code‖), requires  
a public hearing before authorizing the issuance of bonds by a hospital authority in all 
jurisdictions benefitting from the issuance; and  
 
WHEREAS, A portion of the proceeds of the bonds will be used to construct, acquire, renovate, 
equip, rehabilitate and/or improve hospital facilities in the city of Troy as well as to refund 
bonds, the proceeds of which were used to construct an addition to William Beaumont Hospital 
– Troy; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a public 
hearing for Monday, August 11, 2008 at 7:30 PM in Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI  48084 for the purpose of receiving public input on the City of Royal 
Oak Hospital Financing Authority issuing tax-exempt bonds for William Beaumont Hospital. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
   

G-2 Memorandums:   

a) Proposed New Liquor License Ordinance – August 11, 2008   

 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 

  

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 10, 2008  

b) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Special/Final – March 20, 2008  

c) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Special/Final – March 31, 2008 

d) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – April 9, 2008  

e) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – April 15, 2008 

f) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – May 12, 2008 

g) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – June 3, 2008 

h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 4, 2008 

i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – June 17, 2008  

j) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 17, 2008  

k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 24, 2008  

l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 24, 2008  

m) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – July 2, 2008  

n) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – July 9, 2008  

o) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Draft – July 9, 2008  

p) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – July 14, 2008 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Building Department – Permits Issued July 2007 through June 2008  

b) Building Department – Permits Issued January through June 2008  

c) Building Department – Permits Issued during the Month of June 2008  

d) Purchasing Departments – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction – Fleet Vehicles – 
June 2008 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Adult Services Librarian Barbara Williams 
Regarding the Service Received from Laura Campbell  

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 18 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   

a) City of Royal Oak – Resolution Requesting the Federal Legislature to Increase the 
Formula for Community Development Block Grant Funding  

 

J-5  Report from Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company – City of Troy Incentive Plan for 

Volunteer Firefighters – 28
th

 Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2007  
 

J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Program 

Year 2008 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds  
 

J-7  Communication from City Manager Phillip Nelson Regarding CNNMoney.com 

Designation of America’s Best Cities  
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 21, 2008 

 

- 19 - 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Monday, August 11, 2008 
1. City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority – William Beaumont Hospital 2008 

Financing Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds (pending approval) 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, August 11, 2008 ......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, August 25, 2008 ......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, September 8, 2008 ..................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, September 22, 2008 ................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 6, 2008 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 20, 2008 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

 



 

 
 
July 21, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for EcoMotors, International, 1055 W Square Lake  
 
 
Background: 
 
 EcoMotors, International is requesting the creation of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 

1055 W. Square Lake, in order to apply for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC), for 
tax abatement at the same location. 

 
EcoMotors has licensed with Advanced Propulsion Technologies (APT) to further develop for 
commercial use, the Opposed-Piston-Opposed-Cylinder (OPOC) engine that was developed for 
Military use. 
 
Their intent is to have a mid size demonstrator automobile, getting 100 miles per gallon, out by 
February of 2010.   
 
They are a very well funded firm, intent on hiring the best engineers in the area, and have 
specifically targeted this area for the sheer volume of engineering expertise that are no longer 
working in the automobile industry. 
 
They currently have 7 employees in Troy, and another 7 in California.  They plan to add 157 new 
jobs to Troy with this project. 
 
They intend to occupy the 30,000 square foot engineering building at 1055 W. Square Lake 
(formerly occupied by Hi-Lex). 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 
application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

Financial Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $2,614,300 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $116,206.77, of which $36,839.12 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $58,103.39 in total taxes, of which $18,419.56 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the amended tax abatement policy of the City Council of the 

City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.   

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\EcoMotors\CouncilPakIDD PH 



































Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.
LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
EcoMotors International

licarila
Text Box
Leger A. (Nino) Licari





                                
 

 
 
 
 

2401 West Big Beaver Rd. #100 • Troy, MI 48084 • USA • phone 248.643.8800 • fax 248.643.8855 • www.ecomotors.com 

 

EcoMotors International was incorporated in the State of Delaware on January 9, 2008.  Khosla 
Ventures (Menlo Park, CA) became the lead investor on February 9, 2008.  Near-term, EcoMotors 
will build a company to commercialize the Opposed-Piston-Opposed-Cylinder (OPOC) engine 
technology, with the near-term objective of building, by February of 2010, a demonstrator vehicle 
capable of achieving 100mpg.  

The OPOC engine is a new mechanical power system.  The design is based on the Opposed Piston 
Opposed Cylinder engine that was developed for the military by Advanced Propulsion 
Technologies (APT).  EcoMotors has entered into a License Agreement with APT under which 
further development of the OPOC technology for commercial applications will proceed. 
 
The base design (shown below) is highly flexible and can be: 
• Adapted to utilize any combustion system (i.e. compression ignition, spark ignition, etc.) 
• Operated on a wide variety of fuels 
• Sized for a wide array of product lines 

 
 

 
 
 
 

EcoMotors is currently headquartered in Troy, Michigan, with a staff of 7 management and 
product development engineers.  In addition to the Troy facilities, the company has an R&D center 
in Goleta, California, which also currently employs 7 people. 

With the recent approval of a $6.3MIL MEGA Tax Credit, EcoMotors plans to construct a new 
Technical Center in Troy Michigan.  With a capital investment exceeding $7MIL and creation of 
approximately 156 new jobs, EcoMotors will put in place the technical team and facilities 
necessary to develop the demonstrator vehicle, and to spearhead the development of large scale 
commercialization of the product as early as 2011/12. 
       June 2008 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

6/13/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

6/13/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...



Legal Description for : 88-20-08-226-002 
                                       1055 W Square Lake 
                                       EcoMotors 
 
 
T2N, R11E, SEC 5 & 8  
PART OF SE 1/4 SEC 5 &  
PART OF NE 1/4 SEC 8  
BEG AT PT DIST  
S 87-05-55 W 125 FT  
FROM NE COR OF SEC 8,  
TH S 02-30-26 E 241.27 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO LEFT,  
RAD 2973.79 FT, CHORD BEARS  
N 77-41-27 W 491.32 FT,  
DIST OF 491.89 FT,  
TH N 02-30-26 W 109.23 FT,  
TH N 74-08-01 E 67.20 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO RIGHT,  
RAD 1234.77 FT, CHORD BEARS  
N 76-54-55 E 119.86 FT,  
DIST OF 119.91 FT,  
TH N 79-41-50 E 130.93 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO RIGHT,  
RAD 1034 FT, CHORD BEARS  
N 82-27-57 E 99.88 FT,  
DIST OF 99.92 FT,  
TH N 85-14-03 E 62.30 FT,  
TH S 02-48-28 E 60.10 FT  
TO BEG.                   2.26 A 
6-25-01 FR 08-226 -001 & 20-05-480-001 



Market Value 2,614,300 2,396,529 1,997,267 1,498,150 998,966 582,897 291,565 121,553 40,550 10,150 1,695 142 0
50% of Value 1,307,150 1,198,264 998,634 749,075 499,483 291,448 145,783 60,777 20,275 5,075 848 71 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 1,198,264 998,634 749,075 499,483 291,448 145,783 60,777 20,275 5,075 848 71 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59500 $712.97 $594.19 $445.70 $297.19 $173.41 $86.74 $36.16 $12.06 $3.02 $0.50 $0.04 $0.00
County 4.64610 $5,567.26 $4,639.75 $3,480.28 $2,320.65 $1,354.10 $677.32 $282.37 $94.20 $23.58 $3.94 $0.33 $0.00

Int Schools 3.36900 $4,036.95 $3,364.40 $2,523.63 $1,682.76 $981.89 $491.14 $204.76 $68.31 $17.10 $2.86 $0.24 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $1,898.53 $1,582.24 $1,186.83 $791.38 $461.77 $230.98 $96.29 $32.12 $8.04 $1.34 $0.11 $0.00

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 5.28560 $6,333.55 $5,278.38 $3,959.31 $2,640.07 $1,540.48 $770.55 $321.24 $107.17 $26.82 $4.48 $0.37 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.13000 $4,948.83 $4,124.36 $3,093.68 $2,062.87 $1,203.68 $602.08 $251.01 $83.74 $20.96 $3.50 $0.29 $0.00

Admin 0.38310 $459.06 $382.58 $286.97 $191.35 $111.65 $55.85 $23.28 $7.77 $1.94 $0.32 $0.03 $0.00
City 9.28000 $11,119.89 $9,267.32 $6,951.42 $4,635.20 $2,704.64 $1,352.86 $564.01 $188.15 $47.09 $7.86 $0.66 $0.00
Total 29.27320 $35,077.03 $29,233.20 $21,927.82 $14,621.47 $8,531.63 $4,267.52 $1,779.13 $593.52 $148.56 $24.81 $2.08 $0.00

Total 12 Years $116,206.77
Total City 12 Yr $36,839.12

50% Total 12 Yr $58,103.39
50% Total City 12 $18,419.56 Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
EcoMotors International

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated



Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement Policy Resolution  06/05/06 
 
F-5   Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and                             
Headquarters Companies 
 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) 
reducing economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial 
areas, (e) encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in 
industrial areas, and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for 
certain industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Troy, that the 
following criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in 
the review of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial 
Development Districts (IDD) by the City Council: 

 
(1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 

improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to 
be abated; and 

 
(2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to 
be abated; and  

 
(3)   That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to 

prove by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in 
compliance with the basic guidelines established above. 

 
(4)    That the company provide documentation that they are Michigan Economic 

Growth Authority (MEGA) eligible, or are moving into existing vacant 
buildings, or are retaining or expanding their job base in Troy.   

 
 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting 
the aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by 
laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
Yes:       Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini 
No:        Howrylak 
Absent:  Broomfield, Stine 



06/16/08 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that no payment of any kind has been made or 
promised in exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption 
certificate application by the City of Troy, in regards to the application of                     
EcoMotors International, 1055 W. Square Lake, Troy, Michigan. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between EcoMotors International, (“Company”) and 
the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public 
Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), EcoMotors International, understands that through its 
investment of $2,614,300 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is __ 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2022, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2010, EcoMotors International will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) EcoMotors International, agrees to remain within the City of 

Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
EcoMotors International, further understands that if it 
chooses to leave the City of Troy without permission for 
relocation prior to the end of the term of the IFT, the City 
Council of the City of Troy has the right to recapture from 
the Company the total amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  EcoMotors International, understands that the City of Troy 

may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  EcoMotors International, agrees that it will operate the 

Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
Local laws or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, 
outside storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water 
quality, noise control, other environmental regulations, and all 
of the terms and conditions of the Consent Judgment 
governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 
  City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, July 21, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from EcoMotors, International, for the establishment of an 

Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

88-20-08-226-002  1055 W. Square Lake, Troy,  MI.  48098 

T2N, R11E, Section 8 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI  48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
O JOHN COLETTI 
ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL 
1055 W SQUARE LAKE 
TROY  MI  48098 

 
O JOHN COLETTI 
ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL 
2401 W BIG BEAVER STE 100 
TROY  MI 48084 

 
CURT BRAINARD 
CLB BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC 
PO BOX 95 
NORTHVILLE MI 48167 

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  









 

 
 
July 21, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) to EcoMotors, International, 1055 W. Square Lake 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 EcoMotors intends to purchase and occupy the vacant 30,000 square foot engineering building at 

1055 W. Square Lake, as a research and development headquarters. 
 

The Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) has granted the company $6.3 million in tax 
credits.  One of the contingencies tied to these State Tax Credits is tax abatement from the City of 
Troy.   This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended) and local City policy.  As you will 
recall, this amounts to an approximate 50% reduction in personal property taxes that they would 
pay, over a twelve (12) year period. 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $2,614,300 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $116,206.77, of which $36,839.12 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $58,103.39 in total taxes, of which $18,419.56 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 
 The application is in compliance with the newly amended tax abatement policy of the City Council 

of the City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.  The company will own and occupy an existing vacant 30,000 square foot building, 
and bring in an additional 157 jobs. 

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend granting the 
exemption. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option of granting the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for any period 

of one (1) to twelve (12) years, or not at all.   
 

Staff recommends that the Exemption be granted for the full twelve (12) years. 
 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\EcoMotors\CouncilPakIFEC PH 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, July 21, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from EcoMotors, International, for the granting of an Industrial 

Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) at the following location: 

 

88-20-08-226-002  1055 W. Square Lake, Troy,  MI.  48098 

T2N, R11E, Section 8 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI  48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
O JOHN COLETTI 
ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL 
1055 W SQUARE LAKE 
TROY  MI  48098 

 
O JOHN COLETTI 
ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL 
2401 W BIG BEAVER STE 100 
TROY  MI 48084 

 
CURT BRAINARD 
CLB BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC 
PO BOX 95 
NORTHVILLE MI 48167 

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



 

 
 
July 10, 2008  
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Administration and Finance 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director   
 
SUBJECT: Supplemental Information – Building Demolitions   
 
Additional Information 
The bid proposal to provide Demolition of Various Building Sites for Park Land Expansion Acquisitions was 
solicited with the following “Award Clause” –  
 

The evaluation and award of this bid shall be a combination of factors, including but not 
limited to: cost, professional competence, references, and the correlation of the proposal 
submitted to the needs of the City of Troy.  The City of Troy reserves the right to award this 
bid to the lowest responsible bidder for each proposal meeting specifications, or to 
combine proposals (A, B and/or C) if deemed to be in the City’s best interest to do so; to 
reject low bids which have major deviations from specifications: to accept a higher bid 
which has only minor deviations. 

 
In an effort to maintain effective and efficient operations, City staff has recommended to award the bid to the 
lowest total responsible bidder, Ferguson Enterprises, Inc.  If multiple awards were made, additional time and 
monies would be spent to pull insurances, determine completion schedules, supervise and monitor 
performance to ensure compliance with the specifications, which will more than offset the estimated $1,190.00 
of savings from a multiple award.   
 
Options 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding a contract for 

demolition of various building sites for park expansion acquisitions to the low total bidder, Ferguson 
Enterprises, Inc., of Detroit for an estimated total cost of $22,435.00 at prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened May 19, 2008. 

 
Or if City Council recommends one of the following options: 
 
 To award contracts for demolition of various building sites for park expansion acquisitions to the lowest 

responsible bidders:  Ahern Contracting, Inc of Chesterfield, MI for Proposal A — 4265 Rochester Road, 
Ferguson Enterprises Inc of Detroit for Proposal B – 4305 Rochester Road, and Blue Star, Inc for Proposal 
C – 1660 East Square Lake at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened May 19, 2008. 

 To award contracts for demolition of various building sites for park expansion acquisitions to the following 
low bidders after combining proposals: Ferguson Enterprises Inc of Detroit for Proposals A and B – 4265 & 
4305 Rochester Road and Blue Star, Inc for Proposal C – 1660 East Square Lake at prices contained in 
the bid tabulation opened May 19, 2008. 

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Demolition SupplementalInfo 06.08.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



 

 
 
June 23, 2008  
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Administration and Finance 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director   
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: - Award to Low Bidder - Building 

Demolition   
 
Background 
 
 On May 19, 2008, bids proposals were received to provide demolition of various building sites for 

park land expansion acquisitions.  
 233 vendors were notified via the MITN system. Ten (10) bid proposals were received. 
 The locations for the proposed building demolition are: 4265 Rochester Road, 4305 Rochester 

Road, and 1660 East Square Lake Road.  
 The parcels have been recently acquired by the City for use as future park land. The buildings are 

not in a usable condition and would not be incorporated in any future park development plans. 
 The low total bidder is Ferguson Enterprises, Inc., 14385 Wyoming, Detroit, MI 48238, 313-491-

4040 at an estimated total cost of $22,435.00. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
 Funding for this work is available in Park Development Capital Account #401770.7974.130. 
 The contractor will separate salvaged copper from other metals and place in the appropriate on-

site dumpsters.  All salvageable metals will remain the property of the City of Troy and disposed of 
by the City, with all revenues retained by the City. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 
 ITB-COT 08-10, a contract for demolition of buildings sites for Park Land expansion acquisitions 

was competitively bid in accordance with City Charter and Code. 
 The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of proper insurance certificates, and all 

specified requirements. 
 
 

1 of 2  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



June 23, 2008 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Award to Low Bidder - Demolition 

 
 
 

Policy Considerations 
 Maintenance of these properties along with the demolition of the buildings thereon will reduce 

visual barriers into the property and discourage vandalism of the unoccupied buildings. (Goal #I) 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying services 

to the City of Troy. (Goal #II) 
 Property maintenance helps retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 

(Goal #III) 
 
Options 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding a contract for 

demolition of various building sites for park expansion acquisition to the low total bidder, Ferguson 
Enterprises, Inc., of Detroit for an estimated total cost of $22,435.00 at prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened May 19, 2008. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Demolition 06.08.doc 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-10
Opening Date -- 5/19/08 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 3
Date Prepared -- 6/9/08 DEMOLITION OF HOUSES

VENDOR NAME: * Ferguson Ahern Blue Star, Inc Farrow Group
Enterprises Inc Contracting Inc. Inc

Check # 17324 819349902 985629127 78953016
Amount 2,500.00$         2,500.00$       2,500.00$              2,500.00$         

PROPOSAL:  TO PROVIDE DEMOLITION OF VARIOUS BUILDING SITES FOR PARK LAND EXPANSION ACQUISITION
        IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS.

Proposal A: Note: Includes add'l $1K
 4265 Rochester Road-      Complete for the Sum of: 8,555.00$         7,900.00$        12,350.00$            10,000.00$        
Proposal B:
 4305 Rochester Road-      Complete for the Sum of: 4,045.00$         6,900.00$        10,500.00$            10,000.00$        
Proposal C:
 1660 East Square Lake-    Complete for the Sum of: 9,835.00$         9,900.00$        9,300.00$              10,000.00$        

GRAND TOTAL: 22,435.00$       24,700.00$     32,150.00$            30,000.00$       

SITE INSPECTION Visited  5/13/08  5/16/08  5/7/08
Did Not Visited XX

COMPLETION DATE: Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

DISPOSAL SITE: location Carleton Farms Veolia Saulk Trail Hills Waste
Canton, MI 48158 Management

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 Days Blank
Does not include Our bid is based

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank asbestos - Min. Scrap on backfilling with
value in Demo, if Troy clean filled dirt
supplied boxes + $1K
per house

VENDOR QUESTIONNARE: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

ADDENDA  #1, 2, 3 Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes
ATTEST:
Diane Fisher * DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
Steve Pallotta
Linda Bockstanz

_______________________________
Susan Leirstein CPPB
Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 08-10 Demolition

W/I Two Calendar Weeks



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-10
Opening Date -- 5/19/08 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 3
Date Prepared -- 6/9/08 DEMOLITION OF HOUSES

Universal
VENDOR NAME: Pranam Consolidated Luke's Trucking Homrich, Inc.

GlobalTech Inc Enterprises, Inc. & Excavating
Check # (3) Money Orders* 21586427 520405 294450
Amount 2,500.00$         2,500.00$         2,500.00$            2,500.00$         

PROPOSAL:  TO PROVIDE DEMOLITION OF VARIOUS BUILDING SITES FOR PARK LAND EXPANSION ACQUISITION
        IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS.

Proposal A:
 4265 Rochester Road-      Complete for the Sum of: 13,995.00$        12,498.00$        17,488.00$          21,000.00$        
Proposal B:
 4305 Rochester Road-      Complete for the Sum of: 6,995.00$          7,990.00$          10,220.00$          13,000.00$        
Proposal C:
 1660 East Square Lake-    Complete for the Sum of: 11,005.00$        14,575.00$        12,740.00$          9,000.00$          

GRAND TOTAL: 31,995.00$        35,063.00$        40,448.00$          43,000.00$        

SITE INSPECTION Visited  5/08/08  5/19/08  5/17/08  5/08/08
Did Not Visited

COMPLETION DATE: Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

(Page Missing)
DISPOSAL SITE: location Riverview Licensed Type Blank Regulated 

Landfill II Backfill Resource &/or
State Lic. Facility

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET

Net 30 or
TERMS: 30 days Net Blank 2%  10 Days Net 30 days

Letter Attached to Bid All or None Award
EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Recycle as much No scrap Metal

Material as possible Asbestos is not included

Any salvageable lumber
to Grace Surplus . . . 

VENDOR QUESTIONNARE: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

ADDENDA  #1, 2, 3 Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

*R200565652518
R200565652507
R200565652496

G:\ITB-COT 08-10 Demolition

W/I Two Calendar Weeks



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-10
Opening Date -- 5/19/08 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 3
Date Prepared -- 6/9/08 DEMOLITION OF HOUSES

Brook Valley 
VENDOR NAME: Bob Turner, Inc. Homes Inc. / Ellis

Excavating
Check # 520755 (3) Money Orders*
Amount 2,500.00$               2,500.00$           

PROPOSAL:  TO PROVIDE DEMOLITION OF VARIOUS BUILDING SITES FOR PARK LAND EXPANSION ACQUISITION
        IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS.

Proposal A:
 4265 Rochester Road-      Complete for the Sum of: 17,133.00$              33,239.70$          
Proposal B:
 4305 Rochester Road-      Complete for the Sum of: 12,733.00$              13,413.60$          
Proposal C:
 1660 East Square Lake-    Complete for the Sum of: 13,933.00$              19,742.40$          

GRAND TOTAL: 43,799.00$             66,395.70$         

SITE INSPECTION Visited  5/08/08 5/9/2008
Did Not Visited

COMPLETION DATE: Can meet XX
Cannot Meet XX

Eagle Valley Landfill
DISPOSAL SITE: location Allied Waste Asphalt - Ajax Bald Mt

Services Concrete - State Crushing

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX
CANNOT MEET

TERMS: Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Attached to Bid Septic Pump & Removal Included
Metal Separation limited
Brush & Log Removal not included
Hazardous material not included

VENDOR QUESTIONNARE: Y or N Yes Yes

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes

ADDENDA  #1, 2, 3 Y or N Addendum 1 only Addendum 3 only

*08-916533657
08-916533656
08-916533655

G:\ITB-COT 08-10 Demolition

W/I Two Calendar Weeks



 
 
July 14, 2008 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

William S. Nelson, Fire Chief   
      
SUBJECT: Fire Station Two Kitchen Renovation    
 
Background 
 The kitchen at Fire Station 2 was last renovated in 1992 when the station was expanded.  
 The current renovation will include removal of all existing kitchen cabinets and countertops, 

as well as the soffits to permit more storage area. 
 The cabinets and countertops will be purchased from The Home Depot and are covered 

under a US Communities Cooperative Contract #05091.   
 Building Operations Department personnel will perform all of the labor involved in the project. 
 The estimated cost of the project is $27,592.64. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds for this project will be available in the Fire department Buildings & Improvements 

Capital account for Station Two, 401.336.344.7975.060. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations 
This project addresses the following City goals: 
 
I Enhance the livability and safety of the community. 
II Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government. 
 
Options 
 City management requests authorization to renovate the kitchen and associated areas at Fire 

Station 2, including the purchase of kitchen cabinets and countertops from The Home Depot 
under the U.S. Communities contract, for a total estimated project cost of $27,592.64, as 
detailed on Appendix A. 

 
 
G:/BidAward 08-09 New Format/Regular Business – Fire station 2 Kitchen renovation06.08.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



APPENDIX A

Fire Station 2 Kitchen Renovation‐ Estimated Costs

Item Cost
Replacement Cabinets $10,243.64
Replacement Countertops  $3,249.00
Kitchen Exhaust fan with hood with installation $2,200.00
Replacement ceiling tiles, grid with installation $1,600.00
Labor to demo existing kitchen , 
Install new cabinets, soffit and ceiling grid $8,600.00
New sink, garbage disposal and repiping plumbing $1,200.00
New dishwasher $500.00

ESTIMATED TOTAL $27,592.64

















 
 

July 9, 2008 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
   Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Annual Performance Evaluation of the City Manager and City Attorney 
  
 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

 City Council typically conducts annual performance evaluations of the city manager and the city 
attorney in July.  At the July 7, 2008 regular City Council meeting Council Member Broomfield 
remarked that it is time to schedule these performance evaluations.  Mayor Schilling suggested 
the performance evaluations take place in July. 

 MCL 15.268(a) allows for the period personnel evaluations to take place in closed session; we 
both request that our performance evaluations take place in closed session. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 It is requested that City Council conduct our annual performance reviews in closed session as 
soon as possible, based on the availability of Council members. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\07.21.08 – Annual Performance Evaluation of City Manager and City Attorney 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04



campbellld
Text Box
E-05







 

 
 
DATE:    July 16, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Steven Vandette, City Engineer 
Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

 
SUBJECT:   Proposed revisions to Chapter 20 regarding financing of  

water and sewer benefit fees 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The current provisions of Chapter 20 of the City Code allow for the City to provide financing of 

water and sewer benefit fees for existing homes when they connect to new water and sewer lines. 
 This option does not currently extend to instances where an existing home is demolished and a 

new one is constructed in its place. 
 We have received a request from a resident who owns a parcel in the Charnwood Hills 

Subdivision to provide financing for the sewer benefit fee for a new single family residence.   
 The existing home on that site was demolished in May of 2008.   
 A permit is ready to issue for the construction of a new home on that parcel. 
 Staff has prepared proposed revision language to Chapter 20 that would extend financing options 

for water and sewer benefit fees in this type of case. 
 Without the revision the sewer benefit fee of $16,269.51 would be due as a lump sum before the 

building permit could be issued. 
 In order to approve this modification Section 10.03 of Chapter 20 should be revised as follows: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



 
10.03 Sewer fees and/or water fees for existing buildings existing in areas where sewers or water 
taps were not available may be paid for at the time of permit issuance, or, at the option of the owner, 
may be paid in equal installments, including interest at 6% per annum on the unpaid balance for a 
period not to exceed 40 years; one installment shall be billed with each bill for water or sewer service.  
For purposes of this section, an “existing building” also includes a single family home that replaces a 
previous single family home, provided construction on the new home is commenced within six 
months of the demolition of the old home. 
 
Additional principal payments may be made with any installment.  
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are approximately 350 existing homes in Troy that are currently on septic systems. 
 How many of these homes that are going to be torn down and replaced by new homes is 

unknown. 
 Whether the financing option provided by the City is of benefit to the homeowner is dependant 

upon other financing options and rates available to the homeowner. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no Legal Considerations 
  
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community (Goal 1) 
 Retain and attract Investment while encouraging redevelopment (Goal 3) 
 
Options: 
 
 City Council can approve the revision to provide additional financing options. 
 City Council can deny the revision. 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 20 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 20 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Revise Section 10.03 of Chapter 20 to read as follows: 
 
 
10.03 Sewer fees and/or water fees for existing buildings may be paid for at the time of 
permit issuance, or, at the option of the owner, may be paid in equal installments, 
including interest at 6% per annum on the unpaid balance for a period not to exceed 40 
years; one installment shall be billed with each bill for water or sewer service.  For 
purposes of this section, an “existing building” also includes a single family home that 
replaces a previous single family home, provided construction on the new home is 
commenced within six months of the demolition of the old home. 
 
Additional principal payments may be made with any installment.  
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or 
abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any 
ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this 
penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and 
new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of 
this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 



 

  

2 

 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 
at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on 
the 21st day of July, 2008. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Shilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



campbellld
Text Box
E-07



































 
Date July 17, 2008 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

 
FROM: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Charter Revision Committee Recommendation of Proposed Ballot 
Language to the Citizen Petition Initiated Charter Amendment 
Proposal - Section 9.16.5 and Proposed Amendment to Section 6.2(g) 
– Vacancies in Elective Office

  
Background: 
 The Charter Revision Committee met on Monday, June 30, 2008, to review a possible 

amendment to the City Charter Section 6.2(g) - Vacancies in Elective Office and 
proposed ballot language for the citizen petition initiated Charter amendment to Section 
9.16.5. Attached is a draft copy of the minutes of the meeting as well as the agenda 
supporting material.  

  
 City Administration forwarded the proposed Citizen Initiated Petition Section 9.16.5 

ballot language, as submitted by Ed Kempen, to the State of Michigan Attorney 
General’s Office for informal review immediately upon receipt. The Attorney General’s 
Office indicated that the petition in its current form could not be placed on the ballot, 
since it was not in the required question format.  At that same time, George Elworth of 
the Attorney General’s Office indicated that a majority of City Council could modify the 
form of the ballot language to put the petition language into a question format.  City 
Administration therefore drafted a proposed modification to the form of the petition 
language, adding only language that would convert the petition into a question format.  
This minor modification was reviewed by the Charter Revision Committee, and 
recommended as to form.   

 
 The Charter Revision Committee also reviewed Section 6.2(g) of the Charter, pursuant 

to a City Council resolution expressly asking the Committee to revisit the item.  Upon 
information and belief, the current proposed ballot language is intended to remove the 
necessity of a special election to fill a vacant unexpired Councilmember’s term, which 
could be created if a Councilmember resigned to run for another office, as required by 
the Charter.  If the resignation created a four-year term vacancy, then all candidates for 
the other four-year terms would be in contention for the vacated term.  However, if there 
are not enough candidates to fill all of the four-year terms, then a special election could 
be required if the resignation was submitted at the last possible date.  In addition, a mid-
term resignation of a City Councilmember could create a two-year vacancy, 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  

campbellld
Text Box
E-08



 which is a different office than a four-year Council term.  Candidates may only run for 
any one elective office at a time (ie. a four-year term OR a two-year partial term).  If the 
mid-term resignation occurs prior to the filing deadline, as proposed, there would still 
need to be a special election to fill the unadvertised two-year term.  Since this impact of 
the proposed amendment was realized after the Charter Revision Committee’s 
consideration, and there is still a few weeks before the November General Election 
deadline, Council may wish to refer Section 6.2 (g) back to the Charter Revision 
Committee for additional review.   Should Council refer the matter back, City 
Administration will provide draft language for different potential amendment options.  
 
Placement of Charter Amendment Proposals on a ballot requires five affirmative votes.  
The deadline for all local questions must be forwarded to the Oakland County Clerk prior 
to August 26, 2008. August 25th being so near the deadline for submittal, it is 
recommended that City Council take final ballot placement action at the Regular City 
Council meeting of August 11, 2008. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
Options: 
 Section 9.16.5: 

Option one: APPROVE the language form of the Citizen Petition Initiated Section 9.16.5 
Charter Amendment Proposal to make the submittal read as a question as amended 
and recommended by the Charter Revision Committee and direct that the amended 
ballot question be forwarded to the Governor’s Office and the Oakland County Clerk for 
placement on the November 4, 2008 General Election Ballot. 
 
Option two: TAKE NO ACTION in regards to form of the proposed amendment and 
direct that the petition language be forwarded as drafted to the Governor’s Office and 
the Oakland County Clerk for Ballot placement on the November 4, 2008 General 
Election. 

 
 Section 6.2(g): 

Option one: APPROVE the Charter Revision Committee’s recommended amendment to 
Section 6.2(g) and direct staff to forward the proposed amendment on to the Governor’s 
Office and the Oakland County Clerk for placement on the November 4, 2008 General 
Election ballot. 
 
Option two: REFER the proposed amendment to Section 6.2(g) back to the Charter 
Revision Committee for consideration of additional amendment options to be provided 
by administration. 
 
Option three: TAKE NO ACTION. 

 



RECOMMENDED MOTION CITIZEN PETITION INITIATED CHARTER 
AMENDMENT TO SECTION 9.16.5 BALLOT LANGUAGE FORM: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 
RESOLVED, That City Council APPROVES the placement of the Citizen Initiated Petition 
Proposed Charter Amendment to Section 9.16.5 including the modification of form, as 
recommended by the Charter Revision Committee, for placement on the November 4, 2008 
General Election, as follows: 
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER BY ADDING SECTION 
9.16.5 – MILLAGE RATE LEVY LIMITATION 
 
Shall Section 9.16.5 regarding Millage Rate Levy Limitation, be added to the Troy City 
Charter as follows: 

 
“Section 9.16.5 – Millage Rate Levy Limitation: 
The Council shall not increase the millage rate imposed pursuant to Section 
9.16 of this charter above a current rate actually imposed, levied, and collected 
unless the increased rate shall be first approved by a majority of the City 
electors voting on the question.”? 

 
YES ___ NO ___ 
 

Yes:    
No:   
Absent:   
 

RECOMMENDED MOTIONS TO SECTION 6.2(g): 
 

1. Charter Revision Committee Recommendation: 
 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council APPROVES the placement of Section 6.2(g)-Vacancies to 
Elective Office as recommended by the Charter Revision Committee for placement on the 
November 4, 2008 General Election ballot as follows: 

 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – 
VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
 



Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, regarding vacancies in elective office, be 
amended  to allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at the next 
municipal election, to file for an office (other than their own) without resigning from 
Council by deleting the wording of current Section 6.2(g) in its entirety and inserting 
“Any member of City Council whose term is not expiring at the next municipal 
election, filing a petition for any City elective office, except to succeed oneself, shall 
resign their current Council position at least 21 days before filing for municipal 
election.”? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 
 

Yes:    
No:   
Absent:   

 
2. City Administration Recommendation: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That City Council REFERS the proposed amendment to Section 6.2(g) 
back to the Charter Revision Committee for consideration of additional amendment 
options to be provided by administration. 
 

Yes:    
No:   
Absent:   

 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft June 30, 2008 

 

-1- 

A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held June 30, 2008, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Chairman Daniel Bliss called the Meeting to order at 3:03 PM. 

 

ROLL CALL:   

 PRESENT: Lillian Barno, Maryann Bernardi, Daniel Bliss, Jerry E. 
Bloom, Shirley Kanoza, Cynthia A. Wilsher 

 ABSENT: Mark Solomon 

ALSO PRESENT: City Attorney Lori Bluhm, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew, 
 Deputy City Clerk Barbara Pallotta  

 

RESOLUTION TO EXCUSE MEMBER:  
 
Resolution #CR-2008-06-006 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 

RESOLVED, That Member Solomon be EXCUSED from the meeting of June 30, 2008.  
 
Yes: Barno, Bernardi, Bliss, Bloom, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Solomon 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: May 22, 2007 

 
Resolution #CR-2008-06-007 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of May 22, 2008 are hereby 

APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: Barno, Bernardi, Bliss, Bloom, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Solomon  

 

MOTION CARRIED 

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS: 

 

SECTION 6.2(g) –VACANCIES IN ELECTED OFFICE 
 
Member Bernardi sees a contradiction in the proposed ballot language that was 
previously approved by the Committee. 
 
Chair Bliss briefly reviewed the committee review process. 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft June 30, 2008 

 

-2- 

Proposed Resolution to Approve Proposed Ballot Language to Amend Section 

6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elected Office – Troy City Charter 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Bliss 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 

RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS the proposed 
ballot language to amend Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies In Elected Office of the Troy City 
Charter for referral to City Council as follows: 
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – 

VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 

Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, which discusses vacancies in 
elective office, be revised to allow members of Council, whose terms are 
expiring at the next municipal election, to file for an office other than their 
own without resigning from Council by deleting the wording of the current 
Section 6.2(g) in its entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council 
whose term is not expiring at the next municipal election, filing a petition 
for any City elective office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign from 
their current Council position prior to the filing deadline of the municipal 
election.”? 

 
YES ___ NO ___ 

A brief discussion continued on the proposed wording. 

 

Vote on Resolution to Approve Proposed Ballot Language to Amend Section 6.2(g) 

– Vacancies in Elected Office – Troy City Charter 

 
Resolution #CR-2008-06-008 
Moved by Bliss 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 

RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS the proposed 
ballot language to amend Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies In Elected Office of the Troy City 
Charter for referral to City Council as follows: 
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – 

VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 

Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, which discusses vacancies in 
elective office, be revised to allow members of Council, whose terms are 
expiring at the next municipal election, to file for an office other than their 
own without resigning from Council by deleting the wording of the current 
Section 6.2(g) in its entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council 
whose term is not expiring at the next municipal election, filing a petition 
for any City elective office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign from 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft June 30, 2008 

 

-3- 

their current Council position prior to the filing deadline of the municipal 
election.”? 
 

YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes: Barno, Bliss, Bloom, Wilsher 
No: Bernardi, Bloom 
Absent: Solomon 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

SECTION 9.16.5 – MILLAGE RATE LEVY LIMITATION 
 
It was explained the reason this item is back before the Committee is due in part because 
members requested that the entire committee be present to review the proposed 
language. It was explained that the same initiatory petitions are immediately submitted to 
the Attorney General for approval upon validation of signatures. However, the Attorney 
General will only approve ballot language if it is in the form of a question. Four City 
Council members could approve a modification of the form of the proposed ballot 
language. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Approve Proposed Ballot Language to Amend Section 9.16.5 

– Millage Rate Levy Limitation – Troy City Charter 
 
Resolution #CR-2008-06-009 
Moved by Bloom  
Seconded by Barno 
 

RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS the 
modification of the form of proposed ballot language to amend Section 9.16.5 – Millage 
Rate Levy Limitation of the Troy City Charter for referral to City Council proposed by City 
Administration as follows:  
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER BY ADDING 

SECTION 9.16.5 – MILLAGE RATE LEVY LIMITATION 

Shall Section 9.16.5 regarding Millage Rate Levy Limitation, be added to 
the Troy City Charter as follows: 

“Section 9.16.5 – Millage Rate Levy Limitation: 
The Council shall not increase the millage rate imposed 
pursuant to Section 9.16 of this charter above a current rate 
actually imposed, levied, and collected unless the increased 
rate shall be first approved by a majority of the City electors 
voting on the question.”? 

 

YES ___ NO ___ 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft June 30, 2008 

 

-4- 

Yes: Barno, Bernardi, Bliss, Bloom, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Solomon 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Robert Gosselin -Questioned the validity of the opinion that the petition must be in  
  the form of a question. 
 -Disagreed with comments made in regard to the circulation of  
  petitions in an article in the Observer Eccentric. 
Audre Zembrzuski -Discussed the language in Section 6.2(g)-Vacancies 
  In Elected Office of the Troy City Charter and how it impacted a  
  a former City Council Member and therefore disagrees with the  
  action taken today in regard to the proposed ballot language. 
Edward Kempen -Expressed his appreciation for the hard work of City Staff and the 
  Charter Revision Committee for being a part of the democratic  
  process in bringing forward the issue from the petition to the voters.  
Frank Howrylak  -Expressed his appreciation in the approval of the proposed ballot 
  language for Section 9.16.5 – Millage Rate Levy Limitation. 
 -Disagreed with comments made in regard to the circulation of  
  petitions in an article in the Observer Eccentric 
John Witt -Discussed the value and legitimacy of petitions as a means to place  
  a question on the ballot. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Meeting ADJOURNED at 3:58 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Daniel Bliss, Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



 

   Memorandum 
 
To: Members of the Troy Charter Revision Committee 
From: Lori Grigg Bluhm  
Date: June 24, 2008 
Subject: Section 6.2(g) of the Troy Charter  
 
 
On November 8, 1994, Section 6.2(g) was added to the Troy Charter.  That 
section states:   
 

Any elective office shall be declared vacant by the Council upon the 
occurrence of any of the following events before the expiration of the term 
of such office:  
. . .  
(g)  Any City Council member desiring to become a candidate for any City 
elective office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign from the Council 
prior to the filing deadline of the municipal election.   
 

Although this provision was not added to Troy’s Charter until 1994, the Charter 
Revision Committee minutes reveal discussion of this topic on previous 
occasions, dating back to at least 1980.  Initially, the proposed provisions 
required resignation from Council upon filing as a candidate for any other elected 
office.  This was modified to require resignation only when running for another 
City elected office, and was likely based on the fact that the City elections were in 
April, and most other elections occurred in November.  Rather than paraphrasing 
the rationale, I have included a copy of the Charter Revision Committee minutes 
from August  2, 1994, with the attached minutes of the February 1983 Charter 
Revision Committee meeting.     
 
This Charter provision was revisited by the Committee in 2007.  One of the 
concerns expressed at that time was the possibility that more than one Council 
member could run for Mayor, and requiring resignation of more than one Council 
member may cause difficulties in those matters where supermajority votes were 
required.   At the July 31, 2007 Charter Revision Committee meeting, the 
following Charter Revision proposal was recommended to City Council:    
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2- 
VACANCIES IN ELECTED OFFICE 
 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, regarding vacancies in elective 
office, be amended to allow members of Council, whose terms are 
expiring at the next municipal election, to file for an office (other than their 



 

own) without resigning from Council by deleting the wording of current 
Section 6.2(g) in its entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council 
whose term is not expiring at the next municipal election, filing a petition 
for any City elective office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign their 
current Council position at least 21 days before filing for municipal 
election”?   
Yes ______ No _______ 

 
This recommendation was forwarded to City Council.  A copy of the August 20, 
2007 City Council minutes is attached.  At that time, there was some Council 
support to modify the ballot question to call for a deletion of the Charter provision.  
However, this proposal did not have the required five affirmative votes to place 
the question on the ballot, and the matter was therefore referred back to the 
Charter Revision Committee.  The language considered by City Council is as 
follows:   
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2- 
VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
 
Shall Section 6.2 (g) of the City of Troy Charter, which provides that “Any 
City Council member desiring to become a candidate for any City elective 
office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the 
filing deadline of the municipal election”, be deleted in its entirety?   
Yes _____ No_____ 

 
The deadline for City Council to approve the language of any ballot question for 
the November 2008 election is on or before the August 25, 2008 City Council 
meeting. 
 
Please let me know if you have any additional questions on this matter.   
   
 
      



  

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT (WITH TRACK CHANGES): 

Section 6.2 - Vacancies in Elective Office: 
Any elective city office shall be declared vacant by the Council upon the occurrence of any 
of the following events before the expiration of the term of such office: 
 
STRIKE 
 
(g) Any City Council member desiring to become a candidate for any City elective office, except 

to succeed oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the filing deadline of the municipal 
election. 

 
INSERT 
 
(g) Any member of City Council whose term is not expiring at the next municipal election, 

filing a petition for any City elective office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign their 
current Council position at least 21 days before filing for municipal election. 

 

PROPOSED BALLOT WORDING: 
 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – VACANCIES IN 
ELECTIVE OFFICE 

Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, regarding vacancies in elective office, be amended  to 
allow members of Council, whose terms are expiring at the next municipal election, to file for an 
office (other than their own) without resigning from Council by deleting the wording of current 
Section 6.2(g) in its entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council whose term is not 
expiring at the next municipal election, filing a petition for any City elective office, except to 
succeed oneself, shall resign their current Council position at least 21 days before filing for 
municipal election.”? 
 

YES ___ NO ___ 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft May 22, 2008 

 

-2- 

Resolution #CR-2008-05-003 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Barno 
 

RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby MOVES TO POSTPONE 
consideration of an amendment to Section 6.2(g) of the Troy Charter until the next 
Charter Revision Committee meeting. 
 
Yes: Barno, Bernardi, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss, Bloom  
 

SECTION 9.16.5 – MILLAGE RATE LEVY LIMITATION 
 
Resolution #CR-2008-05-004 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Solomon 
 

RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby MOVES TO POSTPONE 
consideration of an addition to Chapter 9.16 to the Troy Charter concerning Millage Rate 
Levy Limitations until the next Charter Revision Committee meeting.    
 
Yes: Barno, Bernardi, Kanoza, Solomon, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Bliss, Bloom   
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: None. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Resolution #CR-2008-05-005 
Moved by Solomon  
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Meeting of Thursday, May 22, 2008 

be ADJOURNED. 
 

Meeting ADJOURNED at 3:43 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Cynthia A. Wilsher-Acting Chair  Lori G. Bluhm – City Attorney 
 





























Proposed Charter Amendment: 
 

CHAPTER 9 - TAXATION 

A. ASSESSMENT 

Section 9.16.5 – Millage Rate Levy Limitation: 
The Council shall not increase the millage rate imposed pursuant to Section 9.16 of this charter 
above a current rate actually imposed, levied, and collected unless the increased rate shall be 
first approved by a majority of the City electors voting on the question. 

 

Proposed Ballot Wording: 
 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER BY ADDING 
SECTION 9.16.5 – MILLAGE RATE LEVY LIMITATION 

Shall Section 9.16.5 regarding Millage Rate Levy Limitation be added to the  Troy
City Charter as follows: 

“Section 9.16.5 – Millage Rate Levy Limitation: 
The Council shall not increase the millage rate imposed pursuant to Section 9.16 of this 
charter above a current rate actually imposed, levied, and collected unless the increased 
rate shall be first approved by a majority of the City electors voting on the question.”? 

 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 



















 

 
 
TO:   Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE:  July 16, 2008 
SUBJECT: Verizon’s Request for Amendment to Lease-Sylvan Glen Communications Tower  

 
 

 Verizon has requested permission to install a generator to support its equipment on the 
Communications Tower located on the Sylvan Glen Golf Course.  Upon information and belief, 
Verizon has already entered into agreements with two of the other communications providers 
to share the cost and the use of the generator.  However, since the generator was not initially 
contemplated, the lease needs to be amended.  A proposed amendment is attached for your 
consideration.  This amendment includes a site plan, as well as a landscape plan, and details 
about the proposed generator.    
 
 The generator is intended to be powered by a gas line, as opposed to having large 
storage tanks on the property.  In order to facilitate this, the City would need to grant a 10 foot 
easement over the City’s property for the installation of a gas line.  Verizon has been working 
closely with City Management to identify the preferred location of the gas line.  A proposed 
easement is attached for your consideration.           
 
 As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please feel free to contact 
me or Mark Stimac, who has provided invaluable assistance on this matter.       
 

MMEEMMOORRAANNDDUUMM  

campbellld
Text Box
E-09



EASEMENT FOR GAS PIPELINE 
Form 426  9-2006 

 
Parties:  “Owner” is CITY OF TROY, a Michigan municipal corporation, located at 500 W. Big Beaver 
Road, Troy, Michigan 48084.   
 
“Consumers” is CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY, a Michigan corporation.  Consumers’ address is 
One Energy Plaza, Jackson, Michigan 49201. 
 
Grant of Easement:  For good and valuable consideration, Owner grants Consumers a permanent 
easement for a gas pipeline in, under, and across a portion of “Owner’s Land,” called the “Easement 
Area.”  Owner’s Land is in the City of Troy, County of Oakland, and State of Michigan and is described in 
the attached Exhibit A.  The Easement Area is within Owner’s Land and is described in the attached 
Exhibit B.   
 
Purpose:  The purpose of the easement is to grant Consumers the right to enter Owner’s Land to 
construct, operate, inspect, maintain, replace, improve, remove, and enlarge a gas pipeline and lateral 
pipelines on the Easement Area.  The gas pipelines may consist of pipelines with valves, connections, 
and accessories for transmitting and distributing natural gas.  
 
Trees and Other Vegetation:  Consumers shall have the right from time to time hereafter to enter 
Owner’s Land to trim, cut down, and otherwise remove and control any trees, brush, roots, and other 
vegetation, whether inside or outside the Easement Area, that Consumers believes may interfere with 
the construction, operation, and maintenance of the pipelines. 
 
Buildings/Structures:  Owner shall not:  1) locate any buildings, structures, septic systems, drain fields, 
ponds, or swimming pools within the Easement Area, 2) plant any trees within the Easement Area, or 3) 
change the ground elevation within the Easement Area.  If Owner violates this provision, Owner shall 
reimburse Consumers for any expenses Consumers incurs correcting the violation.  If Consumers 
corrects the violation by relocating a pipeline on Owner’s Land, this easement shall automatically apply 
to such relocated line. 
 
Exercise of Easement:  Consumers’ nonuse or limited use of this Easement shall not preclude 
Consumers’ later use of this Easement to its full extent. 
 
Successors:  This easement shall bind and benefit Owner’s and Consumers’ respective heirs, 
successors, lessees, licensees, and assigns. 
 
 
 
Date:     
 
 
 



Form 426   9-2006 

  Owner: City of Troy  
 
 
    
 By: Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 

Acknowledgment 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me in Oakland County, Michigan, on   

by Louise E. Schilling, Mayor of the City of Troy, on behalf of the City of Troy.   

 
 
    
 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk  
 

Acknowledgment 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me in Oakland County, Michigan, on   

by Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk, on behalf of the City of Troy.   

 
 
 
   
  Notary Public 
  County, Michigan 
 Acting in   County 
 My Commission expires:   
 
 
 
This easement is exempt from real estate transfer tax pursuant to MCLA 207.505(f) and from State real 
estate transfer tax pursuant to the provisions of MCLA 207.526(f). 
 
 
 
Prepared By:  Lori Grigg Bluhm After recording, return to:   
City of Troy  Troy City Clerk 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 
Troy, MI 48084 Troy, MI 48084 
  

 



Form 426   9-2006 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Owner’s Land 
 
 

Parcel Number 88-20-10-200-001.  Parent parcel is legally described as:   
Northeast 1⁄4 Section of Section 10, Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Oakland County 
Michigan. 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Easement Area 
 

A 10 foot wide easement area on the Sylvan Glen municipal golf course, more particularly described as:   

 
 

Part of the Northeast ¼ of Section 10, Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Oakland County, 

Michigan, described as:  Commencing at the East ¼ Corner of said Section 10; thence North 01 degrees 25 

minutes 10 seconds West, along the east line of said section, 842.53 feet and North 81 degrees 22 minutes 

54 seconds West 50.78 feet to the west right of way line of Rochester Road (M-150) and the Point of 

Beginning of the centerline of a 10 feet wide gas line easement, said easement being 5.00 feet either side 

and perpendicular to the following centerline; thence North 81 degrees 22 minutes 54 seconds West 

1073.39 feet; thence North 21 degrees 32 minutes 44 seconds West 151.99 feet; thence North 75 degrees 55 

minutes 28 seconds West 88.45 feet; thence South 16 degrees 15 minutes 05 seconds West 60.22 feet; 

thence South 73 degrees 44 minutes 55 seconds East 17.00 feet to the Point of Ending of said centerline. 

 

 

 



1 

  

 FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 

 This Amendment is made this _____ day of _____, 2008 by and between The 

City of Troy, a Michigan municipal corporation, with its principal office located at 500 

West Big Beaver Road, Suite 3300, Troy, Michigan 48084, hereinafter called “Lessor”, 

and NEW PAR, a Delaware partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless, with a principal mailing 

address of One Verizon Way, Mail Stop 4AW100 Basking Ridge, Bedminster, New 

Jersey 07920, hereinafter called “Lessee”. 

 WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee entered into an Acknowledgment and Lease 

Agreement on November 4, 2002 (the “Agreement”), and: 

  WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement to allow Lessee to install 

a back up generator within the Leased Premises. 

    NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and intending to be legally 

bound hereby, Lessor and Lessee agree to the following changes and modifications to 

the Lease Agreement. 

 1. Lessee may install a natural gas generator within the Leased Premises, 

plus piping, conduits, support pad and meter, as depicted on the attached Exhibit 1.  

Exhibit 1, which includes a revised site plan, shall replace the site plan that was 

previously submitted with the original Acknowledgement and Lease Agreement.  

 2. Lessee agrees to share use of the Generator with two other 

telecommunications carriers who also maintain facilities on Lessor’s Property.  Such 

shared use will be subject to written shared use agreements to be negotiated at Lessee’s 

discretion and entered into between Lessee and each of the other carriers.  



2 

3. Except as modified herein, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement 

shall remain in full force and effect.  

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and affixed 

their respective seals to be effective the day and year first above written. 

 

    LESSOR: 

  THE CITY OF TROY,  
  a Michigan municipal corporation 
 
 
  
WITNESS  BY:    
   Louise E. Schilling, Mayor   
 
   _________________________________ 
    Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk  
WITNESS   
   
 
Dated: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
    LESSEE: 

  NEW PAR D/B/A VERIZON WIRELESS 
 
  BY: Verizon Wireless (VAW), LLC, 
  Its: General Partner 
 
 
  
WITNESS  BY:    
   Beth Ann Drohan, 
  Its: Midwest Area Vice President - Network 
  
WITNESS 
  Dated: _______________, 2008 
 
 
 
 



3 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

Three pages, which are as follows:  

 

Site Plan, prepared by Midwestern Consulting, dated 8/30/2007 and most recently 

revised on 2/7/2008 

 

Generator Details & Electrical Schematic, prepared by Midwestern Consulting, 

dated 8/28/2007, and most recently revised on 2/7/2008 

 

Landscape Plan & Details, prepared by Midwestern Consulting, dated 1/7/2008 

 

 



































































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, July 7, 2008, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Father Edward Belczak of St. Thomas More Catholic Church gave the Invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
 

b) Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Howrylak 
 
Resolution #2008-07-210 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Broomfield   
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem 
Howrylak at the Special City Council meeting of July 1, 2008 due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employee’s Casual for a Cause Program (May), Carol 
Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director presented a check in the amount of $569.72 to 
Cindy Stewart, Secretary of the Troy Police/Fire Benevolent Association. 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
David Ross: Restated his dissatisfaction in regard to the asphalt path located behind his  
 home in Raintree Park. 
  
Linda Shurtliff: Discussed her dissatisfaction in regard to the asphalt path located behind  
 her home in Raintree Park. 
  
James Savage: Discussed inconsistencies in the city’s ordinances and policies. 

 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

E-6 Chapter 61 of Troy City Code – Transient Merchants – Include Mobile Windshield 

Repair and Similar Service Businesses 
 
Resolution #2008-07-211 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to revise Chapter 61 – 
Transient Merchants, to include mobile windshield repair and similar service businesses. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak    
No: Kerwin, Schilling 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 

Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Cable Advisory 

Committee; Historical Commission; and Troy Daze 

 

(a) Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  

 

(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2008-07-212 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Terms  

  
Nancy Chen – Student Term Expires 07/01/09 

  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

Chi Song – Student Term Expires 07/01/09 

  

Historical Commission  
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular) 3 Year Terms  

  
Roger Kaniarz Term Expires 07/31/11 

  
Rosemary Kornacki Term Expires 07/31/11 

  

Troy Daze  

Appointed by Council (9-Regular) 3-Year Terms   

  
Sarah Wunderlich – Student Term Expires 07/31/09 

 
Yes: All-7  

MOTION CARRIED 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations: Building Code Board 

of Appeals; Historic District Commission; Historic District Study Committee; 

Historical Commission; Library Advisory Board; Liquor Advisory Committee; and 

Parks & Recreation Board  

 

 (a) Mayoral Nominations – No Nominations Scheduled 
 

(b) City Council Nominations 
 
Resolution #2008-07-213 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Building Code Board of Appeals  
Appointed by City Council (5-Regular) 5-Year Terms  
  
Theodore Dziurman Term Expires 07/31/13 

  

Library Advisory Board  

Appointed by City Council (5-Regular) 3-Year Terms  

  
Junxiao (Joel) Xu - Student Term Expires 07/01/09 

 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

E-3 Amendment to Chapter 29 of Troy City Code - Cemetery 
 
Resolution #2008-07-214 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending Sections 2, 6, 7, 
8, 12B, 12D, and 14B of Chapter 29 of the Troy City Code as recommended by the City 

Attorney, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher 
No: Howrylak   
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-4 Amendment to Chapter 34 of Troy City Code – Sidewalks and Driveway 

Approaches 
 
Resolution #2008-07-215 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending Sections 34.01, 
34.02.03, 34.02.05 and 34.04 of Chapter 34 of the Troy City Code as recommended by City 

Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-5 Amendment to Chapter 60 of Troy City Code – Fees and Bonds Required - Add 

Fees for Sidewalk and Approach Permits  
 
Resolution #2008-07-216 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending Section 60.03 of 
Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code to include fees for Sidewalk and Approach Permits in 
accordance with the proposal prepared by City Management, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

E-7 Amendment to Chapter 100 of Troy City Code – Municipal Civil Infractions  
 
Resolution #2008-07-217 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending Sections 
100.03.07 and 100.11.03 of Chapter 100 of the Troy City Code and adds Section 100.11.03A 

to Chapter 100, as recommended by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-8 Amendment to Chapter 106 of Troy City Code – Traffic – Registration Certificate 

Signature  
 
Resolution #2008-07-218 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance deleting the registration 
certificate signature requirement as provided in subsection 5.70(1) of Chapter 106 as 

recommended by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-9 Approval of Distribution of Draft City of Troy 2008 Master Plan 
 
Resolution #2008-07-219 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The responsibility of cities and villages to adopt and update a master plan is 
outlined in the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission prepared the draft City of Troy 2008 Master Plan;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has determined that the draft City of Troy 2008 Master 
Plan represents the long-range vision of the City of Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended that the City Council authorize 
distribution of the draft City of Troy 2008 Master Plan, as per the requirements of the Municipal 
Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the distribution 
of the draft City of Troy 2008 Master Plan, “June 25, 2008 Draft for Distribution”, as per the 
requirements of the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-10 DSS Recording System Upgrade 
 
Resolution #2008-07-220 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The Police Department has always maintained a contract for the recording system 
of the 9-1-1 dispatch center as one of the critical systems in the Communications Section; 
 
WHEREAS, DSS Corporation, our current provider has offered to upgrade the system for its 
customers at no cost for the hardware; and  
 
WHEREAS, The benefits of the Equature upgrade include non-proprietary open architecture, 
unlimited search capability, improved security and enhanced monitoring of system problems;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to 
execute a five-year maintenance agreement and upgrade the recording system of the 9-1-1 
dispatch center from DSS Corporation of Southfield, MI, at an estimated total cost of 
$34,500.00.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-11 City of Troy vs. Sunset Excavating Company and Eclipse Excavating, LLC 
 
Resolution #2008-07-221 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney to file a lawsuit in 
Oakland County Circuit Court against Sunset Excavating Company and Eclipse Excavating, 
LLC, and is authorized to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary 
expert witnesses to adequately represent the City.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2008-07-222 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item F-4a, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2008-07-222-F-2  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of June 16, 2008 and the 7:30 PM Special Meeting of July 1, 2008 as 
submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Resolution #2008-07-222-F-3 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 

a) Parks and Recreation Month – July, 2008 

 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: AEPA Cooperative – Fitness Room Flooring        
 
Resolution #2008-07--222-F-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to provide closed cell 
rubber flooring at the Community Center from Sport Surfaces, a Robert Cohen Company, 
through the Association of Educational Purchasing Agencies (AEPA) Cooperative Contract 
#08-0027 at an estimated cost of $37,185.00, under the prices, terms and conditions of AEPA 
bid IFB #008-E, which expires February 28, 2009; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the work will be performed by Mid America Sport 

Surfacing, a Michigan based company CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of properly 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

executed contract documents including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicle        
 
Resolution #2008-07--222-F-4c 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the contract to purchase one (1) 2008 
Ford Escape Hybrid AWD from Signature Ford, L-M Jeep of Owosso, MI, through the Macomb 
County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an estimated total cost of $24,552.00. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Public Safety Field 

Communications Unit        
 
Resolution #2008-07--222-F-4d 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all labor, material, 
tools, equipment and construction drawings to provide one (1) new public safety field 
communications unit to the lowest cost and highest rated bidder, Gerling & Associates, Inc. of 
Sunbury, Ohio, as a result of a best value process, for an estimated total cost of $125,670.00; 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon company submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including all specified requirements; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS the delivery cost options. 
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000.00; Southeast Michigan Council of 

Governments (SEMCOG)        
 
Resolution #2008-07--222-F-4e 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to pay membership dues to the 
Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) in the amount of $11,390.00, which 
covers the time period of July 15, 2008 to July 15, 2009. 
 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Cooperative Award – City of Rochester 

Hills Single Axle Dump Truck        
 
Resolution #2008-07--222-F-4f 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase one (1) 2009 
Sterling L 8500 5-7 yard dump truck with snow plow and salt spreader from Wolverine Truck 
Sales, Inc. of Dearborn, MI, through a MITN Cooperative Award hosted by the City of 
Rochester Hills for an estimated total cost of $129,605.00. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 08-7 – 

Maplelawn, Barrett and Northfield Mill and Overlay        
 
Resolution #2008-07--222-F-4g 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 08-7, Maplelawn, Barrett 
and Northfield Mill and Overlay to Cadillac Asphalt, LLC, 4751 White Lake Road, Clarkston, MI 
48346, at an estimated total cost of $489,719.80; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required, Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 

F-5 Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Four Permanent Easements – Grand Troy 

Villas Condominiums, Sidwell #88-20-15-477-036 
 
Resolution #2008-07--222-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed and Permanent 
Easements for water main, public utilities, sanitary sewer and emergency ingress/egress from 
property owners Raju Venkatraman, Raji Raju, Srikanth Rajagopalan, Panapakkam 
Singaracharlu, Nirmala Singaracharlu, K.K. Venkat, Hema Venkat, R. Rajaraman, Ranjani 
Rajaraman, Bala K. Murthy, Revathi Murthy, Sridhar Rajagopalan, Sujatha S. Rajagopalan, 
Srikanth Rajagopalan, Aruna Srikanth, Jay Shankar Balan, Sandya Shankar, having Sidwell #88-
20-15-477-036; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Building Demolition        
 

Proposed Resolution to Postpone Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low 

Bidder – Building Demolition 

 
Proposed Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES agenda item F-4a Standard 
Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Building Demolition until the Regular City 

Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, July 21, 2008 and DIRECTS City staff to provide a 
resolution to award each individual project to the low bidder. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – 

Building Demolition 
 
Resolution #2008-07-223 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Schilling  
  

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution to postpone agenda item F-4a 

Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Building Demolition by STRIKING 

“and DIRECTS City staff to provide a resolution to award each individual project to the low 
bidder.” 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: Broomfield, Eisenbacher,  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low 

Bidder – Building Demolition as Amended 
 
Resolution #2008-07-224 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES agenda item F-4a Standard 
Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Building Demolition until the Regular City 
Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, July 21, 2008. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  
G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) EcoMotors, 1055 West Square Lake – Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) 
and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – July 21, 2008   

Noted and Filed 
    

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 Council Comments: 
 
Council Member Broomfield requested that the City Manager and City Attorney’s annual 
evaluations be scheduled as soon as possible. 
 
Mayor Schilling indicated that she had already discussed this issue with the City Manager and 
City Attorney, and agrees that the evaluations should be scheduled within the month of July. 
 
Council Member Kerwin reported that she recently attended various educational development 
opportunities. She provided City Council members with copies of the PowerPoint presentation 
that she received from the Assistant Planner Advanced Academy. She noted that this session 
was a full session and added that the Papadelis v. City of Troy case was cited during the 
course. Council Member Kerwin read from the handout she received and advised that she 
would distribute copies to City Council members. 
 
Council Member Kerwin reported that she also attended a break-out session, Zoning from 
Scratch, and will forward an informational PowerPoint presentation for City Council’s reference. 
 
Council Member Kerwin noted that July is Parks & Recreation Month and read an article, Walk 
Michigan, from Troy Today describing the City of Troy’s Walk for Health program. 
 
Council Member Beltramini apologized publicly to Mr. Papadelis explaining that she 
misunderstood a statement he made at the last City Council meeting after he contacted her to 
clarify his statement. 
  
Council Member Beltramini reminded the public that the Family Festival will be held at Boulan 
Park from 5:30 – 8:30 PM on Wednesday, July 16

th
.  

 
Council Member Howrylak offered suggestions in regard to methods to conserve City 
resources. 
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Charter Revision Committee/Final – July 31, 2007 

b) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – March 5, 2008  

c) Downtown Development Authority Special/Final – April 4, 2008 

d) Downtown Development Authority/Final – April 16, 2008 

e) Election Commission/Final – April 18, 2008 

f) Troy Daze Committee/Final – April 22, 2008 

g) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – May 14, 2008  

h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – May 20, 2008  

i) Historic District Commission/Final – May 20, 2008 

j) Charter Revision Committee/Final – May 22, 2008 

k) Personnel Board/Final – May 22, 2008 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 3, 2008 

m) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 3, 2008 

n) Planning Commission/Draft – June 10, 2008  

o) Planning Commission/Final – June 10, 2008  

p) Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – June 11, 2008 

q) Troy Daze Committee/Draft – June 24, 2008 

r) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – June 30, 2008 

s) Election Commission/Draft – June 30, 2008  

t) Personnel Board/Draft – July 2, 2008 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-2 Department Reports:  

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of May, 2008  

b) Customer Solutions Monthly Report – May, 2008  

c) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – Bid-Net On-Line Auction Services – April 
and May 2008 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Resident David Easterbrook Regarding the 
Assistance of Troy Police Officers at Intersections in Troy with Non-working Traffic 
Lights  

b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Troy Teacher Andrea Moon Regarding the 
Assistance of Troy Police Officers at Intersections in Troy with Non-working Traffic 
Lights  

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Desmond Scanlon, US Department of 
Homeland Security, Regarding the Assistance of Lieutenant David Livingston during the 
Visit of Senator Barack Obama  

d) Letter of Appreciation to Police Department Personnel from Chief Craft Regarding the 
Efforts during the Power Outage  

e) Letter of Thanks to Casual for a Cause Participants from Julie Sigler, Friends of the Troy 
Public Library Treasurer, Regarding Donations from April, 2008  

f) Letter of Appreciation to Stu Alderman from Mark Weigand, Troy Hurricanes Coach 
Regarding Flynn Park Improvements  

g) Letter of Thanks from Resident Patricia Johnson Regarding the Charnwood Sewer 
Project and Professionalism and Efforts of Engineering Specialist Pat Fitzpatrick  

h) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Stephanie Bergeron, Walsh College President, 
Regarding Assistance with Commencement Ceremony  

i) Letter of Appreciation to Carol Anderson from Stephanie Bergeron, Walsh College 
President, Regarding Assistance with Commencement Ceremony 

j) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Monsignor Zouhair Toma, Pastor, St. Joseph 
Catholic Chaldean Church Regarding Police Department Assistance during the 2008 
Easter Season 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 Boards and Committees 
 
A brief discussion took place in regard to Boards and Committees. City Council requested time 
to review the material and will schedule the topic as a study item at a later date. 
 

K-2 Open Meetings Act 
 
Lori Bluhm, City Attorney provided PowerPoint presentation regarding the Open Meetings Act 
and Michigan’s Freedom of Information Act. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:46 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 7, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, July 7, 2008, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 5:00 PM. 

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher (Arrived 5:12 PM) 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak (Arrived 5:13 PM) 
Mary Kerwin 

DISCUSSION ITEM: 

1. Budgeting for Outcomes (BFO)  

Phil Nelson, City Manager presented a chart representing the tax rates and services of twelve 
communities similar in size to Troy. Mr. Nelson then provided an overview of the next steps to 
be taken in the Budgeting for Outcomes process. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 

ADJOURNMENT: 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 5:40 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



 

 
July 11, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
  
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option –  
   Tee Shirts 
 
Background 

 On October 15, 2007, Troy City Council approved a one-year contract for Tee Shirts (various types) 
with an option to renew for one additional year to the low total bidder EA Graphics of Sterling Heights 
(Resolution #2007-10-294-E-4c) 

 Tee Shirts are purchased for youth and adult recreational programs throughout the year based upon 
estimated quantities. 

 EA Graphics has offered to renew their contract for one additional year under the same prices, terms, 
and conditions.  

 Purchasing has conducted a market survey and determined the City would not benefit from soliciting 
new bids as transportation, fuel and material costs have increased. 

 
Financial Considerations 

 Funds are available for the purchase of these tee shirts in the Parks and Recreation Summer and 
Winter Program Operating Supply Accounts. 

 
Legal Considerations 

 ITB-COT 07-34, one-year requirements of Tee Shirts with an option to renew for one additional year 
was competitively bid and opened on October 2, 2007, in accordance with City Charter and Code. 

 
Policy Considerations 

 By renewing existing contracts, the City minimizes cost increases and benefits from efficient strategic 
planning. (Goal II) 

 
Options 

 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend exercising the option to renew 
for one additional year with EA Graphics of Sterling Heights for Tee Shirts under the same prices, terms 
and conditions expiring September 30, 2009. 

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Tee Shirts 07.08.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a











 

 
 

October 8, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:               Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Tee Shirt Contract  
 
Background   
 On Tuesday, October 2, 2007, bids were opened to furnish one year requirements of 50/50 Tee 

Shirts and 100% Cotton Tee Shirts with an option to renew for one additional year. Tee shirts are 
used in several Parks and Recreation programs as team, participation or award shirts. 

 E.A. Graphics of Sterling Heights, Michigan was the low total bidder. 
 The contract shall commence upon approval from Council and expire September 30, 2008.   
 154 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with eleven qualified bids received.  Three bidders 

failed to provide a bid surety check.  One bid was withdrawn for calculation errors.   
 

Financial Considerations 
 Funding for the tee shirts is available in the Parks and Recreation and Aquatic Center operating 

accounts. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 07-34, one-year requirements of Tee Shirts with an option to renew was competitively bid 

and opened with eleven (11) qualified bids received.  
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying tee shirts 

to the City of Troy.  
 
Policy Considerations 
 Tee shirts are used in several Parks and Recreation programs as team, participation or award 

shirts. (Goal I) 
 The bid process meets the City goal of minimizing the cost to the residents, thus making 

government more effective. (Goal II) 
 
Options  
 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding the tee shirt 

contract to the low total bidder, E.A. Graphics for an estimated total cost of $36,748.75, with a 
one-year renewable option from October 1, 2008- September 30, 2009. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-34
Opening Date -- 10/2/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/3/07 100% COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: E.A. Graphics Austin Uniform Kelgraphics American 
& Embroidery Silkscreen &

Embroidery
CHECK # 1460001526 12160706 On File 349896
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #1-- 50/50 Short Sleeve Shirts
(50% Cotton & 50% Polyester w/One Color Imprint on Front)

4000 Youth - Small, Med,Large 2.47$                    2.65$                 2.50$                     2.61$                     
3300 Adult -  Small,Med,Large,Xlarge 2.49$                    2.65$                 2.50$                     2.61$                     

75 Adult -  XXLarge 3.49$                    3.55$                 3.50$                     3.61$                     
25 Adult - XXXLarge 3.49$                    3.59$                 3.60$                     3.61$                     

COST PER DIGIT: 0.35$                    0.40$                 0.35$                     0.35$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G 8000 8000 G800 G5000
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 26 Y - 28 A 28 Blank 18

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#1): 18,446.00$          19,701.00$       18,602.50$            19,414.00$           

ITEM #2 -- 100% Cotton - Short and Long Sleeve  
One (1) Color Imprint on Front 

40 Youth - Small,Med,Large - LONG Sleeve 4.35$                    4.80$                 4.50$                     4.83$                     
125 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-LONG Sleeve 4.35$                    4.80$                 4.50$                     4.83$                     
975 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-SHORT Sleeve 2.55$                    1.80$                 2.70$                     2.84$                     
100 Adult -  XX Large-SHORT Sleeve 3.55$                    2.82$                 3.70$                     3.84$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G2400 /2000 G2400/G2000 G2400/2000 G2400B / G2400 
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 27 Lg - 55 Sht 28 Ls & 28 Ss Blank 15 Y  & 29 A

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#2): 3,559.00$            2,829.00$         3,745.00$              3,949.95$             

ITEM #3 -- 100% Cotton - Short Sleeve Shirts  (No Imprinting)
150 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge 1.95$                    2.00$                 2.25$                     2.39$                     
25 Adult - XXLarge 2.95$                    3.00$                 3.25$                     3.39$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G 2000 G2000 G2000 G2000
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 55 White & Lights Blank 57

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#3): 366.25$               375.00$            418.75$                 443.25$                

ITEM #4 -- 50% Cotton/50% Polyester Blend 
Short Sleeve Shirts w/Two Colors Front & 1 Color Back

1300 Youth -Small, Medium, Large 2.70$                    3.30$                 2.90$                     2.81$                     
1800 Adult - Small, Medium, Large, X-Large 2.75$                    3.35$                 2.90$                     2.86$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G 8000 G8000 G800 G8000
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 26 Y / 28 A 28 Blank 18

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#4): 8,460.00$            10,320.00$       8,990.00$              8,801.00$             



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-34
Opening Date -- 10/2/07 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/3/07 100 % COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: E.A. Graphics Austin Uniform Kelgraphics American 
& Embroidery Silkscreen &

Embroidery
EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #5 -- 100% Cotton - Two Color Imprint - Front & Back
Short Sleeve Shirts

1700 Adult-Small, Medium, Large, X-Large 2.90$                    3.60$                 3.50$                     3.26$                     
250 Adult - XX-Large 3.95$                    4.80$                 4.50$                     4.26$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G 2000 G2000 G2000 G2000
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 55 28 Blank 57

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#5): 5,917.50$            7,320.00$         7,075.00$              6,607.00$             

       ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS 36,748.75$          40,545.00$       38,831.25$            39,215.20$           

       ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS 36,748.75$          

SAMPLES INCLUDED           Y or N Yes No Yes No

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Op 6:00am - 5:00pm M-F  7 to 5 M-F   8 to 5 M-F 8:30 - 5:00
         Phone # 586-850-6449 248-891-9125 231-775-6870 248-474-1000

TERMS Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 Net 30
2 weeks at request of

GUARANTEED DELIVERY order or as needed Yes 10 Days or Less 2 week turnaround

WARRANTY

EXCEPTIONS No Exceptions Blank Blank Blank
have been used

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

DISQUALIFIED:   (non-responsive)
Chamberlain Marketing Group (Did not submit bid surety check with bid)
Halo/Lee Wayne Corp (Did not submit bid surety check with bid)           
Fruit of the Loom (Did not submit bid surety check with bid)                  

WITHDRAWN
Raven Rock Workwear ($47,195.28 - Withdrew bid due to calculation errors)

PROPOSAL:  One Year Requirements of Tee Shirts (Various Types) with an option to renew for One Additional Year

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
Barb Rupas
Yvonne Ranzinger Susan Leirstein CPPB
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G\:TeeshirtsBid ITB-COT 07-34

MANUFACTURER'S



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-34
Opening Date -- 10/2/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/3/07 100% COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: Elite Medical Office Depot Impressive Screenprint 
Products, Inc. Promotional Plus, Inc.

Note: Business Check Products, LLC
CHECK # 928458 1463698 835643247-9 20010911380
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #1-- 50/50 Short Sleeve Shirts
(50% Cotton & 50% Polyester w/One Color Imprint on Front)

4000 Youth - Small, Med,Large 2.64$                     2.60$                  2.59$               3.11$                 
3300 Adult -  Small,Med,Large,Xlarge 2.70$                     2.75$                  2.73$               3.22$                 

75 Adult -  XXLarge 3.80$                     3.80$                  3.69$               4.27$                 
25 Adult - XXXLarge 3.90$                     3.90$                  3.74$               4.37$                 

COST PER DIGIT: 0.42$                    0.67$                 0.50$               Included

QUOTING ON STYLE: G 800 G800B/G800 G8000B/8000 G800B / G800
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 30 27 - 32 28 All, expt S.Blue,

violet, & C. Blue
ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#1): 19,852.50$           19,857.50$        19,739.25$     23,495.50$      

ITEM #2 -- 100% Cotton - Short and Long Sleeve  
One (1) Color Imprint on Front 

40 Youth - Small,Med,Large - LONG Sleeve 4.95$                     4.51$                  4.45$               2.92$                 
125 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-LONG Sleeve 5.05$                     4.73$                  4.57$               4.63$                 
975 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-SHORT Sleeve 3.30$                     3.08$                  2.93$               3.05$                 
100 Adult -  XX Large-SHORT Sleeve 4.67$                     16.74$                3.98$               4.02$                 

withdrawn G2000B/2000
QUOTING ON STYLE: G200 / G240 G240B/G200 G2400B/2400 G200B, G240, G200

MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 32 SS & 10 LS See Attachment 28 Ls & 57 Ss All expt S. Green

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#2): 4,513.75$             N/A 4,004.00$       4,071.30$         

ITEM #3 -- 100% Cotton - Short Sleeve Shirts  (No Imprinting)
150 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge 2.75$                     2.54$                  2.53$               2.65$                 
25 Adult - XXLarge 4.05$                     3.61$                  3.58$               3.62$                 

QUOTING ON STYLE: G200 G200 G2000 G200
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 32 See Attachment 57 All (23)

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#3): 513.75$                471.25$             469.00$           488.00$            

ITEM #4 -- 50% Cotton/50% Polyester Blend 
Short Sleeve Shirts w/Two Colors Front & 1 Color Back

1300 Youth -Small, Medium, Large 3.35$                     3.19$                  3.59$               3.09$                 
1800 Adult - Small, Medium, Large, X-Large 3.35$                     3.34$                  3.73$               3.20$                 

QUOTING ON STYLE: G800 G 800B/G 800 G8000B/8000 G800B/G800
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 30 See Attachment 28 All (6)

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#4): 10,385.00$           10,159.00$        11,381.00$     9,777.00$         



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-34
Opening Date -- 10/2/07 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/3/07 100 % COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: Elite Medical Office Depot Impressive Screenprint
Products, Inc. Promotional Plus, Inc.

Products, LLC
EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #5 -- 100% Cotton - Two Color Imprint - Front & Back
Short Sleeve Shirts

1700 Adult-Small, Medium, Large, X-Large 3.50$                     3.72$                  4.43$               3.50$                 
250 Adult - XX-Large 4.67$                     4.79$                  5.48$               4.47$                 

QUOTING ON STYLE: G200 G200 G2000B/2000 G200
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 30 See Attachment 57 All

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#5): 7,117.50$             7,521.50$          8,901.00$       7,067.50$         

       ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS 42,382.50$           41,783.90$        44,494.25$     44,899.30$      

SAMPLES INCLUDED           Y or N No No No No
Sat  10 to 2

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Op 24 hours M-F 8 to 5 M-F  8 to 6 M-F 9 to 6
         Phone # 917-412-6181 248-961-0949 313-402-4020 800-749-3321

TERMS Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 Net 30
14 days after

GUARANTEED DELIVERY Blank Yes 2 weeks ARO art work

WARRANTY

EXCEPTIONS Blank See enclosed Blank Blank
proposed addedum
regarding legal
terms

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

G\:TeeshirtsBid ITB-COT 07-34

MANUFACTURER'S



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-34
Opening Date -- 10/2/07 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/3/07 100% COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: Quality Graphics McNish's Arrow Uniform,
Inc. Sporting Goods & LLC

Trophies, Inc.
CHECK # 21248929 On File 575029608
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #1-- 50/50 Short Sleeve Shirts
(50% Cotton & 50% Polyester w/One Color Imprint on Front)

4000 Youth - Small, Med,Large 2.75$                  2.99$                  2.94$                     
3300 Adult -  Small,Med,Large,Xlarge 2.75$                  2.95$                  2.94$                     
75 Adult -  XXLarge 4.00$                  3.92$                  4.11$                     
25 Adult - XXXLarge 4.00$                  3.99$                  4.24$                     

COST PER DIGIT: 0.25$                  0.40$                  2.31$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G 8000 G8000/B G8000/G800B
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 28 A / 26 Y Per Specs 28

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#1): 20,475.00$        22,088.75$        21,876.25$            

ITEM #2 -- 100% Cotton - Short and Long Sleeve  
One (1) Color Imprint on Front Fall/Winter Spring/Sum

40 Youth - Small,Med,Large - LONG Sleeve 4.75$                  4.79$                  5.15$                     6.29
125 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-LONG Sleeve 4.75$                  4.79$                  5.15$                     6.29
975 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-SHORT Sleeve 2.90$                  3.25$                  3.64$                     4.78
100 Adult -  XX Large-SHORT Sleeve 3.40$                  3.75$                  4.27$                     5.41

QUOTING ON STYLE: G 2000/ G2400 G2400/2000 G240/G240B G200
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 28 A / 15 Y Per Specs 28 56

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#2): 3,951.25$          4,334.10$          4,825.75$              6,239.35$ 

ITEM #3 -- 100% Cotton - Short Sleeve Shirts  (No Imprinting)
150 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge 2.25$                  2.20$                  2.78$                     
25 Adult - XXLarge 3.75$                  3.25$                  3.41$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G 2000 G2000 G200
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 57 A / 35 Y Per Specs 56

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#3): 431.25$             411.25$             502.25$                 

ITEM #4 -- 50% Cotton/50% Polyester Blend 
Short Sleeve Shirts w/Two Colors Front & 1 Color Back

1300 Youth -Small, Medium, Large 3.20$                  3.55$                  3.69$                     
1800 Adult - Small, Medium, Large, X-Large 3.20$                  3.50$                  3.69$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G 8000 G8000/B G800/G800B
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 28 A / 26 Y Per Specs 28

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#4): 9,920.00$          10,915.00$        11,439.00$            



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-34
Opening Date -- 10/2/07 BID TABULATION Pg 6 of 6
Date Prepared -- 10/3/07 100 % COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: Quality Graphics McNish's Arrow Uniform,
Inc. Sporting Goods & LLC

Trophies, Inc.
EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #5 -- 100% Cotton - Two Color Imprint - Front & Back
Short Sleeve Shirts Fall/ Winter Spring/Sum

1700 Adult-Small, Medium, Large, X-Large 5.75$                  4.43$                  5.02$                     4.68
250 Adult - XX-Large 7.25$                  4.63$                  5.65$                     5.31

QUOTING ON STYLE: G 2000 G2400/2000 G200 G200
MANUFACTURED BY: Gildan Gildan Gildan Gildan
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 57 Per Specs 56 See Chart

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#5): 11,587.50$        8,688.50$          9,946.50$              9,283.50$ 

       ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 46,365.00$        46,437.60$        64,112.60$            

SAMPLES INCLUDED           Y or N Yes No No

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Op M-F  8 to 5 8 am to 7 pm 24 Hours
         Phone # 586-504-5646 248-914-0080 313-903-2113

TERMS Net 30 Net 30 Blank
Between

GUARANTEED DELIVERY 2 weeks Yes  2 & 4 Weeks

WARRANTY

EXCEPTIONS Blank None Price quoted is 
based on qty's 

purchased in previous
years, etc.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Y or N Yes Yes Yes

G\:TeeshirtsBid ITB-COT 07-34

MANUFACTURER'S



campbellld
Text Box
F-04b

















































Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
July 10, 2008 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
  Sandra L. Kasperek, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: Contract Extension – Banking Services 
 
 
Background 

• On July 19, 1999, Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to Fifth Third Bank 
(formerly Old Kent Bank) for banking services with an option to renew the contract for 
three (3) additional years (Resolution #99-349-E-2c).  On May 6, 2002 the option was 
exercised for an additional three (3) year period (Resolution # 2002-05-288-E-2) under 
the same prices, terms, and conditions expiring September 30, 2005. On June 20, 2005 
Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to Fifth Third Bank for banking 
services (Resolution #2005-06-304-F-3). 

 
• Fifth Third Bank has offered to extend the contract for an additional three-year period 

beginning October 1, 2008, expiring October 1, 2011 under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions.  

 
• Fifth Third Bank was the recommended bidder as the result of a request for proposal 

process.  Their estimated total cost of banking services was substantially less than the 
other banks, which in turn required a substantially lower monthly compensating balance.   

 
• The current implementation of the New World Systems financial management platform 

is allowing efficiency improvements through integration with Fifth Third Bank. Some 
payments are already being made to vendors electronically saving supplies and staff 
time. 
 
 

 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
July 10, 2008 
 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Contract Extension – Banking Services 
 
 
Background:  continued 

• The City of Troy currently enjoys a good business relationship with Fifth Third Bank to 
uphold fiscal integrity and maintain high levels of service in a cost-effective manner.  
Since the last contract award, the Bank has constructed a new branch on Rochester 
Road. 

 
• Although pricing is just one factor in the selection process, the proposal submitted by 

Fifth Third Bank is significant in that mergers and acquisitions in the banking industry 
have generally resulted in higher fees for consumers and businesses.  

 
Financial Considerations 

• Costs for banking services are an offset to interest earnings and not a direct charge 
paid from a City account 

 
Legal  Considerations 

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations 

• Adoption will satisfy Goal II. 
 
Options 

• Staff recommends that City Council approve the contract extension with Fifth Third 
Bank under the same pricing, terms and conditions in place for the additional three-year 
period expiring October 1, 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
 
 
G:/Regular Business – Contract Extension – Banking Services 07.08.doc 









May 25, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/ Finance and Administration 
  James Nash, Financial Services Director 
  Sandra Kasperek, City Treasurer 

Jeanette Bennett, Director of Purchasing 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Bid Waiver - Contract Extension – Banking Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On July 19, 1999, Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to Fifth Third Bank 
(formerly Old Kent Bank) for banking services with an option to renew the contract for 
three (3) additional years (Resolution #99-349-E-2c).  On May 6, 2002 the option was 
exercised for an additional three (3) year period (Resolution # 2002-05-288-E-2) under 
the same prices, terms, and conditions expiring September 30, 2005.   
 
City management recommends the contract be extended with Fifth Third Bank for 
banking services expiring October 1, 2008.  Fifth Third Bank has offered to extend the 
contract under the same prices, terms, and conditions with a fee reduction in two areas.  
They have offered to reduce the monthly maintenance charge for Controlled 
Disbursement Accounts 50% from $100.00 per account per month to $50.00 per 
account per month.  Secondly, they have offered a 16.6% reduction in the deposit fee 
from $.60 per deposit to $.50 per deposit. 
 
Also, the original resolution granted approval to negotiate with Fifth Third Bank to 
provide additional banking services, as the City was ready to implement them.  Since 
the beginning of the contract, we have added lock box services and a procurement card 
program.  The implementation of the Procurement Card Program was approved by City 
Council on August 6, 2001 [Resolution #2001-08-404(a)]. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The recommendation to extend the contract with Fifth Third Bank is made for the 
following reasons: 
 

• Fifth Third Bank (formerly Old Kent Bank) was the recommended bidder as the 
result of a request for proposal process.  The estimated total cost of banking 
services was substantially less than the other banks, which in turn required a 
substantially lower monthly compensating balance.   

 
Both factors were in the City’s best interests in 1999, and since the same prices, 
terms, and conditions are being proposed to be extended from that time, would 
continue to be in the City’s best interests. 

 
     Page 1 of 2



 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – Contract Extension – Banking Services 
Page 2 of 2 
 
BACKGROUND - continued 

• Staff recommends extending the contract with Fifth Third since several banking 
products have been implemented to enhance payment collections.  A partial list 
of these products include lock box collection for tax and water payments, auto-
debit program for water bills and recreation fees, and credit card services for 
recreation fees (i.e. educational and fitness programs, golf course fees, etc).   All 
of these products require the joint effort of staff from both the City of Troy and 
Fifth Third Bank in the process of integrating appropriate technology, 
implementing security procedures, creating and printing forms, training end-users 
to work with features of new software packages, developing reporting 
procedures, and maintaining feedback for optimal performance.  

 
Changing banking services at this time would divert staff time to a very complex 
task of discontinuing current services and procedures, establishing new services 
at a new banking institution, implementing new software, and educating all users.  
Furthermore, not only would the payment collection products be affected, but 
also the products used for internal purposes such as payroll, accounts 
receivable, accounts payable, investing etc.  Clearly, a change of this magnitude 
would impact the services we offer our customers and employees. 
 

• The implementation of the Procurement Card Program is relatively new 
(approved Aug 2001) and required training all participants to learn on-line 
account reconciliation. 

 
New banking services would require the City to implement a new card program 
and require all cardholders to be retrained in the use of new software and 
processes, which increases the opportunity for errors as cardholders would need 
to become familiar with another reporting system.  

 
MARKET SURVEY 
The City of Troy currently enjoys a good business relationship with Fifth Third Bank to 
uphold fiscal integrity and maintain high levels of service in a cost-effective manner.   
 
Although pricing is just one factor in the selection process, the proposal submitted by 
Fifth Third was substantially lower than the other banks submitting proposals at the time 
of the last RFP and still holds true based on a recent informal survey. 
 
BUDGET 
Costs for banking services are an offset to interest earnings and not a direct charge 
paid from a City account. 
 

































campbellld
Text Box
F-06





campbellld
Text Box
F-07











campbellld
Text Box
F-08

























campbellld
Text Box
F-09























campbellld
Text Box
F-10





 

 
 
TO:   Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE:  July 16, 2008 
SUBJECT: Proposed New Liquor License Ordinance  

 
  
City Administration has been working on revisions to Troy’s Liquor License Ordinance for 
some time.  When City Council rescinded several of its earlier resolutions, in connection with 
the new Buffalo Wild Wings, this became a high priority item.     
 
The Liquor Advisory Committee was provided with the draft, and made a few revisions at their 
July 14, 2008 meeting.  These draft proposed revisions are highlighted in the attached red line 
version of the proposed Liquor License ordinance.  Your input on these suggested revisions is 
greatly appreciated.     
 
The proposed ordinance is provided as a green item for your review and consideration.  
Absent objections from City Council, this item will be brought back as an action item for the 
August 11, 2008 City Council meeting.   
 
In the meantime, if Council has any questions or concerns about the proposed language, 
please feel free to contact me.    
      

MMEEMMOORRAANNDDUUMM  

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



DRAFT with LAC Recommendations 
 
 
Chapter _____: Liquor Licenses 
 

1. Definitions. The following definitions shall apply in this Chapter.  
 

a. “Alcoholic Liquor” shall mean any beverages or compounds containing 
one-half of one percent or more of alcohol by volume, which is used for 
human consumption. For purposes of this chapter, the term includes 
beer, wine, and spirits. 

 
b. “Assembly or convention center” shall mean a facility that provides a 

demonstrated public purpose which is equipped with a bona fide 
restaurant or food service and seating capacity that accommodates 
more than 1,000 persons in banquet style. 

 
c. “License” shall mean a license issued by the Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission to sell alcoholic liquor for consumption on or off the 
premises. 

 
d. “Licensee” shall mean all persons, including their agents, servants and 

employees, holding a license to sell alcoholic liquor for consumption on 
or off the premises; 

 
e. “Licensed Premises” shall mean the location where the licensee is 

authorized to sell alcoholic liquor on or off the premises; 
 

f. “Persons” shall mean an individual, firm, partnership, limited partnership, 
association, limited liability company, or corporation. 

 
g. “Premises” shall mean the location for which a license has been issued 

by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 

h. “Quota license” shall mean one of a specific number of licenses 
available to the City of Troy based on population which may be issued 
by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to sell alcoholic liquor. 

 
i. “Related Permit” shall mean any permit issued by the Michigan Liquor 

Control Commission to a licensee for entertainment or other activities at 
the licensed premises, which legally require such a permit. 

 
j. “SDD” shall mean Specially Designated Distributor which is a person to 

whom the Michigan Liquor Control Commission grants a license to sell 
beer or wine, or both, at retail for consumption off the premises. 

 



 2 

k. “SDM” shall mean Specially Designated Merchant which is a person 
engaged in an established business licensed by the Michigan Liquor 
Control Commission to distribute spirits and mixed spirit drink in the 
original package for consumption off the premises. 

 
l. “Sale” shall mean, the exchange, barter, traffic, furnishing, or giving 

away of alcoholic liquor which is regulated by the Michigan Liquor 
Control Act and this Chapter. 

 
2. Liquor License Required.   No person shall engage in the business of 

selling alcoholic liquor for consumption on or off the premises in the City of 
Troy or elsewhere without first obtaining the appropriate liquor license as 
set forth in the Michigan Liquor Control Act. 

 
3. City Council Approval; Applications for new and transferred licenses. 

 
a. No person shall sell alcoholic liquor for consumption on the premises in 

the City of Troy without obtaining the approval of City Council of the 
application for a new or transferred license. 

 
b.  City Council may deny approval of an available quota license if it is in 

the best interest of the public.  This determination may include 
consideration of future development opportunities. 

 
c. City Council approval is required for new or transferred applications for 

gas stations or businesses with fuel pumps that are seeking SDM or 
SDD licenses. 

 
d. Except as set forth above, City Council approval is not necessarily 

required for new or transferred applications for special licenses, club 
licenses, 24 hour licenses, or off premises SDM or SDD licenses.   
However, each club license request and each SDM or SDD license 
request shall be submitted to Troy’s Liquor Advisory Board for a 
recommendation to the Troy City Council.  City Council may then make a 
recommendation of approval or denial or highlight special concerns 
about each such license application to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission.   

 
4. City Council Approval; Gas Stations and/or businesses with fuel pumps. 

 
a. Both of the following shall be established for any applicant seeking City 

Council approval for a liquor license for a gas station and/or a business 
with fuel pumps:   

 
1.)The site of payment and selection of alcoholic liquor shall be at 
least 50 feet from that point where motor fuel is dispensed; and  



 3 

 
2.) The applicant must establish that one or both of the following 
conditions exist and will continue to exist:   

 
(i) The applicant or licensee is located in a 
      neighborhood shopping center composed of  
      1 or more commercial establishments organized 
      or operated as a unit which is related in location, 
      size, and type of shop to the trade area that the  
      unit serves, which provides not less than 50,000 
 square feet of gross leasable retail space, and which 
      provides 5 private off-street parking spaces for each 

1,000 square feet of gross leasable retail space; 
and/or 
 

(ii) At all times, the applicant or licensee maintains a 
minimum inventory  on the premises of not less than 
$250,000.00 (at cost) of those goods and 
merchandise customarily marketed by approved types 
of businesses,  excluding alcoholic liquor and motor 
vehicle fuel.    

 
A.) Services, prizes, offers, contests, 

coupons, and other items which require 
purchase before a cash value attaches 
shall not be considered inventory. 

 
B.) The applicant or licensee shall allow 

inspection of the inventory at the 
licensed premises during regular 
business hours by the Director of 
Building and Zoning or his/her designee, 
the Treasurer or Finance Director or 
his/her designee, or the Troy Police 
Department. 

 
C.) Upon a verbal or written request of the 

City, the applicant or licensee shall 
produce documents and/or records of the 
cost of inventory on the premises on a 
specific date.  If the applicant or licensee 
fails to produce such documents or 
records, or if the documentation 
presented does not contain enough 
information to determine if the inventory 
is based on cost, within 3 days of the 



 4 

request, then there shall be a rebuttable 
presumption that the inventory on that 
specific date was below the $250,000 
minimum requirement of this Chapter, 
which can be raised in any legal 
proceeding.  

 
b. Failure to satisfy the requirements of sub-section 1.) and sub-section 2.), 

as set forth above, will result in a denial recommendation from the Troy 
City Council.  In the event that a gas station or business with gas pumps 
is granted a liquor license by the State of Michigan, the failure to 
continuously satisfy the requirements of sub-section 1.) and sub-section 
2.), as set forth above, will result in a recommendation for revocation or 
other adverse action against the liquor license.      

  
5. City Council approval; Related permits. 

  
No person shall engage in entertainment, dancing or other activities at 
the licensed premises within the City of Troy without first having 
obtained the approval of City Council of the application for the related 
permit, and obtaining any necessary permits from the Michigan Liquor 
Control Commission.  City Council shall take action on all requests for 
entertainment, dance, topless activity, or banquet facility permits, and 
shall forward their resolution to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission.    

 
6. Application; Application Requirements; Administrative Review. 

 
a. Subsequent to filing an application for a liquor license with the Michigan 

Liquor Control Commission and upon being notified by the Troy Police 
Department that such documentation has been received by the City, the 
applicant shall submit to the Police Department a fully completed “City of 
Troy Liquor License Application” on the form that is prepared and 
furnished by the Department. 

 
b. The application shall include at least the following information: 

 
i. Name and address of applicant.  If the applicant is a 

partnership, the name and address of each partner shall be 
provided, and a copy of any partnership agreement attached. 
If the applicant is a privately held corporation, the name and 
address of each corporate officer, member of board of 
directors, and stockholder shall be provided, and a copy of the 
articles of incorporation attached. If the applicant is a publicly 
held corporation, the name and address of each corporate 
officer, each member of the board of directors and each 



 5 

stockholder who owns five percent or more of the corporate 
stock shall be provided. If the applicant is a limited liability 
company, the name and address of each member, manager 
and assignee of membership interest shall be provided, and 
the articles of organization attached. 

 
ii. Type of license or related permit(s) desired. 

 
iii. Address of the property where the license or permit activities 

will occur.   
 

iv. Three (3) written references as to the applicant’s character, 
experience, and financial ability to meet the obligations and 
business undertakings for which the license is to be issued. 

 
v. Any other information pertinent to the applicant and operation 

of the proposed facility. 
 

vi. The application shall be accompanied by a non-refundable 
application and investigation fee, in the amount that is set forth 
in Chapter 60 of the City of Troy Ordinances.   

 
c. By submitting an application to the City of Troy, the applicant is agreeing 

to a complete background investigation, including, but not limited to: 
fingerprinting of applicant and any individual listed in Section 6. b.; an 
investigation of any criminal activities; civil actions; actions or 
investigations by other governmental bodies; moral character; business 
reputation; or any other background areas deemed necessary by the 
Troy Police Department investigators. 

 
d.  City Council shall not take any action on a  liquor license or related 

permit application until the application for said license or related permit 
has been timely reviewed by the following:    

 
i. Police Department  

 
ii. Fire Department  

 
iii. Treasurer 

 
iv. Building Inspection Department 

 
v. Planning Department  

 
e. The Chief of Police or his/her designee shall coordinate the 

administrative review process, and shall submit the documentation to the 



 6 

Liquor Advisory Committee for a recommendation, pursuant to Section 
13 of this Chapter. Within 60 days of the Liquor Advisory Committee 
recommendation, the application and supporting documentation shall be 
forwarded to the Troy City Council for action.    

 
7. Criteria for Approving Liquor Licenses and Related Permits. 

 
City Council shall consider all of the following factors in determining whether 
to approve a new or transferred liquor license or related permit: 

 
a. The applicant’s experience in operating other similarly licensed 

businesses. 
 

b. The applicant’s general business management experience. 
 

c. The applicant’s general business reputation. 
 

d. The applicant’s moral character. 
 

e.  Past convictions of the applicant for any of the following: 
 

i) A felony. 
ii) A crime involving the excessive use of alcoholic liquor. 
iii) A crime involving any of the following: 

a) Gambling. 
b) Prostitution. 
c) Weapons. 
d) Violence. 
e) Tax evasion. 
f) Fraudulent activity. 
g) Controlled substances. 
h) Serious moral turpitude. 

iv) A misdemeanor of such a nature that is may impair the 
ability of the applicant to operate a licensed business in a 
safe and competent manner. 

v) Sentencing for any of the offenses specified in this section 
after a plea of nolo contendre. 

 
f. The applicant’s excessive use of alcoholic liquor. 

 
g. The history of non-payment or late payment of taxes by the applicant. 

 
h. The type of service, menu, or entertainment offered. 

 
i. The overall theme, atmosphere, or ambience of the proposed business. 

 



 7 

h. The proposed hours and days of operation. 
 

i.    The need for proposed business in the particular area. 
 

The proximity of the proposed business to other similarly licensed 
businesses. 

 
The proximity of the proposed business to a residentially zoned or used 
zoning district.   

 
The diversification or uniqueness of the proposed business in the City. 

  
The overall fit and compatibility with the Master Plan of the City. 

 
The compatibility of the proposed business with surrounding uses. 

 
The impact of the business on police and code enforcement. 

 
The effect that the issuance of a license would have upon the economic 
development of the area. 

 
The effect the establishment will have upon vehicular and pedestrian traffic.  

 
The effect that the proposed business would have upon the surrounding 
neighborhood and/or business establishments, including impacts upon 
residential areas, churches, schools, and public parks.  (Note:  See 8.c. 
below) 

 
Whether the proposed activities on the premises will have a deleterious 
effect on the surrounding neighborhood.  

 
Any other factors that may affect the health, welfare, and/or safety of the 
general public. 

 
Any other factors that City Council may deem proper provided such 
considerations are reasonable under all of the circumstances. 

 
 

8. Restrictions on Licenses and Related Permits. 
 

a. No license or related permit shall be issued to: 
 

i. A person whose previous liquor license and/or related 
permit(s) were revoked for cause. 
 



 8 

ii. A person who does not meet the ordinance requirements, 
even if previously granted a liquor license and/or related 
permit(s).    
 

iii. A co-partnership, unless all of the members of such co-
partnership qualify to obtain a license. 
 

iv. A corporation if any officer, manager or director or a stock 
owner or stockholders owning more than 5 percent of the 
stock of such corporation would not be eligible to receive a 
license or related permit.  
 

v. A person whose place of business is operated by a manager 
or agent, unless such manager or agent possesses 
qualifications similar to those required of the licensee. 
 

vi. A person who has been convicted or found responsible for a 
violation of any federal, state, or local law involving moral 
turpitude, fraud, violence, controlled substances, or alcoholic 
liquors. 
 

vii. A person who does not own the premises for which a license 
is sought or does not have a lease therefore for the full period 
for which the license is issued. 
 

b. No license or related permit shall be issued when there exists a violation 
of the applicable building, electrical, mechanical, plumbing, or fire 
prevention codes, applicable zoning regulations, or applicable public 
health regulations.  

 
c. No on-premises license shall be issued to sell alcoholic beverages at 

retail, or a request to transfer location of an existing license shall be 
denied, if the contemplated location is within 500 feet of a church or a 
school building.  The distance between the church or  school building 
and the contemplated location shall be measured along the center line of 
the street or streets of address between 2 fixed points on the center line 
determined by projecting straight lines, at right angles to the center line, 
from the part of the church or school building nearest to the 
contemplated location and from the part of the contemplated location 
nearest to the church or school building. 
 

d. Prior to the issuance or transfer of any liquor license and/or related 
permit by the State of Michigan Liquor Control Commission, the 
applicant or transferee shall sign a contract with the City of Troy 
agreeing to assure compliance with any and all restrictions and/or 
conditions placed on the licenses and/or related permit and compliance 



 9 

with statutes and regulations of the State of Michigan and the City of 
Troy Code of Ordinances, regulations and conditions. The licensee or 
holder of any permits shall post the restrictions and/or conditions with the 
license and/or permits issued by the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission in a conspicuous place within the facility. 

 
9. Required Restaurant Operation Affiliation.   On premises license or related 

permit applications must be in connection with and incidental to a bona 
fide restaurant operation, which shall be determined by the Troy City 
Council in its sole discretion, or an assembly or a convention center use.    

 
10. Annual License Review.  City Council may undertake an annual review of 

any license for purposes of making recommendations to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission regarding renewal or revocation of any 
license. City Council may also review a license more frequently if 
warranted by the circumstances.    

 

11. License Revocation.  Each licensed premises within the City shall be 
operated and maintained in accordance with all applicable laws, 
ordinances and regulations. Upon any violation of any federal or state law 
or regulation, or any city ordinance, the City Council may, after a notice 
and hearing, request the Michigan Liquor Control Commission revoke 
such license or refuse to renew such license, as set forth below.     

 
12. Procedure for License Review. 

a. Before filing any objection to renewal or request for revocation of a 
license or related permit with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
City Council shall serve the licensee with a notice of hearing, sent by 
first class mail at least seven days prior to hearing, which notice shall 
contain the following:  

i.  Notice of proposed action.  

ii. Reasons for the proposed action.  

iii. Date, time and place of hearings. 

iv. A statement that the licensee may present evidence, 
testimony, and/or confront adverse witnesses.  

b. This hearing shall be open to the public and notice of said public 
hearing shall be mailed to each residence and business within 500 
feet of the boundary line of the property of the licensed 
establishment, and shall be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City of Troy. 



 10 

c. Following the hearing, City Council shall submit to the licensee and 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission a written statement of its 
findings and determination. 

 

13. Criteria for Review.  After a public hearing, City Council may recommend 
non-renewal or revocation of a license or related permit to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission upon a determination, based upon a 
preponderance of the evidence, that any of the following exist:  

a. Violation of any of the restrictions on licenses set forth in any law or 
ordinance or statute and the administrative rules or provision of the 
Michigan Liquor Control Act.   

b. Maintenance of a nuisance upon the licensed premises, including, 
but not limited to, any of the following:  

i. Existing violations of building, zoning, plumbing, 
mechanical, electrical, health, fire prevention or regulatory 
codes.  

ii. A pattern of patron conduct in the neighborhood of the 
licensed establishment which is in violation of the law or 
disturbs the peace, order and tranquility of the 
neighborhood. 

iii. The failure to maintain the grounds and exterior of the 
licensed establishment by allowing litter, debris, and/or 
refuse to be deposited on the property or adjoining 
properties. 

iv. Providing entertainment without the required permit or 
entertainment which disturbs the peace, order and 
tranquility of the neighborhood. 

v. Any advertising, promotion or activity which by its nature 
causes, creates or contributes to disorder, disobedience 
to rules, ordinances or laws, or contributes to the 
disruption of normal activity of those in the neighborhood 
of the licensed establishment. 

c. An off- premises licensee has sold alcoholic liquor on at least 3 
separate occasions in a single calendar year to a person who is 
less than 21 years of age.  

d.  An on- premises licensee has sold alcoholic liquor to a person who 
is less than 21 years of age. 

 
14. Liquor Advisory Committee. 

a. It is the responsibility of the City of Troy Liquor Advisory Committee to 
make a recommendation to City Council as to whether it should 



 11 

approve a liquor license or related permit. In making its 
recommendation, the Liquor Advisory Committee shall follow the rules, 
guidelines, and procedures set forth in this ordinance.  

b. City Council may grant the Liquor Advisory Committee authority to 
conduct review or revocation hearings by a resolution. If such authority 
is granted, the Liquor Advisory Committee shall follow the procedures 
as set forth in sections 10 thru 13 of this Chapter.  

i. Upon completion of the hearing, the Liquor Advisory 
Committee shall make a written statement of its findings and 
submit to City Council a recommendation as to renewal or 
revocation within 14 days after the hearing.  

ii. Upon receiving the Liquor Advisory Committee’s 
recommendation, and reviewing its written statement of 
findings, City Council shall pass a resolution, which shall 
either:  

a. Accept the recommendation of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee.  

b. Reject the recommendation of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee. 

c. Hold another hearing at a later date to be determined by 
City Council. If another hearing is held, City Council shall 
follow all rules set forth in Sections 11 and 12 of this 
chapter, and the decision made by City Council shall be 
final.    

 
15. Violation and Penalty.  In addition to any other sanction set forth in this 

Chapter, any person, whether acting as an individual, owner, manager, 
employee of the owner, or whether acting as an agent or independent 
contractor for the owner, employee or operator, or acting as a participant 
or worker in any way directly or indirectly who operates a business without 
first obtaining a license as set out above or who violates any of the 
provisions of this Chapter  is guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction 
shall be punished by imprisonment for a period not to exceed ninety (90) 
days and/or a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00), plus costs 
as within the discretion of the Court. Each day that a violation is permitted 
to exist shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                     MARCH 10, 2008  

 Page 1 of 4 

A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, March 
10, 2008 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: David S. Ogg  

Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ogg and Ukrainec 
 
Resolution #LC2008-03-007  
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ogg and Ukrainec at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of March 10, 2008 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Ukrainec 
 

 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of February 11, 2008 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2008-03-008 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 11, 2008 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Ukrainec 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                     MARCH 10, 2008  

 Page 2 of 4 

 

 
Agenda Items 
 
1. AMC Troy, Inc. requesting to transfer ownership of escrowed 2007 Class C 

licensed business with Official Permit (Food), from Kingsway LLC; transfer 
location, governmental unit under MCL 436.1531(1), from 43155 Main, 
Suite 208, Novi, Michigan 48375, to 1873 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, 
Michigan 48083, Oakland County; requesting a new outdoor service (1 
area), new entertainment permit, new SDM license, to be held in 
conjunction.  {MLCC Req #434767}  

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Michael Ansley, franchisee 
of Buffalo Wild Wings of the metropolitan Detroit and Florida markets.   
 
Buffalo Wild Wings opened its first location in Columbus, Ohio in 1982.  Mr. Ansley 
has been a franchisee for 12 years.  He currently owns several restaurants, 
including Sterling Heights, Warren, Ferndale, Novi, Fenton, Grand Blanc, and 
Petoskey.  Management for the Troy location will be transferred from his other 
restaurants.  Training will be done by both corporate and internal teams.  They 
require that all servers be 21 years of age and attend the “Serve Safe” alcohol 
training.  In his 12 years of business, Mr. Ansley has received only one liquor 
violation.  The parking was questioned by a committee member and Mr. Ansley 
replied that the landlord has obtained a parking variance for the site.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster informed the Committee of a 1993 City Council 
Resolution stating that there cannot be two facilities with Class C licenses and 
entertainment permits within 3,000 feet of each other.  The City Attorney’s office is 
of the opinion that it is timely for City Council to review this Resolution in light of 
the high density trend in Troy.  Also, the City now has an adult business use 
ordinance which we did not have when this Resolution went into effect.   
 
Sergeant Cantlon reported that his investigation found only one liquor violation and 
that occurred in 2002 in Novi. 
 
Resolution #LC2008-03-009 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that AMC Troy, Inc. be allowed to transfer ownership of escrowed 
2007 Class C licensed business with Official Permit (Food), from Kingsway LLC; 
transfer location, governmental unit under MCL 436.1531(1), from 43155 Main, 
Suite 208, Novi, Michigan 48375, to 1873 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 
48083, Oakland County; be granted a new outdoor service (1 area), new 
entertainment permit, new SDM license, to be held in conjunction.   
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                     MARCH 10, 2008  

 Page 3 of 4 

Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Ukrainec 
 
 

 
 
2. Somerset Collection Limited Partnership requests to transfer ownership 

of 2007 Class C licensed business located in escrow at 2801 West Big 
Beaver Road, Somerset Collection, Suite J-230, Troy, Michigan 48084, 
Oakland County, from Sebastian’s Ltd.; with license to be held in escrow. 
{MLCC Req #416257} 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Patrick Howe of Carlin, 
Edwards, Brown & Howe. 
 
This request is for a license transfer to the owners of the Somerset Collection.  
They have no intention of activating the license.  Several years ago, Sebastian’s 
Restaurant closed and there is a lease provision which states that the liquor 
license would revert back to the landlord if the tenant vacated.  The license has 
been surrendered to the landlord, and the landlord would like to hold on to the 
license for “record purposes” to hold it in escrow until they find a tenant within the 
mall.  The MLCC regulations state that the license can be held in escrow for five 
years. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster suggested that the Committee make their 
recommendation to City Council with the stipulation that when the license comes 
out of escrow, the City of Troy be entitled to its standard investigation. 
 
Resolution #LC2008-03-010 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that Somerset Collection Limited Partnership be allowed to transfer 
ownership of 2007 Class C licensed business located in escrow at 2801 West Big 
Beaver Road, Somerset Collection, Suite J-230, Troy, Michigan 48084, Oakland 
County, from Sebastian’s Ltd.; with license to be held in escrow, with the 
stipulation that when the license comes out of escrow, the City of Troy be entitled 
to its standard investigation.  
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Ukrainec 
 
 

 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                     MARCH 10, 2008  

 Page 4 of 4 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY    FINAL  March 20, 2008 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES                     

  
 

 

The meeting w as called to order at 3:04 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Council 

Boardroom by Chair, Bruce Wilberding.   

 

Members Present:  Jim Campbell*  

Art Cotsonika 

Victor Lenivov  

Robert Sw artz 

Lon Ullmann 

Bruce Wilberding (Chairman) 

 

Members Absent: Katherine Lee 

Philip Sanzica (arrived @ 3:06 p.m.) 

 

Also Present:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic 

Development Services 

   Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 

Mark Miller, Planning Director 

James Nash, Finance Director 

Patt i Holland, Real Estate and Development Secretary 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Brow nfield Plan #5 – Pavilions of  Troy 

 

Presentat ion given by Hunter Richardson, Paul Bohn and Rick Rattner on the 

Pavilions of  Troy –  Brow nfield Plan #5.  The Board w ill review  the Plan and meet  

again on March 31, 2008. 

 

 

EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 

 

Resolut ion # BRA – 08-01 

Moved by:   Ullmann 

Seconded by: Sanzica 

 

Yeas:   All (5) 

Absent: Lee 

 

RESOLVED, That Lee be excused. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

None 

 

 

*  Jim Campbell not  a board member.  Term effect ive 05/01/08. 

 

 

The meeting w as adjourned at 4:37 p.m. 

 

The next regular scheduled meeting is April 15, 2008 in the Council Boardroom. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bruce Wilberding, Chair 

 

 

Mark Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 

 

 

 

 

 
BRA Special Meeting Minutes 03-20-08 



BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  FINAL  March 31, 2008 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES                       

                                                         

 

The meeting w as called to order at 10:05 a.m. at Troy City Hall, Council 

Boardroom by Bruce Wilberding.   

 

 

Members Present:  Jim Campbell*  

Art Cotsonika 

Victor Lenivov  

Robert Sw artz 

Philip Sanzica 

Lon Ullmann 

Bruce Wilberding (Chairman) 

 

Members Absent: Katherine Lee 

  

Also Present:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic 

Development Services  

   Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 

Mark Miller, Planning Director 

Patt i Holland, Real Estate and Development Secretary 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
A. Presentation on Brownfield Plan #5 – Pavilions of Troy 
 
Presentation given by Rick Rattner and Paul Bohn on the Pavilions of Troy – 
Brownfield Plan #5 followed with discussion from the Board regarding the Agreement.  
 
 
B. Brownfield Tax Increment Financing Reimbursement Agreement Resolution 

for Brownfield Plan # 5 - Pavilions of Troy 
 

 

Resolut ion # BRA-08-02 

Moved by:   Sanzica 

Seconded by: Campbell*  

 
WHEREAS, on March 20, 2008, the City of Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
(TBRA) was presented with the March 17, 2008 draft of proposed Brownfield Plan #5, 
Brownfield Plan for the Pavilions of Troy Redevelopment Project; and  
  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



WHEREAS, the TBRA had the opportunity to review the concepts of the TBRA 
Brownfield Plan #5, as well as to ask questions and obtain additional details about 
the plan at the March 20, 2008 TRBA meeting; and  
  
WHEREAS, the TBRA also had the opportunity to review a proposed Brownfield 
Reimbursement Agreement between the TBRA and the developer, Diamond Troy JV, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company; and  
  
WHEREAS, the final authority for the approval of the TBRA Brownfield Plan #5 rests 
with the Troy City Council, after public notice and a public hearing, which is 
anticipated to be scheduled on April 21, 2008.   
  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the TBRA recommends approval of the 
TBRA Brownfield Plan #5, Brownfield Plan for the Pavilions of Troy Redevelopment 
Project, since the proposed plan is permitted under the recent amendments to PA 
1996, No. 381 (MCL 125.2651 et. seq.), which allows for eligible activities, including 
the demolition of structures and lead and asbestos abatement, on eligible properties 
that are functionally obsolete; and  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the TBRA has determined that the proposed 
Brownfield Plan #5 constitutes a public purpose under PA 1996, No. 381 (MCL 
125.2651), and recommends that Troy City Council concur in this determination; and  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the TBRA has determined that the proposed 
Brownfield Plan #5 satisfies all of the statutory requirements for a Brownfield Plan, as 
set forth in Section 13 of the Act (MCL 125.2663), and recommends that Troy City 
Council concur in this determination; and  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the TBRA has determined that the proposed 
method of financing the costs of the eligible activities, as described in the proposed 
Brownfield Plan #5, are reasonable and necessary to carry out the purposes of PA 
1996, No. 381 (MCL 125.2651), and recommends that Troy City Council concur in 
this determination; and  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the TBRA has determined that the amount of 
captured taxable value estimated to result from the adoption or approval of TBRA 
Brownfield Plan #5 is reasonable, and recommends that Troy City Council concur in 
this determination; and  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the approval of Brownfield Plan #5, the 
TBRA also recommends approval of a Brownfield Reimbursement Agreement that 
provides for reimbursement of the Developer's costs for eligible activities on eligible 
properties from the tax increment capture for the Property, in an amount not to 
exceed $8,440,000.00, plus actual interest expense, as long as the total amount of 
reimbursement does not exceed $13,200,000.00, provided that the capture of the 
TBRA controlled millages (SMART, ISD) shall not exceed $3,872,203.00, and shall 
not be captured for a period that exceeds 20 years; and  
  



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of the TBRA Brownfield Plan #5, and the 
Brownfield Reimbursement Agreement, shall incorporate the changes discussed at 
the TBRA meeting of March 31, 2008, and that the revised TBRA Brownfield Plan #5 
and the Brownfield Reimbursement Agreement shall be distributed to TBRA 
members on or before April 8, 2008, to allow for TBRA final review before submittal 
to Troy City Council.  
 
 

Yes:      Campbell*, Cotsonika, Sanzica, Wilberding  
No:       Lenivov, Swartz, Ullmann 
Absent:   Lee 
 
MOTION FAILED 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution # BRA-08-03 
Moved by:  Ullmann 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
Yeas:  All (6) 
Absent: Lee 
 
RESOLVED, That Lee be excused. 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mary Ann Bernardi and Frank Howrylak commented on Brownfield Plan # 5 – 
Pavilions of Troy. 

 

 

*  Jim Campbell not  a board member. Term effect ive 05/01/08. 

 

 

The meeting w as adjourned at 2:08 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

The next meeting scheduled is April 15, 2008. 

 

 

Bruce Wilberding, Chairman 

 

 

Mark Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 
BRA Special Meeting Minutes   

03-31-08 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01d





BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY    April 15, 2008 
FINAL MEETING MINUTES                       

                                                         

 
The meeting was called to order at 3:07 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Council Boardroom by 
Bruce Wilberding.   
 
 
Members Present:  Art Cotsonika 

Victor Lenivov  
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Swartz 
Lon Ullmann 
Bruce Wilberding (Chairman) 

 
Members Absent: Katherine Lee 
  
Also Present:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development 

Services  
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 

Mark Miller, Planning Director 
Patti Holland, Real Estate and Development Secretary 

 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # BRA 08-04 
Moved by:  Wilberding 
Seconded by: Lenivov 
 
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA approve the minutes of April 17, 2007. 
 
Yeas:  All (6) 
Absent: Lee 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 
Resolution # BRA-08-05 
Moved by:  Sanzica 
Seconded by: Wilberding 
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA approve the minutes of March 20, 2008. 
 
 
Yeas:  Cotsonika, Sanzica, Wilberding 
Nays:  Lenivov, Swartz, Ullmann 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



Absent: Lee 
 
MOTION FAILED 
  
 
Resolution # BRA 08-06 
Moved by:  Lenivov  
Seconded by: Cotsonika   
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA table the March 20, 2008 and March 31, 2008 minutes for 
approval at the July 15, 2008 regular meeting. 
 
Yeas:  All (6) 
Absent: Lee 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Brownfield Plan #5 – Pavilions of Troy 
 
Hunter Richardson presented an overview of Plan # 5 followed with discussion from 
the board regarding changes to the plan.  Old Business will resume after changes are 
made to an exhibit.   
  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Michele Hodges, Bill Cowger and Frank Howrylak addressed the board with 
comments regarding Brownfield Plan # 5 – Pavilions of Troy. 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Proposed 2008/09 Budget 
 
Resolution # BRA 08-07 
Moved by:  Sanzica 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, that the Board approve the 2008/09 Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority budget. 
 
Yeas:  All (6) 
Absent: Lee  
 
MOTION PASSED 
 



 
B. Election of Officers 
 
Resolution # BRA 08-08 
Moved by:  Lenivov 
Seconded by: Ullmann 

 
RESOLVED, that Bruce Wilberding is re-elected as Chair, Art Cotsonika as Vice Chair 
and Mark Miller as Secretary/Treasurer. 
 
Yeas:  All (6) 
Absent: Lee   
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Victor Lenivov asked that “Legislative Updates” be placed on all further agendas. 
 
Art Cotsonika addressed the length of agendas and e-mailing vs. mailing. 
 
Brian Murphy updated the board on the progress of the Brownfield website and that 
two members are resigning to move to the Planning Commission. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS (cont.) 
 
A. Brownfield Plan #5 – Pavilions of Troy  
 
Resolution # BRA 08-09 
Moved by:  Sanzica 
Seconded by: Wilberding 
 
WHEREAS, on March 20, 2008, the City of Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
(TBRA) was initially presented with the March 17, 2008 draft of proposed Brownfield 
Plan #5, Brownfield Plan for the Pavilions of Troy Redevelopment Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, the TBRA had the opportunity to review the concepts of the TBRA 
Brownfield Plan #5, as well as to ask questions and obtain additional details about 
the Plan at the March 20, 2008 TBRA meeting, and the March 31, 2008 TBRA 
meeting, and the April 15, 2008 TBRA meeting; and  
 
WHEREAS, the TBRA also had the opportunity to review a proposed Brownfield 
Reimbursement Agreement between the TBRA and the developer, Diamond Troy JV, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company; and  
 



WHEREAS, the final authority for the approval of TBRA Brownfield Plan #5 rests with 
the Troy City Council, after public notice and a public hearing, and the public hearing 
has been noticed and scheduled for April 21, 2008.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the TBRA recommends approval of the 
TBRA Brownfield Plan # 5, Brownfield Plan for the Pavilions of Troy Redevelopment 
Project, since the proposed plan is permitted under the recent amendments to PA 
1996, No. 381 (MCL 125.2651 et. seq.), which allows for eligible activities, including 
the demolition of structures and lead and asbestos abatement, on eligible properties 
that are functionally obsolete; and     
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the TBRA has reviewed the proposed Brownfield 
Plan #5, which provides the information that is statutorily required for Brownfield 
Plans, as set forth in Section 13 of the Act (MCL 125.2663), and recommends that 
the Troy City Council concur in this determination; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the TBRA has reviewed proposed Brownfield 
Plan #5, which details a proposed method of financing the costs of eligible activities 
which is reasonable and in furtherance of the purposes of the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Act, PA 1996, No. 381, and recommends that the Troy City Council 
concur in this determination; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the TBRA has reviewed the estimated costs of 
eligible activities, which are included in Brownfield Plan #5, and has determined that 
these costs are reasonable and in furtherance of the purposes of the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Act, PA 1996, No. 381, and recommends the Troy City Council 
concur in this determination; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the TBRA has reviewed the estimated amount of 
captured taxable value that would result from the adoption or approval of TBRA 
Brownfield Plan #5, and has determined that the amounts are reasonable, and 
recommends that the Troy City Council to concur in this determination; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the approval of Brownfield Plan #5, the 
TBRA also recommends approval of a Brownfield Reimbursement Agreement that 
provides for reimbursement of the Developer’s costs for eligible activities on eligible 
properties from the tax increment capture for the Property, in a total amount not to 
exceed $8,440,000.00, plus actual interest expense, as long as the total amount of 
reimbursement does not exceed $13,200,000.00, provided that the TBRA controlled 
millages (SMART and ISD) shall not exceed $3,872,203.00, and shall not be 
captured for a period that exceeds 20 years; and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the TBRA authorizes the TBRA Chair and 
Secretary/ Treasurer to sign such a Brownfield Reimbursement Agreement, which is 
consistent with the terms of this Resolution and Approved Brownfield Plan #5, on 
behalf of the TBRA.      
  
Yeas:  Cotsonika, Lenivov, Sanzica, Wilberding 
Nays:  Swartz, Ullmann 



Absent:  Lee 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:16 p.m. 
 
 
The next meeting scheduled is July 15, 2008. 
 
 
 

Bruce Wilberding, Chairman 
 
 

Mark Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
BRA  Meeting Minutes   
04-15-08 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             MAY 12, 2008  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, May 12, 
2008 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Committee member Henry W. Allemon called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert and Godlewski 
 
Resolution #LC2008-05-011  
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ehlert and Godlewski at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of May 12, 2008 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski 
 

 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of March 10, 2008 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2008-05-012 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the March 10, 2008 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             MAY 12, 2008  

 Page 2 of 3 

 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski 
 

 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. C. J. Mahoney’s of Troy, LLC requests to transfer ownership of 2007 

Class C licensed business with dance permit and direct connection-1 
located in escrow at 25231 Telegraph, Southfield, MI 48034, Oakland 
County, from B&P Saloons, Inc.; and transfer location (Governmental Unit) 
(MCL 436.1531(1)) to 2511 Livernois, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County. 
{MLCC Req. #430976}   

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Thomas Everson and 
Curtiss Pagels. 
 
Mr. Pagels explained to the Committee that the former restaurant owners were 
only interested in selling their liquor license in combination with the business 
assets.  Mr. Pagels and Mr. Everson were not interested in purchasing the 
business, so they negotiated a lease with the landlord and are here to transfer a 
liquor license from Southfield.  These two representatives have been in the 
bar/restaurant business for many years.   
 
The menu will be the same as the Rochester Hills location.  They provide 
TIPS/TAMS training for all employees.  This new location on Livernois has been 
completely remodeled with a possible June opening.   
 
Sergeant Cantlon indicated that his investigation revealed no violations. 
 
Resolution #LC2008-05-013 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that C. J. Mahoney’s of Troy, LLC be allowed to transfer ownership 
of 2007 Class C licensed business with dance permit and direct connection-1 
located in escrow at 25231 Telegraph, Southfield, MI 48034, Oakland County, 
from B&P Saloons, Inc.; and transfer location (Governmental Unit) (MCL 
436.1531(1)) to 2511 Livernois, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.  
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             MAY 12, 2008  

 Page 3 of 3 

 

 
There was a brief discussion on the informational items: 

 
1. Gallatin, Inc. requesting a new additional bar (for a total of 4 bars) on 2007 

Class C licensed business, with Official Permit (food), Dance Permit, 
Outdoor Service (2 areas) and 3 bars, located at 5725 Rochester, Troy 
Michigan, 48084, Oakland County. {MLCC req #470651}  
This was previously approved by City Council amendment to the ordinance 
regarding alcohol sales on the golf course.  
 
 This item deals with the beer cart for Sylvan Glen Golf Course. 
 

2. Cucina Development, Inc., Bravo Development, Inc., (an Ohio 
Corporation) requesting to drop space and cancel additional bar permit, 
leaving a total of (1) bar, from 2007 Class C – SDM licensed business, with 
Direct Connection (1), Outdoor Service (1 area), Official Permit (food), and 
2 bars, located at Somerset Collection South, 2801 W. Big Beaver, Suite 
E150, Troy Michigan, 48084, Oakland County. This is the closing of Bon 
Vie, and does not require local government approval.   
 

Bon Vie did not hold a separate license.  It is now closed. 
 
 
 

Assistant City Attorney Lancaster explained to the Committee that City Council 
revoked the 1993 Resolution stating that there cannot be two facilities with Class 
C licenses and entertainment permits within 3000 feet of each other.  The City 
Attorney’s Office is in the process of drafting language for the City Ordinance.  The 
Liquor Advisory Committee will be asked to review this document. 
 
 

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
   
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Henry W. Allemon 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES June 3, 2008  
 

TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
Minutes for Tuesday, June 3, 2008 

 
 
 

I. Call to Order 7:05 pm 
 
II. Roll Call 
 

  Present Michelle Haight 
    Kelly Jones 

Cathy Francois 
William Lawrence 
Helen Yang 
Grigore Buia (7:45 pm) 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 

     
  Absent Mayada Fakhouri 

Reuben Ellis 
Tony Haddad 
Lulu Guo 
Karen Yelder 
 

III. Approval of Minutes – May 13, 2008 
 
Motion by Kelly Jones 
Seconded by William Lawrence 
To approve the April 1, 2008 minutes. Approved unanimously. 

 
IV. Correspondence/Articles 

Info on June 6,7,8 – Detroit Festival of the Arts will be held at the Cultural Center 
(WSU, Library, DIA). It will include children’s activities, entertainment and 
performing arts.  Info at www.DetroitFestival.com. 
 
Michelle shared books written by Chris Lin – Mandy & Pandy, Say “Ni Hao Ma” 
and “Let’s Count.”  Books written in English and Mandarin.  Author will do 
presentation at schools (maybe Troy Library). Comes with CD so kids can learn 
pronunciation. Books available from TeachingTolerance.org. “Rhinos and 
Raspberries” Tolerance Tales for the Early Grades. Free to educators.  
 

V. New Business 
 
1. Student Representatives 

 Liyuan (Lily) Huang of Troy High will be joining the board. She will be a junior at  
 Troy High in Fall 2008. She is interested in this board since Troy is so multi- 
 cultural, and the board has the same belief she has in making Troy a better city by  
 being accepting of others. She’s lived here for 8 years.  

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES June 3, 2008  
 
 

  2. Presentation to Helen Yang 
Helen Yang will be graduating June 7 from Troy High. She is leaving 8/8/08 for 
China and will be moving to Harvard on 9/6/08 to study medicine. The board 
expressed appreciation to Helen for her dedication to the board and out 
mission. 
 

 3. Troy Daze EthniCity –  
          
 Poster Contest: Theme is “Celebrating Diversity through the Golden Rule:  

 Treating People as You Would Like to Be Treated.” Michelle will chair the   
 Poster Contest. Prizes will be Gifts Cards: $50 for First, $25 for Second;   
 and $15 for Third. 

 
Booth Updates: Kelly heard from Willie Dechavez that he wants 2 booths for 
NFFAA (National Federation Filipino American Association) and 2 booths for  
CAPA (Council of Asian Pacific Americans). Muslim Unity will move to the big tent. 
Kelly will start calling last year’s groups this week.  

 
India – Michelle 
St. George/ACC – Mayada 
Peru – Cindy 
Troy High Chinese Club – Lily 
Spanish Club - Lily 
French Club - Lily 
 

  Giveaways: Need to come up with ideas for small trinket giveaways. Last year 
   flags were given. It was a great idea – board agrees to giveaway flags and also  
  print a passport. Cindy will have volunteers this summer to assemble passports 

  
  Volunteers: Sign up sheet for EthniCity Booth passed around to EIA Board. Cindy  
  will e-mail. 

 
VI. Old Business  

 
 Troy School District Updates 

a. Elementary School: Liaison Kelly is collecting resources to present to PTOs. If 
anyone has anything, please pass on to Kelly.  As a committee we are trying to 
provide resources to both elementary and secondary PTOs for diverse 
participation with ethnic families (videos, books, clubs brochures, reading material, 
Websites). 

b. Barnard Schools trying to connect new families with existing families from same 
country/backgrounds.  Schroeder and Hamilton are doing a program like this.  

c. High School – Karen Yelder, liaison – No Report 
d. African American Parent Support Group – Next Meeting will be Monday, June 9 at 

7:30 pm at TSD Services Building. All are invited. Michelle shared their action 
plan. 
 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES June 3, 2008  
 

e. Middle School Update – Michelle went to Baker with Padma to address the 
teaching staff and administration (requested by Principal Larry Hahn). Spoke of 
Troy demographics, background of EIAB and teaching resources, cultural 
calendar. Tim McAvoy wants them to offer professional development training for 
Troy School District staff on religious journeys. This will be a quarterly presentation 
(starting Sept. 08) on Christian, Jewish, Muslim, Hindu/Buddist/Sikh to promote 
understanding, tolerance, and respect. Cathy would volunteer to help. 

f. Diversity Recognition Program tabled until October meeting. Kelly will gather info 
from Sterling Heights. They have a dinner planned Sept. 19 – 1st Annual Diversity 
Dinner.  
 

VII. Member Comment 
Michelle announced she would like to resign as EIAB chairperson. She 
appreciates everyone’s support. Motion to appoint Vice Chair Kelly Jones as 
Chairperson. She did excellent work on Troy Daze EthniCIty last year. 
 
Motioned by Michelle Haight 
Seconded by Cathy Francois 
Approved unanimously 
 
Kelly graciously accepts the nomination. 

 
VIII. Adjournment  8:40 pm 

 
Motion by Kelly Jones, seconded by Michelle Haight. Meeting adjourned. 

 
 

 
   
 
_____________________________ 
Kelly Jones, EIAB Vice Chair 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
Next Meeting Tuesday, July 15, 2008 at 7 pm  
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JUNE 4, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals meeting to order at 8:32 A.M., on Wednesday, June 4, 2008 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Keith Lenderman 
   Tom Rosewarne 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Paul Evans, Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MAY 7, 2008 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of May 7, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  CHRISTINE DALTON, PLANC SERVICES, 
REPRESENTING FRANCIS SHIER, 2786 RHODES, for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 
48” high fence in the front yard along the east property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a 48” high picket style fence located in the front yard along the east property line.  
Chapter 83 limits the height of front yard fences to a maximum of 30” in height. 
 
Mr. Francis Shier was present and stated that currently he has a split rail fence that is 
deteriorating and needs replacement.  The existing fence has become an eyesore and 
the only part of the proposed fence that would be 48” high would be the posts.  The 
middle section of the fence would be 3’-3” tall.  Right now the shrubbery is over 4’ tall 
and he does not believe the proposed fence would cause a problem. 
 
Mr. Dziurman informed Mr. Shier that a number of neighbors had objected to this 
variance request. 
 
There are four (4) written objections on file.  There is one (1) written approval on file. 
 
Mr. Dziurman opened the Public Hearing. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JUNE 4, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Nancy Schaible, 2802 Rhodes was present and said that her home is directly to the 
east of this home.  Ms. Schaible’s driveway is 3’ from the existing fence and she has a 
very difficult time backing out of her driveway.  The shrubbery is 4’ high and blocks the 
view of on-coming traffic.  Ms. Schaible strongly objects to this request and does not 
see a need for a 4’ high fence. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Kessler explained that in order for the Board to grant a variance, the petitioner must 
demonstrate a hardship that is unique to the property.  The reason the height of fences 
is limited to 30” in a front setback is because of the safety issue of other residents.  Mr. 
Kessler said that the petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship that would justify this 
request. 
 
Mr. Shier said that the existing fence is deteriorating and he wants to put up a fence that 
would have an acceptable appearance.  The original fence needs to be replaced and he 
would be willing to cut down the shrubbery. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he appreciates the fact that Mr. Shier wants to improve the 
appearance of the property; however, the neighbor does have concerns about the 
safety issue. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if the height of shrubbery was limited in front setbacks. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that there are restrictions regarding shrubbery on corner lots, but 
there are no height restrictions regarding shrubbery for interior lots on the property that 
is between the sidewalk and the front of the house. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Christine Dalton, Planc Services, representing Francis 
Shier, 2786 Rhodes, for relief of chapter 83 to install a 48” high fence in the front yard 
along the east property line. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the petitioner that he could replace the existing fence with a new 
split rail fence up to 30” in height and he would not require a variance. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JUNE 4, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JAY JOHNSON, JOHNSON SIGN COMPANY, 
250 STEPHENSON, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect four (4) wall signs. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect four 
(4) wall signs, each 171 square feet in area on an existing office building in the R-C 
(Research Center) Zoning District.  Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (3) allows one wall sign for 
each building not to exceed 10% of the area of the front of the structure to a maximum 
of 200 square feet in area.  Because of the size of this building, they would be permitted 
the 200 square foot sign.  The plans submitted indicate four (4) wall signs resulting in a 
combined area of 686 square feet. 
 
Mr. Marc Gardner, President of North American Bancard, Ms. Denise Kenyon, Vice-
President of North American Bancard, and Jay Johnson of Johnson Sign Company 
were present.  Mr. Gardner stated that their company has been in Troy since 1996 and 
has never requested a variance for signage.  The recently purchased 250 Stephenson 
building and the property have approximately four (4) acres on I-75.  They plan to hire 
between 200 and 400 additional people and the signage will aid them in attracting these 
new hires.  Mr. Gardner also said that the square footage of the sign includes the area 
between the letters and the top of the sign, even though there are no letters in that area. 
The signage on four (4) sides of the building does not help the merchant base grow, but 
it will help them attract new employees.  Mr. Gardner feels this location is a gateway to 
Troy. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that the hardship is the size of the complex, and the fact that they are 
not allowed to put in a ground sign by the condo association.  Mr. Johnson said that he 
feels it is important to identify the facility.  The letters are not overwhelming as this is a 
large building that sits back from the thoroughfare.  Mr. Johnson said that he believes 
this request is well within the intent of the Ordinance and will not encroach on other 
areas.  Mr. Johnson also said that he would like to compliment Mr. Evans on his quick 
responses and the time he took to work with Mr. Johnson on this presentation and feels 
that he is a definite asset to the City. 
 
 Mr. Johnson further stated that he was hoping the Board could look at the proposed 
signs and re-allocate the square footage that would be allowed if they put in a ground 
sign to the proposed wall signs.  Because of the way the City calculates the proposed 
signage, they appear larger than they are and his alternative calculation of sign area is 
closer to 418 square feet. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked how the square footage of signs is calculated by the City. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the way the Ordinance is written the outside perimeter of the 
sign is enclosed by horizontal and vertical lines of at least one foot in length to 
determine the size of the signs.  However, regardless of the area of the signage, the 
petitioner is only allowed one (1) wall sign. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JUNE 4, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Gardner stated that he had looked at the other buildings in the complex and they 
have more than one (1) wall sign. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked why they feel they need four (4) signs. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that there is traffic on each side. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if Troy was in line with what other Cities allow. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that Troy is somewhere in the middle of what other Cities allow, as 
some of them figure the individual letters and some use a rectangle around the 
perimeter of the entire sign. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that Valeo has four (4) signs, and Kostal has three (3) signs and does 
not believe this request is overwhelming compared to the other requests. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how many square feet each sign on all the buildings have. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that Valeo has four (4) signs that do not exceed 396 square feet and if 
they were allowed to square off these proposed signs, they would the same as Valeo. 
 
Mr. Kessler pointed out that the signs were also on the corners of the building so that it 
looked like one sign rather than two signs on each corner. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that they are separate signs. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he wanted the square footage of the signs for each of the 
buildings. 
 
Mr. Evans stated that 350 Stephenson, Kostal, was allowed three (3) wall signs not 
exceeding 113 square feet each; and 150 Stephenson, Valeo, has permits for four (4) 
wall signs totaling 308.34 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac also noted that Valeo has two different sign sizes. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that the square footage of signs is calculated the same for all locations, 
and asked how many visitors would be coming to this site. 
 
Mr. Gardner indicated that they did not have a lot of walk in people coming to the site, 
but that they were hoping to add between 37 and 40 employees this month alone. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that variances have been granted for directional purposes, and 
sometimes this is considered a hardship.  Since this site does not have a lot of visitors  
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JUNE 4, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
this scenario would not apply.  Mr. Kessler also stated that he very happy to have this 
building occupied and is very glad that jobs will be offered to people in the area.   
 
Mr. Gardner said that presently there is a half million dollar café on the site and he is not 
sure it has ever been used.   There are times that they have a huge influx of calls and 
during this period, they provide lunches for their staff and pay overtime.  They are 
hoping to be able to utilize this café.  969 Chicago, which is their other location, is 
presently for sale and/or lease and eventually they plan to bring all their employees to 
250 Stephenson.   
 
Mr. Johnson said that if you look at the size of this building, this proposal is not over-kill 
and basically they are asking to be able to “brand” the building.  The building is set quite 
a way back on the site and the signs need to be this size in order to be readable. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if the signs were going to be illuminated. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that that only the black and blue portions of the sign will be illuminated 
and will not be very bright. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked why they required the sign on the north side of the building. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that they wanted the sign on that side of the building in order to 
attract traffic heading southbound on I-75. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that traffic heading southbound would not be able to recognize the 
site. 
 
Mr. Dziurman suggested putting one sign on the north and one on the south side of the 
building. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that they also want this site to be visible to traffic along Stephenson. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he drives to and from work in this area every day and the north 
side of the building is not visible from I-75 because of the trees in the right of way along 
I-75. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that they had thought of that, but the trees only had leaves on them for 
approximately 6 months out of the year. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that one of the reasons they wanted this sign was to balance the look 
of the building. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that if you are looking at the north side of the building, you would not be 
able to tell that there was a sign on the south side of the building. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JUNE 4, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Rosewarne asked if they would be conducting interviews at this building. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that it depends on what position is being offered.  They do plan to start 
training classes in June at this location. 
 
Mr. Rosewarne asked if they were planning to interview a large number of people. 
 
Mr. Gardner stated that it was a three-step process. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that they could have up to 200 visitors. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that his Human Resource Department goes through the resumes and 
determines who will come to the site to interview.  Mr. Gardner said that it is a life 
change for most people and they are hoping to give jobs to a number of people from the 
auto companies.  These positions are totally different than a factory or cubicle 
experience. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they plan to lease out the available space in this building. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that this is a very successful company and they are very discriminating 
in looking at what type of companies they would allow to lease this space.  Mr. Gardner 
said that it is not necessary that they lease out this space. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that he believes that any tenants in this building would advertise that 
they are located in the North American Bancard building. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the other requests in this complex are around 300 square feet 
and this request is to allow 686 square feet of signage.  He does not believe the 
petitioner demonstrated a hardship and believes they are trying to make their presence 
known with the proposed signage. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that they are “branding” the building in order to bring in more 
employees. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that the hardships that are normally heard here do not apply to this 
request and the same method to calculate square footage is used for all signs. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that they are trying to generate revenue for the City, County and State. 
They are not looking to put in a “Vegas” type sign.  He understands that the Board is 
there to enforce the Ordinance, but there are a number of States that will aid new 
businesses into moving into their Cities.  The State of Michigan is not provided one-
dollar for the expansion of this business.  Mr. Gardner said that they are in a very 
fortunate position in that they do not require State aid and they are trying to improve the 
building and help the City at the same time. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JUNE 4, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #3- con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he did not want to argue regarding what Michigan gives 
compared to other States and suggested that Mr. Gardner look into changing the 
Ordinance in order to allow more flexibility for signage.  This Board requires a hardship 
to grant a variance and if the variance was granted based on what people “want” the 
Board would have to do the same thing for everyone. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that he felt the Board was addressing the number of signs rather 
than the square footage of the request. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that they are requesting four (4) signs where one is allowed. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked for an explanation of how other variances in this complex were 
approved. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that Valeo is the southernmost building with frontage on Stephenson, 
Fourteen Mile and I-75 and the main entrance is on the north side of the building.  
Kostal has two frontages and an entrance on the south side of the building.  The 
entrances to the sites were considered when the decisions were made. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that Valeo put their signs on the corner of the building giving a wrap-
around appearance to the signs.  He stated that they would be willing to put the signs 
on the corners of their building. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the square footage of the sign to the north was. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that all the signs are proposed to be the same size. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the petitioner wished to postpone this request so that they could 
examine other options and perhaps modify the request. 
 
Mr. Johnson asked if they could negotiate at this meeting. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that they could as long as the request was smaller than the original 
request. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that they would be willing to negotiate.   
 
Mr. Dziurman said that they could either postpone this request for thirty (30) days or the 
Board would probably make a motion to lower the number of signs allowed. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JUNE 4, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Gardner asked what the signage was that was permitted for the other buildings. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that is 308 square feet for Valeo and 339 square feet for Kostal. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that he believes the issue before the Board was not the square 
footage, but the number of signs they are requesting. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that they have a lot of letters in the name and feel that this request 
should be allowed.  The other sites have smaller names and therefore fewer letters in 
their names. 
 
Mr. Lenderman said that he agrees and believes that the length of the name should be 
given consideration for a variance request.  The Ordinance does not take that into 
consideration. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that he feels the length of the name is part of their hardship. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that this is the way the Ordinance is written and it would need to be 
changed. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the success of this Company was dependant on whether or not they 
were granted a variance for four signs. 
 
Mr. Gardner said that it was not. 
 
Mr. Zuazo said that he did not believe the sign on the north side would add to the 
identification of this site. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that if they have to make a sacrifice, they would be willing to give up 
the sign on the north side. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Rosewarne 
 
MOVED, to grant Jay Johnson, Johnson Sign Company, 250 Stephenson, relief of 
Chapter 85 to erect three (3) wall signs where Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (3) allows one wall 
sign for each building not to exceed 10% of the area of the front of the structure to a 
maximum of 200 square feet in area. 
 

• Three (3) wall signs not to exceed 350 square feet. 
• No other wall signs allowed. 

 
Mr. Gardner asked if the 350 square feet could be distributed to allow four (4) signs. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JUNE 4, 2008 

9 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that this approval would only allow three (3) signs. 
 
Mr. Johnson asked if the could consider a different type of calculation since two of the 
proposed signs come up to 342 square feet.  Mr. Johnson does not believe smaller 
signs would be visible and it would totally disrupt the entire package.  Mr. Johnson also 
said that if they are smaller they won’t be able to be read. 
 
Motion by Lenderman 
Supported by Rosewarne 
 
MOVED, to modify the current motion to allow three (3) wall signs not to exceed 515 
square feet in area. 
 
Vote on motion to modify. 
 
Yeas:  3 – Lenderman, Rosewarne, Zuazo 
Nays:  2 – Dziurman, Kessler 
 
Vote on main motion, which now reads: 
 
MOVED, to grant Jay Johnson, Johnson Sign Company, 250 Stephenson, relief of 
Chapter 85 to erect three (3) wall signs where Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (3) allows one wall 
sign for each building not to exceed 10% of the area of the front of the structure to a 
maximum of 200 square feet in area. 
 

• Three (3) wall signs not to exceed a total combined are of 515 square feet. 
• No other wall signs allowed. 

 
Yeas:  3 – Rosewarne, Zuazo, Lenderman 
Nays:  2 – Kessler, Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:35 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

1 

 

The Vice-Chair, Glenn Clark, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to order 
at 7:35 P.M. on Tuesday, June 17, 2008 in Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael Bartnik 
    Glenn Clark 
    Kenneth Courtney 
    Marcia Gies 
    Dave Lambert 
    Thomas Strat 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:   Matthew Kovacs 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Lambert 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Kovacs from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:   6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Lambert, Strat 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. KOVACS FROM TONIGHT’S MEETING CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MAY 20, 2008 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of May 20, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All - 6 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4. 
 
RESOLVED, that Item #3 and Item #4 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Courtney 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

2 

 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ZION CHRISTIAN CHURCH, 3668 LIVERNOIS, 
for relief of the 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south side of off-street 
parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board for a 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south property line adjacent to 
their off-street parking.  This relief has been granted on a yearly basis since 1985.  The 
property to the south is owned by the City of Troy at this time and is undeveloped.  This 
item last appeared before this Board in June 2005 and was granted a three (3) year 
renewal.  Conditions remain the same, and we have no objections or complaints on file.  
The property immediately to the south of this parcel has been purchased by the City of 
Troy, with the potential of becoming a park. 
 
MOVED, to grant Zion Christian Church, 3668 Livernois a three (3) year renewal of 
relief for the 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south property line adjacent to 
the off-street parking. 
 

• The City’s purchase of the adjacent property for park development only further 
justifies the need for the variance. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Conditions remain the same, and there are no complaints on file. 
• Variance does not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH, 4328 
LIVERNOIS, for relief of the 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south, east and 
north sides of off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board of the 4’-6” high wall required along the south, east and north sides of the 
property adjacent to the off-street parking.  The original request was granted based on 
the fact that the adjacent property was either undeveloped or screened by dense 
woods.  This relief has been granted on a yearly basis since 1988.  This item last 
appeared before this Board in June 2005 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at 
that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant First Presbyterian Church of Troy, 4328 Livernois a three (3) year 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high wall required along the southeast and north sides of 
the property adjacent to the off-street parking. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

3 

 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

• Conditions remain the same, and there are no complaints on file. 
• The adjacent property is either undeveloped or screened by dense woods. 

 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.   JOHN SPUDICH, 6618 MOUNTAIN, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of his home that will result in a 37’ 
rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in 
the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition on the rear of his existing home.  The plans submitted indicate a family-
dining room addition with a proposed 37’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 requires 
a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Strat informed the Board that he was the Architect on this project as well as the 
interior designer and did have a financial interest in the outcome.  Mr. Strat stated that 
he felt he should be excused from this presentation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Strat from this item as he has a conflict of interest due to a 
financial interest in the outcome. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Lambert, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. STRAT CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat left the podium. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if this was the smallest lot in this subdivision due to lot averaging. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that they have used lot averaging in this subdivision.  In the R-1B 
Zoning District the minimum lot width is 100’.  This lot is 92’ at the front property line and 
gets wider as it goes farther back.  Lot area requirements in the R-1B Zoning District is 
15,000 square feet, the side lot lines are 140 on the east and 150 on the west and Mr. 
Stimac said that it does appear that lot averaging was used.  Mr. Stimac said that he 
was unable to say if this was the smallest lot in the subdivision. 
 
Mr. John Spudich was present and stated that his hardship is that the setback 
requirement does not allow him to add the size of addition he is looking for.  Mr. Greg 
Stamlych was also present and Mr. Spudich said that Mr. Stamlych would speak for 
him. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

4 

 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stamlych stated that the petitioner had the opportunity to purchase a larger home in 
other areas; however, he decided to improve the existing property and stay in Troy.  
The lot shape is irregular in that it is wider in the back than the front and this creates the 
hardship.  There are a large number of trees at the rear of the property creating a 
natural barrier.  The 37’ setback is on one corner of the house. This house was built in 
1990 by Mr. Spudich and he will be putting in the addition on his own.  Mr. Stamlych 
passed out renderings of what they are proposing for this home. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that on the small side the addition is 37’ from the lot line and asked 
what the other side was. 
 
Mr. Spudich said that he believes it is close to 44’. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that no matter where the addition was, a variance would still be 
required.  Mr. Courtney asked if the front yard setback was larger than other homes in 
the area. 
 
Mr. Stamlych said that it is in line with other houses on the street. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that even if the lot was rectangular they would still be short. 
 
Mr. Stamlych said that if you measure directly out from where the addition is the east 
corner of the lot or perpendicular to the north/south lot lines an additional foot would be 
there.  
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Clark asked how far off would this addition be from the required setback if the lot 
was rectangular.  
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the front setback of this home is in line with the other houses 
and it appears that the front yard setback is 52.9’.  The minimum front yard setback is 
40’.  Mr. Stimac said that the house may have been setback this far on the lot due to the 
width of the house.  The setbacks are 40’ in the front and 45’ in the rear, which would 
allow you to build a house that, is 55’ in depth on a 140’ lot.  The existing house is 39’-4” 
and the addition is 16’ -6” and this would allow a 55’ depth.  If this lot was square you 
should be able to put up a house with a 55’ buildable footprint. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if notices had been sent out to the surrounding property owners. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

5 

 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that notices were sent to occupants and owners of property within 
300’ of the property and the notice was also published in the appropriate newspaper. 
 
Mr. Courtney pointed out that the three abutting properties did not object to this request. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant John Spudich, 6618 Mountain, relief of the Ordinance to construct an 
addition on the rear of an existing home that will result in a 37’ rear yard setback where 
Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will not establish a prohibited use within a Zoning District. 

 
Yeas:   5 – Lambert, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat returned to the podium. 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DEAN DEVONCE, 3490 CROOKS, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct an addition to his home that will result in a 6.2’ side yard 
setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 10’ minimum side yard setback in R-1B 
Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to his home.  The plot plan submitted indicates an addition with a proposed 
6.2’ side yard setback to the north property line.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 10’ 
minimum side yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Lambert stated that one of the objections received was from a homeowner on 
Portsmouth and asked what the relation of that property was to this property. 
 
Mr. Stimac told Mr. Lambert that he would check the records and give Mr. Lambert an 
answer as soon as he could. 
 
Mr. Dean DeVonce was present.  Mr. DeVonce brought in three (3) approval letters 
from neighbors.  Mr. DeVonce said that he had originally wanted to put this addition on 
the south side of the home but there is a 20’ easement in this area and he would not be 
able to put an addition in this area. The existing home is 1,000 square feet and he 
needs additional room as his family is growing. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

6 

 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. DeVonce would consider a smaller addition. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that he had considered a smaller addition but needs the garage to 
store their vehicles in.  Mr. DeVonce said that he owns three (3) vehicles and wants to 
be able to put his vehicles inside.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked about the existing garage at the rear of the home. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that he is planning to remove this garage and will replace it with this 
larger garage.  Mr. DeVonce said it is a block garage and the neighbors are very 
pleased that it will be torn down. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked why the addition couldn’t be put at the rear of the home. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that because his home is on Crooks he wants to be able to leave the 
yard as it is so that his children will have an area to play in.  If the addition was put on 
the rear of the home it would force his children to play in the side yard and he is 
concerned that they would wander onto Crooks Road. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if there were any easements on the side of this property. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Building Department is not aware of any recorded easements 
on this property.  This parcel is not part of a subdivision. 
 
Mr. Strat said that he did not see any utilities at the rear of the property and stated that 
he just wondered where they might be. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that in his opinion they would probably be located along Crooks Road.  
Looking at the aerial view of the property it appears that telephone poles are located 
along Crooks Road. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if he thought there were any telephone poles at the rear of the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he could not determine if there were any poles at the rear of the 
property from the aerial view. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was any written verification of a 20’ easement on the south 
side of this property. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that this is not a platted lot and he is not aware of an easement in this 
location.  The easement would be privately recorded. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the petitioner had anything indicating that there was an easement 
on the property. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

7 

 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that there is a sewer line 13’ off of the south side of the property from 
west to east.  Originally he wanted to put the addition on that side of the house but was 
turned down by Engineering. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if Mr. DeVonce was certain there was an easement in this location. 
 
Mr. DeVonce confirmed that there was an easement on the south side of this property. 
 
Mr. Courtney suggested postponing this request for thirty-days so that the Building 
Department could get verification of an easement. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if that information was in fact available. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that there is no way to tell from Building Department records if there is 
an easement in this area as it is not a platted subdivision.   
 
Mr. Strat said that there would be problems if anything was constructed on an easement 
and asked if the petitioner had received a mortgage survey at the time he purchased 
this property. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that he did and originally wanted to build on the south side of his 
home, but because of the sanitary sewer easement on this side he was not able to put 
the addition there. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if the easement was indicated on the mortgage survey. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that it was not. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if he had a title search done on the property. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that he did not, but in fact relied on the mortgage survey.  When he 
showed his plans to the Engineering Department, he was told that he could not build in 
this area due to the sewer easement. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if he could see where the water flows. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that he can watch the water flow in this area. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are seven (7) written approvals on file.  There is one objection on file. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

8 

 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac informed Mr. Lambert that the property on Portsmouth that objected to this 
request is located on the north side of Portsmouth and is not adjacent to this property. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Dean DeVonce, 3490 Crooks, relief of the Ordinance to construct an 
addition to his home that will result in a 6.2’ side yard setback where Section 30.10.02 
requires a 10’ minimum side yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 

• Sewer easement is on the south side of the property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 

 
Yeas:   All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that in his opinion this was a very unique piece of property and believes 
the variance will have a positive impact to surrounding property.  
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MLS EQUITY, LLC, 1800 W. BIG BEAVER, for 
relief of the Ordinance to expand the existing parking that will be within 10’ of the front 
property line along McClure, where Section 29.50.07 requires that in the R-1B District 
the front yard setback is 40’. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to expand 
the existing parking lot.  The northern portion of this site is in the P-1 (Vehicular Parking) 
Zoning District.  The property to the immediate north is in the R-1B (One-Family 
Residential) Zoning District.  Section 39.50.07 of the Zoning Ordinance states that when 
a P-1 District is contiguous with a Residential District that has common frontage on the 
same block, there shall be a front yard setback at least equal to the required residential 
setback.  In the R-1B District the front yard setback is 40’.  The current parking lot 
meets this setback.  The site plan submitted indicates that the expanded parking lot will 
be within 10’ of the front property line along McClure. 
 
Mr. Dave Hunter of PEA Associates, the Civil Engineer on the project, and Mr. Mike 
Locricchio one of the owners of the property were present.  Mr. Hunter stated that 
presently the property consists of a 21,000 square foot office building.  On the first floor 
of the building there is an Architectural Office and a Medical Office.  A new Medical 
Office use is being proposed for the second floor.  A parking variance was granted in  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

9 

 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
2004 and the petitioner wants to add additional parking so that it is closer to the Medical 
Office.  This would allow the patients to park closer to the side door rather than at the 
back of the property.  Mr. Hunter also said that they do plan to add a screen wall around 
these new parking spaces that will match the existing screen wall.  They have submitted 
a site plan to the Planning Department. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what the net number of parking spaces that would be added in this 
section.  
 
Mr. Hunter said that nine new stalls would be added. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if they had considered moving the driveway north and putting the 
parking in farther south so that the parking spaces would be closer to the entrance of 
the building. 
 
Mr. Hunter said they had not considered that but it was a possibility. 
 
Mr. Bartnik also said that the application submitted indicates that there are other 
properties on Big Beaver Road that have a 10’ setback to the property line. 
 
Mr. Hunter said that directly to the west on the curve the parking lot is similar in nature 
and also that driveway lines up with their driveway. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if the parking spots would be designated for the re-habilitation center.   
 
Mr. Locricchio said they plan to put up signs that indicate that this parking is for the 
medical center and not for office parking.  They want to make sure there is sufficient 
parking for the tenants, but also want to provide this parking for the use of the medical 
office. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if they had any control over the parking to the east of this site. 
 
Mr. Hunter said that they are working with the property owner to the east regarding a 
cross access easement. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if this document had been submitted to the Planning Department. 
 
Mr. Hunter said that they did not have the document as this time, but felt that it would be 
ready by the time they came to the Planning Commission.  There is a cross access 
easement agreement underway. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if this could be a conditional variance regarding landscaping.   
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

10 

 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that this Board can impose a condition on the variance that landscaping 
is required. 
 
Mr. Stimac said there are other sites that have a 10’ greenbelt in front in this area, but 
that is because they are in other Zoning Districts. The northern portion of this site is 
zoned P-1, the opposite side of the street on McClure is in the O-1 Zoning District and 
they are allowed a minimum 10’ greenbelt. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if there was a requirement regarding the screen wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that besides the setback, another requirement in the P-1 Zoning is in 
fact a screen wall. The petitioner plans to put up the screen wall but is asking for a 
reduced setback to 10’. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if this request also includes a request for a reduction in landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner has not asked for a variance or exception to the 
landscape requirement so they would be required to meet the 10’ greenbelt with one 
tree per 10’. 
 
Mr. Strat said he understands that but he is looking for more than that.  Mr. Strat wants 
the screen wall to be compatible with the existing building.  Once a variance is granted 
there is no control over it unless the variance is conditioned including landscaping. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Strat was concerned about the property on the north or west 
sides. 
 
Mr. Strat said that he is concerned about both sides and he sees the property to the 
north as a gateway to the residential area. 
 
Mr. Hunter stated that they plan to install a wall that matches the wall that is there 
currently and do plan to have the screen wall come across the south property line. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they had any objection to additional screening. 
 
Mr. Hunter said that they did not. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Dr. Lee Weinstein was present and stated he has a medical practice in Bloomfield Hills.  
Dr. Weinstein reached an agreement with the owners of this property in March to open 
an office in this location.  To be able to accomplish the building alterations for the suite 
they want to lease, they require more parking.  This is creating a hardship for them and 
Dr. Weinstein asked that the Board approve this request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

11 

 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if Mr. Stimac knew how far the front of the house to the north of this 
property was from the property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the existing greenbelt in front of the parking area is at the 40’ 
setback and it appears that the front of the house is 20’ farther back than that.  Mr. 
Stimac said that he thought the house was approximately 60’ back from the front 
setback.  Right now the parking extends beyond the front line of the house and the 
petitioners are asking to add an additional 30’ to the parking area. 
 
Mr. Strat said that he was wondering if there was any room to add additional 
landscaping on the north side to buffer the residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the petitioners are proposing to run the screen wall from its current 
location and extend it to within 10’ of the property line and come straight south from 
there.    
 
Mr. Strat asked where the location of the wall was. 
 
Mr. Hunter stated that is was 1’ off the property line. 
 
Mr. Strat said that he would like to see more landscaping around this wall.  Mr. Strat 
also said that he wants the wall to be compatible with the building and enclosing the 
entire parking area.  Landscaping should be provided along both the north and west 
side of the wall as per the request of the Planning Commission. 
 
Motion by Strat 
Supported by  
 
MOVED, to grant MLS Equity, LLC, 1800 W. Big Beaver, relief of the Ordinance to 
expand the existing parking that will be within 10’ of the front property line along 
McClure, where Section 29.50.07 requires that in the R-1B District the front yard 
setback is 40’. 
 

• Screen wall to enclose the parking area from the street to the north side 
compatible with the existing building material. 

• Landscaping is provided along the north as well as the west side of the wall 
suitable to the Planning Commission requirements. 

 
Mr. Clark asked what type of building material would be required. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

12 

 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the new screen wall would be constructed the same as the existing 
screen wall.  The existing building appears to be constructed of face brick and if Mr. 
Strat wishes the screen wall to be constructed the same as the building material that 
could be a condition of the motion. 
 
Mr. Clark said that the existing screen wall may not be constructed of the same material 
as the existing building and asked if this would be an issue. 
 
Mr. Strat said that when he drove by the area, he thought the existing screen wall was a 
poured wall and it does not appear to match the building.  The existing screen wall is far 
back on the property, so if there is a dissimilarity of the material he wouldn’t worry about 
it.  He is more concerned about the appearance of the wall along the west side of the 
property. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the north wall that would now be extending west would be 
compatible to the existing building as well as the part of the wall that is running north 
and south. 
 
Mr. Strat said that was correct. 
 
Yeas:   All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Ms. Cathie Walton, the building manager for 1740 W. Big Beaver was present and 
asked if the new wall would be different from the existing wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the new screen wall along the north side and along the south 
side would be brick, which would match the building. 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  NORM & CARLA JOHNSON, 1090 
ROCHESTER, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new outdoor seating area at an 
existing restaurant that is a legal non-conforming structure.  The site plan submitted 
indicates that the outdoor dining area will have an 18’ front yard setback.  Section 
40.50.04 prohibits the expansion of a legal non-conforming structure in any way that 
increases the non-conformity. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new outdoor seating area at an existing restaurant.  The property in 
question is located in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District.  Restaurants are not a 
principal permitted use in the M-1 District.  The use of the property as a restaurant 
predates the current Ordinance restrictions that prohibit the use; therefore, the use of 
the site as a restaurant is a legal non-conforming use.  Section 40.50.05 of the Zoning 
Ordinance prohibits the expansion of a legal non-conforming use. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

13 

 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
In addition, Section 30.20.08 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front setback for 
buildings in the M-1 District.  The existing building is only 18’ from the front property line 
along Rochester Road.  Because of the age of the development this condition makes 
this building a legal non-conforming structure.  The site plan submitted indicates that the 
outdoor dining area will continue the 18’ front setback.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits the 
expansion of a legal non-conforming structure in any way that increases the non-
conformity. 
 
Mr. Stimac further stated that the Ordinance was changed within the last few years to 
allow a restaurant in the M-1 Zoning District with Special Use Approval.  This site has 
not yet received this Special Use Approval.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a variance would be required if this site was given approval for a 
Special Use. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that a variance would still be required in order to allow the 
expansion of a legal non-conforming structure.  There is no guarantee that they would 
get a Special Use Approval from the Planning Commission.  This is a discretionary 
decision by the Planning Commission.  Because of the location and age of this building 
there are a number of things that do not conform. 
 
Mr. Strat said that real advantage to a Special Use Approval is that they could require 
more landscaping to help beautify the area.  Mr. Strat likes the idea of outdoor seating 
and is very supportive of this effort, but would also be in favor of a Special Land Use 
Approval as they would be able to get more amenities added. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that even if they went to the Planning Commission they may come 
back before this Board. 
 
Mr. Strat said that speaking for himself he is very much in favor of this request.  The 
Planning Commission supports requests to beautify the property and encourages 
businesses to add improvements to the area. 
 
Norm and Carla Johnson were present.  Mr. Johnson stated that they had purchased 
this property approximately six months ago and they are trying very hard to enhance the 
south end of Troy.  There are a lot of businesses close by and Mr. Johnson believes 
that they would take advantage of the outdoor dining as these patrons would not have 
to drive to get to this location.  They have had many customers that have asked for 
outdoor dining and they would like to be able to accommodate them.  The goal for the 
restaurant is to offer great food and service in a relaxed atmosphere.  Mr. Johnson said 
that they understand that they do not meet the 50’ requirement but this area will be 
fenced and will not distract drivers and there will be no noise concerns.  The only way to 
enter or exit the outdoor area will be through the restaurant.  Mr. and Mrs. Johnson 
have worked very hard to improve the look of the restaurant and believe that they have  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

14 

 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
made many positive changes.  Mr. Johnson said that outdoor dining is critical to the 
success of their business. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked for more detail on the proposed fencing and the windows. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that he is willing to do whatever the Board wants them to do in order 
to get the outdoor dining.  Mr. Johnson said that he did not realize the scope of work 
that needed approval and he would do what he has to do. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was a way to approve this request so that they could 
operate and require them to apply to the Planning Commission for a Special Use 
Approval.  Mr. Courtney said that he liked this idea and did not want to tie up the 
petitioner for any length of time. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if Mr. Stimac had any idea of how long it would take for this item to be 
placed on the agenda for the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the item would have to be published as it is a Public Hearing and 
thought it would probably take between thirty and sixty days before it would come 
before the Planning Commission.  Mr. Stimac said that he did not know what the 
deadline was for requests to come before the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Strat said that the Planning Commission meets three times a month so he would 
hope that the item could be expedited and asked if there was any way it could be 
moved ahead.  Mr. Strat said that he believes this is a great idea and thinks that it would 
be supported by the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Building Department would be more than happy to provide 
Mr. Miller with whatever information he required to place this item on the agenda for the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thought the item could be postponed for 30 days to determine 
the time table for it to appear before the Planning Commission.  This item could be 
acted upon next month if it was going to take too long to appear before the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that notices for this Public Hearing have already been sent out, as well 
as being published in the newspaper and there have been no responses indicating 
disapproval of this request.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

15 

 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Lambert 
 
MOVED, to grant Norm & Carla Johnson, 1090 Rochester relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new outdoor seating area at an existing restaurant that is a legal non-
conforming structure.  The site plan submitted indicates that the outdoor dining area will 
have an 18’ front yard setback.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits the expansion of a legal non-
conforming structure in any way that increases the non-conformity. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would have a positive effect to surrounding property. 

 
Mr. Clark said that the petitioner would do whatever was required and asked how he 
planned to enhance the outdoor area.  Mr. Clark went on to say that he lives near 14 
Mile and John R. and is not very impressed by the outdoor seating area provided by 
another restaurant in the area. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that this was a hard question to answer.  There is a property to the 
north of “Field of Dreams” that has an outdoor waterfall and if he could that is exactly 
where he would put this seating area.  Traffic approaching from the south has a difficult 
time seeing this property as there is a large tree in the area that blocks out the view of 
the restaurant during the summer.  The trees along Rochester Road already block the 
view of the building for traffic heading northbound.  If they were to put in more trees it 
would be harder to see the building. 
 
Mr. Clark asked where the trees were located. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that there are a number of trees on the southwest corner of 
Elmsford and Rochester and then extending for quite a way in the right of way north on 
Rochester Road.   
 
Mr. Clark said that there is asphalt in the area and wondered how the area could be 
enhanced. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the entrance is on the northwest side of the building. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that there is an asphalt area from the entrance extending to the 
north end of the building.  This asphalt runs about 15’ or 20’.  There is a stairway on the 
north side leading to the basement and this is where the trucks park to unload 
deliveries.  It would not be practical to put grass in this area. 
 
Mrs. Johnson said that they could put in larger potted plants or smaller trees on the side 
of the building so that you would not be able to see the asphalt.  Mrs. Johnson said that 
they would also incorporate some type of greenery in this area.   They would be more  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

16 

 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
for decoration and this would enhance the appearance of the building.  Mrs. Johnson 
said that the trees were going to be re-planted in the area where they plan to put in the 
patio. 
 
Mr. Strat said that this is exactly what he is looking for and it would be somewhat 
inexpensive and would add color to the area.  He also said that it appears that they 
want to put in a 6’ cedar fence, which could be attractive and the greenery would add to 
the look of the property. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if an amendment could be made to the motion. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would like to see the words”landscaping as discussed” in the 
resolution 
 
Mr. Stimac also stated that they could require that landscaping plans be submitted and 
approved by the Building Department. 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Lambert 
 
MOVED, to AMEND the previous motion to include: 
 

• Landscaping plans must be submitted and approved by the Building Department. 
 
Vote on Motion to Amend 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOVED, to grant Norm & Carla Johnson, 1090 Rochester, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new outdoor seating area at an existing restaurant that is a legal non-
conforming structure.  The site plan submitted indicates that the outdoor dining area will 
have an 18’ front yard setback.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits the expansion of a legal non-
conforming structure in any way that increases the non-conformity. 
 

• Landscaping plans will be submitted and approved by the Building Department. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will have a positive effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

17 

 

ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LAITH HERMIZ OF RAMCO GERSHENSON, 
730-738 E. BIG BEAVER, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new commercial 
building with a proposed 15’ front yard setback to the north property line along Big 
Beaver where Section 30.20.05 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 75’ front yard 
setback in the B-2 Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new commercial building.  This building is located in the B-2 (Community Business) 
Zoning District.  Section 30.20.05 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 75’ front yard 
setback in the B-2 Zoning District.  The site plan submitted indicates a 15’ front yard 
setback to the north property line along Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Stimac also said that this plan had received approval from the Planning Commission 
dependent on this variance.  The Planning Commission also asked that this building be 
moved closer to Big Beaver in accordance with the Big Beaver Corridor study. 
 
Mr. Laith Hermiz, Vice-President of Development was present and stated that the owner 
of this property also owns the property to the south better known as the Troy 
Marketplace.  This property has been vacant for years and Mr. Hermiz believes the 
reason for this is because it is not a large piece of property and people do not believe it 
can be developed.  The Zoning is B-2 and is surrounded by commercial properties. This 
parcel is .63 acres and has a 75’ front setback, 30’ rear setback and a 20’ side yard 
setback.  If all the setbacks are complied with the building would only be 6,132 square 
feet of developmental area and is not conducive to the development of retail or office 
space.  Because of the ownership of the property to the south they can work with both 
properties and will provide a cross access easement.  This proposed building would be 
consistent with the use and would fit in with the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  There 
would be out door seating along Big Beaver.   They have also encouraged pedestrian 
access along Big Beaver by adding sidewalks along Big Beaver. They have spoken with 
Dan MacLeish, the owner of the property to the west and he stated that he has no 
objections to this request.  The Planning Commission gave site plan approval on May 
13, 2008 with the caveat that this setback variance would be granted.  Because of the 
size of this site, the practical difficulty is in meeting all of the setback requirements. 
 
Mr. Courtney confirmed that they owned the property to the south. 
 
Mr. Hermiz said that was correct. 
 
Mr. Courtney pointed out that they could actually move the building back 75’ and comply 
with the Ordinance.  Mr. Courtney also said that he likes the proposed location better. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing. 
 
No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

18 

 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Strat 
 
MOVED, to grant Laith Hermiz of Ramco Gershenson, 730-738 E. Big Beaver for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct a new commercial building with a proposed 15’ front yard 
setback to the north property line along Big Beaver where Section 30.20.05 of the 
Zoning Ordinance requires a 75’ front yard setback in the B-2 Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is in keeping with the Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
• Variance will have a positive effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat complimented the petitioner and said that this area has one of the nicest 
retention areas in the entire City. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if Mr. Hermiz knew what restaurant would be coming in. 
 
Mr. Hermiz said that it is called Pei Wei, which is a fast casual concept restaurant of P F 
Chang’s, which is located at Somerset Mall.  
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  AKZO NOBEL COATINGS, 1845 MAXWELL 
& 1716-1724 STUTZ, for relief Ordinance to construct an addition to their parking lot. A 
6’-0” high masonry screening wall is required by Section 30.10.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance where an M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District abuts Residentially Zoned 
Property.  The site plan submitted does not indicate a screening wall along the north 
and a portion of the west property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to their parking lot.  The property in questions in located in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) Zoning District. The adjacent property to the west and north is located in the 
RM-1 (Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District.  Section 30.10.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance requires a 6’-0” high masonry obscuring wall where M-1 property abuts 
residentially zoned property.  No such screening wall is shown on the site plan 
submitted along the north and a portion of the west property line. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked how far back on the property the wall would have to go. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

19 

 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it would have to go all the way back.  There is an existing retention 
pond in the area and the Board could grant a renewable variance on this item if they 
were concerned about the appearance of the new parking lot.   
 
Mr. Paul Oleskowicz, the Building Manager for Akzo Nobel Coatings was present and 
stated that this property originally consisted of two separate buildings.  The owners of 
the building joined them into one building.  They are asking not to put in a screen wall 
as there is a great deal of mature vegetation and it would have to be removed.  This 
landscaping does act as a natural barrier to the parking lot and they are hoping that they 
would not have to destroy it. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the Board could grant a variance for more than one year. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that if the Board is going to approve landscaping or a berm rather 
than a wall the maximum time limit is one-year; if the Board is going to consider waiving 
the requirement for the screen wall the Board can grant the variance for a period of 
three (3) years subject to renewal. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant AKZO Nobel Coatings, 1845 Maxwell & 1716-1724 Stutz a three-year 
variance for relief Ordinance to construct an addition to their parking lot without a 
screening wall along the north and a portion of the west property line where a 6’-0” high 
masonry screening wall is required by Section 39.10.01 of the Zoning Ordinance where 
an M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District abuts Residentially Zoned Property.   
 

• Three-year time limit will allow the Board to determine if the existing landscaping 
will provide enough of a barrier. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Lacking a variance, a large amount of natural vegetation would have to be 

destroyed. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR THREE-YEARS (3) CARRIED 
 
Mr. Clark said that he would prefer to see natural screening rather than a masonry wall. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

20 

 

ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  ZACH & MELISSA KEEN, 3833 
MEADOWBROOK, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a covered screen porch that 
will result with a 33.8’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 of the Ordinance 
requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a covered screen porch.  The site plan submitted indicates the construction on 
the rear of their home with a proposed 33.8’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 
requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac noticed a discrepancy in the drawings between what the petitioner first 
submitted in April and what they submitted for this hearing. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Keen were present, as well as their builder Mr. Tim Mash.  Mr. Keen 
turned in three (3) approval letters as well as an approval from the Homeowners 
Association.  Mr. Keen stated that they do not have any neighbors behind them and this 
setback would not interfere with the surrounding property.  The neighbors to the north 
have a line of foliage so this enclosure would not be visible to them and the neighbors to 
the south have a privacy fence.  The proposed screen porch would not be visible to any 
one driving by the property on Meadowbrook. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are a total of five (5) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on 
file. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the original denial letter was based on the petitioner’s request 
for a 33.8’ setback.  The new plans submitted show a 31.8’ setback that would result in 
the size of the addition at the back of the house to be 16’.  Public Hearing notices were 
sent out indicating that the variance was for a 33.8’ setback and the Board does not 
have the authority to grant a greater variance.  Mr. Stimac said that new Public Hearing 
notices would have to be sent out to surrounding property owners, indicating the new 
request. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked the petitioner if they would like the Board to act upon the 33.8’ 
request this evening or postpone the request for another month to allow new Public 
Hearing notices to be sent out. 
 
Mr. Keen said that he would rather wait another month and ask for the larger variance. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

21 

 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Zach and Melissa Keen, 3833 Meadowbrook, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a covered screen porch that will result with a 33.8’ 
rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 of the Ordinance requires a 45’ minimum rear 
yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 

• To allow the Building Department to re-publish and send notices to property 
owners within 300’ of this property indicating the request for a larger variance. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JULY 15, 2008 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #12 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  TROY-ROCHESTER PROPERTIES, LLC, 
3339 ROCHESTER ROAD (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new Tim Horton restaurant with a drive-up facility on a .96 acre site.  Section 
32.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance requires sites for restaurants with drive-up facilities in 
B-2 Districts to be at least one acre is size. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new Tim Horton restaurant with a drive-up facility at the southwest corner of 
Rochester Road and Vanderpool.  This property is in the B-2 (Community Business) 
Zoning Classification.  Section 21.30.02 requires sites for restaurants with drive-up 
facilities in B-2 Districts to be at least one acre in size.  The site plan submitted indicates 
that the site in only .96 acres. 
 
Mr. Burt Kassab of Troy-Rochester Properties was present and stated that they had 
come before this Board asking for a variance to construct a Dunkin Donuts; however, 
Dunkin Donuts backed out of the deal.  They now have a contract with Tim Horton.  Mr. 
Kassab said that they exceed the parking requirements by seven (7) spaces and meet 
all of the other requirements.  They have spoken to all of the surrounding neighbors and 
have not had any objections from them.  The Planning Commission has given them site 
plan approval.  They plan to add more landscaping and a screening wall.   
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Richard Wiles, 975 Vanderpool was present and stated that he lives directly north of 
this site.  Mr. Wiles feels there is plenty of land for this request.  Mr. Wiles also stated 
that the petitioner has been very diligent in working with the neighbors to resolve any 
objections they may have.  Mr. Wiles supports this request. 
 
Mr. Kim Antoine, 968 Vanderpool was present and stated that he had always hoped for 
a Tim Horton in Troy.  Mr. Antoine does not see a problem with this request and is in 
favor of this request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                JUNE 17, 2008 

22 

 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if they were going to extend the north wall all the way down to enclose 
the dumpster area. 
 
Mr. Kassab said that the definitely would enclose this area. 
 
Mr. Clark said that the neighbors approve this request and he does not see that it would 
a cause a problem for them. 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy-Rochester Properties, LLC, 3339 Rochester (proposed address), 
relief of the of the Ordinance to construct a new Tim Horton restaurant with a drive-up 
facility on a .96 acre site.  Section 32.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance requires sites for 
restaurants with drive-up facilities in B-2 Districts to be at least one acre is size. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:43 P.M. 
 
 
              
       Glenn Clark, Vice-Chair 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

1 

 

The Vice-Chair, Glenn Clark, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to order 
at 7:35 P.M. on Tuesday, June 17, 2008 in Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael Bartnik 
    Glenn Clark 
    Kenneth Courtney 
    Marcia Gies 
    Dave Lambert 
    Thomas Strat 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:   Matthew Kovacs 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Lambert 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Kovacs from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:   6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Lambert, Strat 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. KOVACS FROM TONIGHT’S MEETING CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MAY 20, 2008 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of May 20, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All - 6 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4. 
 
RESOLVED, that Item #3 and Item #4 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Courtney 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

2 

 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ZION CHRISTIAN CHURCH, 3668 LIVERNOIS, 
for relief of the 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south side of off-street 
parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board for a 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south property line adjacent to 
their off-street parking.  This relief has been granted on a yearly basis since 1985.  The 
property to the south is owned by the City of Troy at this time and is undeveloped.  This 
item last appeared before this Board in June 2005 and was granted a three (3) year 
renewal.  Conditions remain the same, and we have no objections or complaints on file.  
The property immediately to the south of this parcel has been purchased by the City of 
Troy, with the potential of becoming a park. 
 
MOVED, to grant Zion Christian Church, 3668 Livernois a three (3) year renewal of 
relief for the 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south property line adjacent to 
the off-street parking. 
 

• The City’s purchase of the adjacent property for park development only further 
justifies the need for the variance. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Conditions remain the same, and there are no complaints on file. 
• Variance does not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH, 4328 
LIVERNOIS, for relief of the 4’-6” high screening wall required along the south, east and 
north sides of off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board of the 4’-6” high wall required along the south, east and north sides of the 
property adjacent to the off-street parking.  The original request was granted based on 
the fact that the adjacent property was either undeveloped or screened by dense 
woods.  This relief has been granted on a yearly basis since 1988.  This item last 
appeared before this Board in June 2005 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at 
that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant First Presbyterian Church of Troy, 4328 Livernois a three (3) year 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high wall required along the southeast and north sides of 
the property adjacent to the off-street parking. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

3 

 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

• Conditions remain the same, and there are no complaints on file. 
• The adjacent property is either undeveloped or screened by dense woods. 

 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.   JOHN SPUDICH, 6618 MOUNTAIN, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of his home that will result in a 37’ 
rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in 
the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition on the rear of his existing home.  The plans submitted indicate a family-
dining room addition with a proposed 37’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 requires 
a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Strat informed the Board that he was the Architect on this project as well as the 
interior designer and did have a financial interest in the outcome.  Mr. Strat stated that 
he felt he should be excused from this presentation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Strat from this item as he has a conflict of interest due to a 
financial interest in the outcome. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Lambert, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. STRAT CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat left the podium. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if this was the smallest lot in this subdivision due to lot averaging. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that they have used lot averaging in this subdivision.  In the R-1B 
Zoning District the minimum lot width is 100’.  This lot is 92’ at the front property line and 
gets wider as it goes farther back.  Lot area requirements in the R-1B Zoning District is 
15,000 square feet, the side lot lines are 140 on the east and 150 on the west and Mr. 
Stimac said that it does appear that lot averaging was used.  Mr. Stimac said that he 
was unable to say if this was the smallest lot in the subdivision. 
 
Mr. John Spudich was present and stated that his hardship is that the setback 
requirement does not allow him to add the size of addition he is looking for.  Mr. Greg 
Stamlych was also present and Mr. Spudich said that Mr. Stamlych would speak for 
him. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

4 

 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stamlych stated that the petitioner had the opportunity to purchase a larger home in 
other areas; however, he decided to improve the existing property and stay in Troy.  
The lot shape is irregular in that it is wider in the back than the front and this creates the 
hardship.  There are a large number of trees at the rear of the property creating a 
natural barrier.  The 37’ setback is on one corner of the house. This house was built in 
1990 by Mr. Spudich and he will be putting in the addition on his own.  Mr. Stamlych 
passed out renderings of what they are proposing for this home. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that on the small side the addition is 37’ from the lot line and asked 
what the other side was. 
 
Mr. Spudich said that he believes it is close to 44’. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that no matter where the addition was, a variance would still be 
required.  Mr. Courtney asked if the front yard setback was larger than other homes in 
the area. 
 
Mr. Stamlych said that it is in line with other houses on the street. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that even if the lot was rectangular they would still be short. 
 
Mr. Stamlych said that if you measure directly out from where the addition is the east 
corner of the lot or perpendicular to the north/south lot lines an additional foot would be 
there.  
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Clark asked how far off would this addition be from the required setback if the lot 
was rectangular.  
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the front setback of this home is in line with the other houses 
and it appears that the front yard setback is 52.9’.  The minimum front yard setback is 
40’.  Mr. Stimac said that the house may have been setback this far on the lot due to the 
width of the house.  The setbacks are 40’ in the front and 45’ in the rear, which would 
allow you to build a house that, is 55’ in depth on a 140’ lot.  The existing house is 39’-4” 
and the addition is 16’ -6” and this would allow a 55’ depth.  If this lot was square you 
should be able to put up a house with a 55’ buildable footprint. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if notices had been sent out to the surrounding property owners. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

5 

 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that notices were sent to occupants and owners of property within 
300’ of the property and the notice was also published in the appropriate newspaper. 
 
Mr. Courtney pointed out that the three abutting properties did not object to this request. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant John Spudich, 6618 Mountain, relief of the Ordinance to construct an 
addition on the rear of an existing home that will result in a 37’ rear yard setback where 
Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will not establish a prohibited use within a Zoning District. 

 
Yeas:   5 – Lambert, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat returned to the podium. 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DEAN DEVONCE, 3490 CROOKS, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct an addition to his home that will result in a 6.2’ side yard 
setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 10’ minimum side yard setback in R-1B 
Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to his home.  The plot plan submitted indicates an addition with a proposed 
6.2’ side yard setback to the north property line.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 10’ 
minimum side yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Lambert stated that one of the objections received was from a homeowner on 
Portsmouth and asked what the relation of that property was to this property. 
 
Mr. Stimac told Mr. Lambert that he would check the records and give Mr. Lambert an 
answer as soon as he could. 
 
Mr. Dean DeVonce was present.  Mr. DeVonce brought in three (3) approval letters 
from neighbors.  Mr. DeVonce said that he had originally wanted to put this addition on 
the south side of the home but there is a 20’ easement in this area and he would not be 
able to put an addition in this area. The existing home is 1,000 square feet and he 
needs additional room as his family is growing. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

6 

 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. DeVonce would consider a smaller addition. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that he had considered a smaller addition but needs the garage to 
store their vehicles in.  Mr. DeVonce said that he owns three (3) vehicles and wants to 
be able to put his vehicles inside.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked about the existing garage at the rear of the home. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that he is planning to remove this garage and will replace it with this 
larger garage.  Mr. DeVonce said it is a block garage and the neighbors are very 
pleased that it will be torn down. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked why the addition couldn’t be put at the rear of the home. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that because his home is on Crooks he wants to be able to leave the 
yard as it is so that his children will have an area to play in.  If the addition was put on 
the rear of the home it would force his children to play in the side yard and he is 
concerned that they would wander onto Crooks Road. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if there were any easements on the side of this property. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Building Department is not aware of any recorded easements 
on this property.  This parcel is not part of a subdivision. 
 
Mr. Strat said that he did not see any utilities at the rear of the property and stated that 
he just wondered where they might be. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that in his opinion they would probably be located along Crooks Road.  
Looking at the aerial view of the property it appears that telephone poles are located 
along Crooks Road. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if he thought there were any telephone poles at the rear of the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he could not determine if there were any poles at the rear of the 
property from the aerial view. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was any written verification of a 20’ easement on the south 
side of this property. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that this is not a platted lot and he is not aware of an easement in this 
location.  The easement would be privately recorded. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the petitioner had anything indicating that there was an easement 
on the property. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

7 

 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that there is a sewer line 13’ off of the south side of the property from 
west to east.  Originally he wanted to put the addition on that side of the house but was 
turned down by Engineering. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if Mr. DeVonce was certain there was an easement in this location. 
 
Mr. DeVonce confirmed that there was an easement on the south side of this property. 
 
Mr. Courtney suggested postponing this request for thirty-days so that the Building 
Department could get verification of an easement. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if that information was in fact available. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that there is no way to tell from Building Department records if there is 
an easement in this area as it is not a platted subdivision.   
 
Mr. Strat said that there would be problems if anything was constructed on an easement 
and asked if the petitioner had received a mortgage survey at the time he purchased 
this property. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that he did and originally wanted to build on the south side of his 
home, but because of the sanitary sewer easement on this side he was not able to put 
the addition there. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if the easement was indicated on the mortgage survey. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that it was not. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if he had a title search done on the property. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that he did not, but in fact relied on the mortgage survey.  When he 
showed his plans to the Engineering Department, he was told that he could not build in 
this area due to the sewer easement. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if he could see where the water flows. 
 
Mr. DeVonce said that he can watch the water flow in this area. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are seven (7) written approvals on file.  There is one objection on file. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

8 

 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac informed Mr. Lambert that the property on Portsmouth that objected to this 
request is located on the north side of Portsmouth and is not adjacent to this property. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Dean DeVonce, 3490 Crooks, relief of the Ordinance to construct an 
addition to his home that will result in a 6.2’ side yard setback where Section 30.10.02 
requires a 10’ minimum side yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 

• Sewer easement is on the south side of the property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 

 
Yeas:   All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that in his opinion this was a very unique piece of property and believes 
the variance will have a positive impact to surrounding property.  
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MLS EQUITY, LLC, 1800 W. BIG BEAVER, for 
relief of the Ordinance to expand the existing parking that will be within 10’ of the front 
property line along McClure, where Section 29.50.07 requires that in the R-1B District 
the front yard setback is 40’. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to expand 
the existing parking lot.  The northern portion of this site is in the P-1 (Vehicular Parking) 
Zoning District.  The property to the immediate north is in the R-1B (One-Family 
Residential) Zoning District.  Section 39.50.07 of the Zoning Ordinance states that when 
a P-1 District is contiguous with a Residential District that has common frontage on the 
same block, there shall be a front yard setback at least equal to the required residential 
setback.  In the R-1B District the front yard setback is 40’.  The current parking lot 
meets this setback.  The site plan submitted indicates that the expanded parking lot will 
be within 10’ of the front property line along McClure. 
 
Mr. Dave Hunter of PEA Associates, the Civil Engineer on the project, and Mr. Mike 
Locricchio one of the owners of the property were present.  Mr. Hunter stated that 
presently the property consists of a 21,000 square foot office building.  On the first floor 
of the building there is an Architectural Office and a Medical Office.  A new Medical 
Office use is being proposed for the second floor.  A parking variance was granted in  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

9 

 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
2004 and the petitioner wants to add additional parking so that it is closer to the Medical 
Office.  This would allow the patients to park closer to the side door rather than at the 
back of the property.  Mr. Hunter also said that they do plan to add a screen wall around 
these new parking spaces that will match the existing screen wall.  They have submitted 
a site plan to the Planning Department. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what the net number of parking spaces that would be added in this 
section.  
 
Mr. Hunter said that nine new stalls would be added. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if they had considered moving the driveway north and putting the 
parking in farther south so that the parking spaces would be closer to the entrance of 
the building. 
 
Mr. Hunter said they had not considered that but it was a possibility. 
 
Mr. Bartnik also said that the application submitted indicates that there are other 
properties on Big Beaver Road that have a 10’ setback to the property line. 
 
Mr. Hunter said that directly to the west on the curve the parking lot is similar in nature 
and also that driveway lines up with their driveway. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if the parking spots would be designated for the re-habilitation center.   
 
Mr. Locricchio said they plan to put up signs that indicate that this parking is for the 
medical center and not for office parking.  They want to make sure there is sufficient 
parking for the tenants, but also want to provide this parking for the use of the medical 
office. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if they had any control over the parking to the east of this site. 
 
Mr. Hunter said that they are working with the property owner to the east regarding a 
cross access easement. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if this document had been submitted to the Planning Department. 
 
Mr. Hunter said that they did not have the document as this time, but felt that it would be 
ready by the time they came to the Planning Commission.  There is a cross access 
easement agreement underway. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if this could be a conditional variance regarding landscaping.   
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

10 

 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that this Board can impose a condition on the variance that landscaping 
is required. 
 
Mr. Stimac said there are other sites that have a 10’ greenbelt in front in this area, but 
that is because they are in other Zoning Districts. The northern portion of this site is 
zoned P-1, the opposite side of the street on McClure is in the O-1 Zoning District and 
they are allowed a minimum 10’ greenbelt. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if there was a requirement regarding the screen wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that besides the setback, another requirement in the P-1 Zoning is in 
fact a screen wall. The petitioner plans to put up the screen wall but is asking for a 
reduced setback to 10’. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if this request also includes a request for a reduction in landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner has not asked for a variance or exception to the 
landscape requirement so they would be required to meet the 10’ greenbelt with one 
tree per 10’. 
 
Mr. Strat said he understands that but he is looking for more than that.  Mr. Strat wants 
the screen wall to be compatible with the existing building.  Once a variance is granted 
there is no control over it unless the variance is conditioned including landscaping. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Strat was concerned about the property on the north or west 
sides. 
 
Mr. Strat said that he is concerned about both sides and he sees the property to the 
north as a gateway to the residential area. 
 
Mr. Hunter stated that they plan to install a wall that matches the wall that is there 
currently and do plan to have the screen wall come across the south property line. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they had any objection to additional screening. 
 
Mr. Hunter said that they did not. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Dr. Lee Weinstein was present and stated he has a medical practice in Bloomfield Hills.  
Dr. Weinstein reached an agreement with the owners of this property in March to open 
an office in this location.  To be able to accomplish the building alterations for the suite 
they want to lease, they require more parking.  This is creating a hardship for them and 
Dr. Weinstein asked that the Board approve this request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

11 

 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if Mr. Stimac knew how far the front of the house to the north of this 
property was from the property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the existing greenbelt in front of the parking area is at the 40’ 
setback and it appears that the front of the house is 20’ farther back than that.  Mr. 
Stimac said that he thought the house was approximately 60’ back from the front 
setback.  Right now the parking extends beyond the front line of the house and the 
petitioners are asking to add an additional 30’ to the parking area. 
 
Mr. Strat said that he was wondering if there was any room to add additional 
landscaping on the north side to buffer the residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the petitioners are proposing to run the screen wall from its current 
location and extend it to within 10’ of the property line and come straight south from 
there.    
 
Mr. Strat asked where the location of the wall was. 
 
Mr. Hunter stated that is was 1’ off the property line. 
 
Mr. Strat said that he would like to see more landscaping around this wall.  Mr. Strat 
also said that he wants the wall to be compatible with the building and enclosing the 
entire parking area.  Landscaping should be provided along both the north and west 
side of the wall as per the request of the Planning Commission. 
 
Motion by Strat 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant MLS Equity, LLC, 1800 W. Big Beaver, relief of the Ordinance to 
expand the existing parking that will be within 10’ of the front property line along 
McClure, where Section 29.50.07 requires that in the R-1B District the front yard 
setback is 40’. 
 

• Screen wall to enclose the parking area from the street to the north side 
compatible with the existing building material. 

• Landscaping is provided along the north as well as the west side of the wall 
suitable to the Planning Commission requirements. 

 
Mr. Clark asked what type of building material would be required. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

12 

 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the new screen wall would be constructed the same as the existing 
screen wall.  The existing building appears to be constructed of face brick and if Mr. 
Strat wishes the screen wall to be constructed the same as the building material that 
could be a condition of the motion. 
 
Mr. Clark said that the existing screen wall may not be constructed of the same material 
as the existing building and asked if this would be an issue. 
 
Mr. Strat said that when he drove by the area, he thought the existing screen wall was a 
poured wall and it does not appear to match the building.  The existing screen wall is far 
back on the property, so if there is a dissimilarity of the material he wouldn’t worry about 
it.  He is more concerned about the appearance of the wall along the west side of the 
property. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the north wall that would now be extending west would be 
compatible to the existing building as well as the part of the wall that is running north 
and south. 
 
Mr. Strat said that was correct. 
 
Yeas:   All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Ms. Cathie Walton, the building manager for 1740 W. Big Beaver was present and 
asked if the new wall would be different from the existing wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the new screen wall along the north side and along the south 
side would be brick, which would match the building. 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  NORM & CARLA JOHNSON, 1090 
ROCHESTER, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new outdoor seating area at an 
existing restaurant that is a legal non-conforming structure.  The site plan submitted 
indicates that the outdoor dining area will have an 18’ front yard setback.  Section 
40.50.04 prohibits the expansion of a legal non-conforming structure in any way that 
increases the non-conformity. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new outdoor seating area at an existing restaurant.  The property in 
question is located in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District.  Restaurants are not a 
principal permitted use in the M-1 District.  The use of the property as a restaurant 
predates the current Ordinance restrictions that prohibit the use; therefore, the use of 
the site as a restaurant is a legal non-conforming use.  Section 40.50.05 of the Zoning 
Ordinance prohibits the expansion of a legal non-conforming use. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

13 

 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
In addition, Section 30.20.08 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front setback for 
buildings in the M-1 District.  The existing building is only 18’ from the front property line 
along Rochester Road.  Because of the age of the development this condition makes 
this building a legal non-conforming structure.  The site plan submitted indicates that the 
outdoor dining area will continue the 18’ front setback.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits the 
expansion of a legal non-conforming structure in any way that increases the non-
conformity. 
 
Mr. Stimac further stated that the Ordinance was changed within the last few years to 
allow a restaurant in the M-1 Zoning District with Special Use Approval.  This site has 
not yet received this Special Use Approval.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a variance would be required if this site was given approval for a 
Special Use. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that a variance would still be required in order to allow the 
expansion of a legal non-conforming structure.  There is no guarantee that they would 
get a Special Use Approval from the Planning Commission.  This is a discretionary 
decision by the Planning Commission.  Because of the location and age of this building 
there are a number of things that do not conform. 
 
Mr. Strat said that real advantage to a Special Use Approval is that they could require 
more landscaping to help beautify the area.  Mr. Strat likes the idea of outdoor seating 
and is very supportive of this effort, but would also be in favor of a Special Land Use 
Approval as they would be able to get more amenities added. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that even if they went to the Planning Commission they may come 
back before this Board. 
 
Mr. Strat said that speaking for himself he is very much in favor of this request.  The 
Planning Commission supports requests to beautify the property and encourages 
businesses to add improvements to the area. 
 
Norm and Carla Johnson were present.  Mr. Johnson stated that they had purchased 
this property approximately six months ago and they are trying very hard to enhance the 
south end of Troy.  There are a lot of businesses close by and Mr. Johnson believes 
that they would take advantage of the outdoor dining as these patrons would not have 
to drive to get to this location.  They have had many customers that have asked for 
outdoor dining and they would like to be able to accommodate them.  The goal for the 
restaurant is to offer great food and service in a relaxed atmosphere.  Mr. Johnson said 
that they understand that they do not meet the 50’ requirement but this area will be 
fenced and will not distract drivers and there will be no noise concerns.  The only way to 
enter or exit the outdoor area will be through the restaurant.  Mr. and Mrs. Johnson 
have worked very hard to improve the look of the restaurant and believe that they have  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

14 

 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
made many positive changes.  Mr. Johnson said that outdoor dining is critical to the 
success of their business. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked for more detail on the proposed fencing and the windows. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that he is willing to do whatever the Board wants them to do in order 
to get the outdoor dining.  Mr. Johnson said that he did not realize the scope of work 
that needed approval and he would do what he has to do. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was a way to approve this request so that they could 
operate and require them to apply to the Planning Commission for a Special Use 
Approval.  Mr. Courtney said that he liked this idea and did not want to tie up the 
petitioner for any length of time. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if Mr. Stimac had any idea of how long it would take for this item to be 
placed on the agenda for the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the item would have to be published as it is a Public Hearing and 
thought it would probably take between thirty and sixty days before it would come 
before the Planning Commission.  Mr. Stimac said that he did not know what the 
deadline was for requests to come before the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Strat said that the Planning Commission meets three times a month so he would 
hope that the item could be expedited and asked if there was any way it could be 
moved ahead.  Mr. Strat said that he believes this is a great idea and thinks that it would 
be supported by the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Building Department would be more than happy to provide 
Mr. Miller with whatever information he required to place this item on the agenda for the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thought the item could be postponed for 30 days to determine 
the time table for it to appear before the Planning Commission.  This item could be 
acted upon next month if it was going to take too long to appear before the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that notices for this Public Hearing have already been sent out, as well 
as being published in the newspaper and there have been no responses indicating 
disapproval of this request.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

15 

 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Lambert 
 
MOVED, to grant Norm & Carla Johnson, 1090 Rochester relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new outdoor seating area at an existing restaurant that is a legal non-
conforming structure.  The site plan submitted indicates that the outdoor dining area will 
have an 18’ front yard setback.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits the expansion of a legal non-
conforming structure in any way that increases the non-conformity. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would have a positive effect to surrounding property. 

 
Mr. Clark said that the petitioner would do whatever was required and asked how he 
planned to enhance the outdoor area.  Mr. Clark went on to say that he lives near 14 
Mile and John R. and is not very impressed by the outdoor seating area provided by 
another restaurant in the area. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that this was a hard question to answer.  There is a property to the 
north of “Field of Dreams” that has an outdoor waterfall and if he could that is exactly 
where he would put this seating area.  Traffic approaching from the south has a difficult 
time seeing this property as there is a large tree in the area that blocks out the view of 
the restaurant during the summer.  The trees along Rochester Road already block the 
view of the building for traffic heading northbound.  If they were to put in more trees it 
would be harder to see the building. 
 
Mr. Clark asked where the trees were located. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that there are a number of trees on the southwest corner of 
Elmsford and Rochester and then extending for quite a way in the right of way north on 
Rochester Road.   
 
Mr. Clark said that there is asphalt in the area and wondered how the area could be 
enhanced. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the entrance is on the northwest side of the building. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that there is an asphalt area from the entrance extending to the 
north end of the building.  This asphalt runs about 15’ or 20’.  There is a stairway on the 
north side leading to the basement and this is where the trucks park to unload 
deliveries.  It would not be practical to put grass in this area. 
 
Mrs. Johnson said that they could put in larger potted plants or smaller trees on the side 
of the building so that you would not be able to see the asphalt.  Mrs. Johnson said that 
they would also incorporate some type of greenery in this area.   They would be more  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

16 

 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
for decoration and this would enhance the appearance of the building.  Mrs. Johnson 
said that the trees were going to be re-planted in the area where they plan to put in the 
patio. 
 
Mr. Strat said that this is exactly what he is looking for and it would be somewhat 
inexpensive and would add color to the area.  He also said that it appears that they 
want to put in a 6’ cedar fence, which could be attractive and the greenery would add to 
the look of the property. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if an amendment could be made to the motion. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would like to see the words”landscaping as discussed” in the 
resolution 
 
Mr. Stimac also stated that they could require that landscaping plans be submitted and 
approved by the Building Department. 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Lambert 
 
MOVED, to AMEND the previous motion to include: 
 

• Landscaping plans must be submitted and approved by the Building Department. 
 
Vote on Motion to Amend 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOVED, to grant Norm & Carla Johnson, 1090 Rochester, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new outdoor seating area at an existing restaurant that is a legal non-
conforming structure.  The site plan submitted indicates that the outdoor dining area will 
have an 18’ front yard setback.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits the expansion of a legal non-
conforming structure in any way that increases the non-conformity. 
 

• Landscaping plans will be submitted and approved by the Building Department. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will have a positive effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

17 

 

ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LAITH HERMIZ OF RAMCO GERSHENSON, 
730-738 E. BIG BEAVER, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new commercial 
building with a proposed 15’ front yard setback to the north property line along Big 
Beaver where Section 30.20.05 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 75’ front yard 
setback in the B-2 Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new commercial building.  This building is located in the B-2 (Community Business) 
Zoning District.  Section 30.20.05 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 75’ front yard 
setback in the B-2 Zoning District.  The site plan submitted indicates a 15’ front yard 
setback to the north property line along Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Stimac also said that this plan had received approval from the Planning Commission 
dependent on this variance.  The Planning Commission also asked that this building be 
moved closer to Big Beaver in accordance with the Big Beaver Corridor study. 
 
Mr. Laith Hermiz, Vice-President of Development was present and stated that the owner 
of this property also owns the property to the south better known as the Troy 
Marketplace.  This property has been vacant for years and Mr. Hermiz believes the 
reason for this is because it is not a large piece of property and people do not believe it 
can be developed.  The Zoning is B-2 and is surrounded by commercial properties. This 
parcel is .63 acres and has a 75’ front setback, 30’ rear setback and a 20’ side yard 
setback.  If all the setbacks are complied with the building would only be 6,132 square 
feet of developmental area and is not conducive to the development of retail or office 
space.  Because of the ownership of the property to the south they can work with both 
properties and will provide a cross access easement.  This proposed building would be 
consistent with the use and would fit in with the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  There 
would be out door seating along Big Beaver.   They have also encouraged pedestrian 
access along Big Beaver by adding sidewalks along Big Beaver. They have spoken with 
Dan MacLeish, the owner of the property to the west and he stated that he has no 
objections to this request.  The Planning Commission gave site plan approval on May 
13, 2008 with the caveat that this setback variance would be granted.  Because of the 
size of this site, the practical difficulty is in meeting all of the setback requirements. 
 
Mr. Courtney confirmed that they owned the property to the south. 
 
Mr. Hermiz said that was correct. 
 
Mr. Courtney pointed out that they could actually move the building back 75’ and comply 
with the Ordinance.  Mr. Courtney also said that he likes the proposed location better. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing. 
 
No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

18 

 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Strat 
 
MOVED, to grant Laith Hermiz of Ramco Gershenson, 730-738 E. Big Beaver for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct a new commercial building with a proposed 15’ front yard 
setback to the north property line along Big Beaver where Section 30.20.05 of the 
Zoning Ordinance requires a 75’ front yard setback in the B-2 Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is in keeping with the Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
• Variance will have a positive effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat complimented the petitioner and said that this area has one of the nicest 
retention areas in the entire City. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if Mr. Hermiz knew what restaurant would be coming in. 
 
Mr. Hermiz said that it is called Pei Wei, which is a fast casual concept restaurant of P F 
Chang’s, which is located at Somerset Mall.  
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  AKZO NOBEL COATINGS, 1845 MAXWELL 
& 1716-1724 STUTZ, for relief Ordinance to construct an addition to their parking lot. A 
6’-0” high masonry screening wall is required by Section 30.10.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance where an M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District abuts Residentially Zoned 
Property.  The site plan submitted does not indicate a screening wall along the north 
and a portion of the west property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to their parking lot.  The property in questions in located in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) Zoning District. The adjacent property to the west and north is located in the 
RM-1 (Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District.  Section 30.10.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance requires a 6’-0” high masonry obscuring wall where M-1 property abuts 
residentially zoned property.  No such screening wall is shown on the site plan 
submitted along the north and a portion of the west property line. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked how far back on the property the wall would have to go. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

19 

 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it would have to go all the way back.  There is an existing retention 
pond in the area and the Board could grant a renewable variance on this item if they 
were concerned about the appearance of the new parking lot.   
 
Mr. Paul Oleskowicz, the Building Manager for Akzo Nobel Coatings was present and 
stated that this property originally consisted of two separate buildings.  The owners of 
the building joined them into one building.  They are asking not to put in a screen wall 
as there is a great deal of mature vegetation and it would have to be removed.  This 
landscaping does act as a natural barrier to the parking lot and they are hoping that they 
would not have to destroy it. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the Board could grant a variance for more than one year. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that if the Board is going to approve landscaping or a berm rather 
than a wall the maximum time limit is one-year; if the Board is going to consider waiving 
the requirement for the screen wall the Board can grant the variance for a period of 
three (3) years subject to renewal. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant AKZO Nobel Coatings, 1845 Maxwell & 1716-1724 Stutz a three-year 
variance for relief Ordinance to construct an addition to their parking lot without a 
screening wall along the north and a portion of the west property line where a 6’-0” high 
masonry screening wall is required by Section 39.10.01 of the Zoning Ordinance where 
an M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District abuts Residentially Zoned Property.   
 

• Three-year time limit will allow the Board to determine if the existing landscaping 
will provide enough of a barrier. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Lacking a variance, a large amount of natural vegetation would have to be 

destroyed. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR THREE-YEARS (3) CARRIED 
 
Mr. Clark said that he would prefer to see natural screening rather than a masonry wall. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

20 

 

ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  ZACH & MELISSA KEEN, 3833 
MEADOWBROOK, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a covered screen porch that 
will result with a 33.8’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 of the Ordinance 
requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a covered screen porch.  The site plan submitted indicates the construction on 
the rear of their home with a proposed 33.8’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 
requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac noticed a discrepancy in the drawings between what the petitioner first 
submitted in April and what they submitted for this hearing. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Keen were present, as well as their builder Mr. Tim Mash.  Mr. Keen 
turned in three (3) approval letters as well as an approval from the Homeowners 
Association.  Mr. Keen stated that they do not have any neighbors behind them and this 
setback would not interfere with the surrounding property.  The neighbors to the north 
have a line of foliage so this enclosure would not be visible to them and the neighbors to 
the south have a privacy fence.  The proposed screen porch would not be visible to any 
one driving by the property on Meadowbrook. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are a total of five (5) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on 
file. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the original denial letter was based on the petitioner’s request 
for a 33.8’ setback.  The new plans submitted show a 31.8’ setback that would result in 
the size of the addition at the back of the house to be 16’.  Public Hearing notices were 
sent out indicating that the variance was for a 33.8’ setback and the Board does not 
have the authority to grant a greater variance.  Mr. Stimac said that new Public Hearing 
notices would have to be sent out to surrounding property owners, indicating the new 
request. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked the petitioner if they would like the Board to act upon the 33.8’ 
request this evening or postpone the request for another month to allow new Public 
Hearing notices to be sent out. 
 
Mr. Keen said that he would rather wait another month and ask for the larger variance. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

21 

 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Zach and Melissa Keen, 3833 Meadowbrook, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a covered screen porch that will result with a 33.8’ 
rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 of the Ordinance requires a 45’ minimum rear 
yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 

• To allow the Building Department to re-publish and send notices to property 
owners within 300’ of this property indicating the request for a larger variance. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JULY 15, 2008 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #12 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  TROY-ROCHESTER PROPERTIES, LLC, 
3339 ROCHESTER ROAD (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new Tim Horton restaurant with a drive-up facility on a .96 acre site.  Section 
32.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance requires sites for restaurants with drive-up facilities in 
B-2 Districts to be at least one acre is size. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new Tim Horton restaurant with a drive-up facility at the southwest corner of 
Rochester Road and Vanderpool.  This property is in the B-2 (Community Business) 
Zoning Classification.  Section 21.30.02 requires sites for restaurants with drive-up 
facilities in B-2 Districts to be at least one acre in size.  The site plan submitted indicates 
that the site in only .96 acres. 
 
Mr. Burt Kassab of Troy-Rochester Properties was present and stated that they had 
come before this Board asking for a variance to construct a Dunkin Donuts; however, 
Dunkin Donuts backed out of the deal.  They now have a contract with Tim Horton.  Mr. 
Kassab said that they exceed the parking requirements by seven (7) spaces and meet 
all of the other requirements.  They have spoken to all of the surrounding neighbors and 
have not had any objections from them.  The Planning Commission has given them site 
plan approval.  They plan to add more landscaping and a screening wall.   
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Richard Wiles, 975 Vanderpool was present and stated that he lives directly north of 
this site.  Mr. Wiles feels there is plenty of land for this request.  Mr. Wiles also stated 
that the petitioner has been very diligent in working with the neighbors to resolve any 
objections they may have.  Mr. Wiles supports this request. 
 
Mr. Kim Antoine, 968 Vanderpool was present and stated that he had always hoped for 
a Tim Horton in Troy.  Mr. Antoine does not see a problem with this request and is in 
favor of this request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                               JUNE 17, 2008 

22 

 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if they were going to extend the north wall all the way down to enclose 
the dumpster area. 
 
Mr. Kassab said that the definitely would enclose this area. 
 
Mr. Clark said that the neighbors approve this request and he does not see that it would 
a cause a problem for them. 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy-Rochester Properties, LLC, 3339 Rochester (proposed address), 
relief of the of the Ordinance to construct a new Tim Horton restaurant with a drive-up 
facility on a .96 acre site.  Section 32.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance requires sites for 
restaurants with drive-up facilities in B-2 Districts to be at least one acre is size. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:43 P.M. 
 
 
              
       Glenn Clark, Vice-Chair 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 24, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on June 24, 2008 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Philip Sanzica 
Mark Maxwell Mark J. Vleck 
Robert M. Schultz Wayne Wright 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-06-076 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Sanzica, Vleck and Wright are excused from 
attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes:  All (6) 
Absent:  Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-06-077 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised.  
 
Yes:  All (6) 
Absent:  Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 24, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Mr. Tagle asked for clarification of a comment made by Burt Kassab at the June 10, 
2008 Regular meeting.  He requested that Page 7 of the draft minutes be revised so 
that the final sentence of the fifth paragraph reads: “He said the restaurant’s 
maximum number of seats is 35”. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-06-078 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 3, 2008 Special/Study Meeting 
and the June 10, 2008 Regular Meeting as revised. 
 
Yes: All (6) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat made a brief BZA Report. 
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Miller made a brief DDA Report.  At their June meeting, DDA members 
discussed proposed gateway improvements at the Big Beaver/Rochester Road 
intersection.  Plans were distributed and discussed. 
 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Miller made a brief Planning and Zoning Report. 
 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
8. DRAFT CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN 

 
Mr. Miller introduced the item. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 24, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Branigan summarized the draft Master Plan, including a description of the 
conceptual nature of the Future Land Use Plan as described on page 88 of the 
Master Plan. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for questions. 
 
Dennis Cowan, 38505 Woodward Avenue, Suite 2000, Birmingham, attorney for 
White Chapel Cemetery, addressed the Planning Commission.  Mr. Cowan stated 
that he and his clients have reviewed the proposed revision which provides for 
cemetery uses within the Neighborhood Node located at the intersection of Crooks 
and Wattles.  He stated it is a great compromise.  He assumed that the Planning 
Commission would act in good faith when updating the Zoning Ordinance in the 
future, so that the Zoning Map would be consistent with the Master Plan. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated the proposed revision was a very good compromise. 
 
Deanna Ball, 926 West Wattles, asked what the impacts would be on her residential 
property if it were to be located within the Neighborhood Node. 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the potential impacts. 
 
Mr. Branigan summarized grammatical and non-substantive changes made to the 
Master Plan. 
 
Resolution # 2008-06  (motion amended) 
 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The responsibility of cities and villages to adopt and update a master 
plan is outlined in the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended; and   
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission prepared the draft City of Troy 2008 Master 
Plan; and,  
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has determined that the draft City of Troy 
2008 Master Plan represents the long-range vision of the City of Troy. 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission recommends that the 
City Council authorize distribution of the draft City of Troy 2008 Master Plan, “June 
10 Draft for Distribution”, as per the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act, PA 
285 of 1931, as amended, with page 95 being revised as discussed and other minor 
grammar and non-substantive revisions as discussed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 24, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Schultz suggested adding a paragraph to the motion on the floor that White 
Chapel Cemetery representatives have reviewed the proposed text revision and 
agrees with the proposed text revision. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-06-079 
 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, to add the following to the motion on the floor.  
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has discussed this issue at two 
previous meetings and White Chapel Cemetery representatives have reviewed 
the Master Plan revision and agreed to the revision. 

 
Yes: All (6) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution# PC-2008-06-080 (as amended) 
 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The responsibility of cities and villages to adopt and update a master 
plan is outlined in the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission prepared the draft City of Troy 2008 Master 
Plan; and,  
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has determined that the draft City of Troy 
2008 Master Plan represents the long-range vision of the City of Troy; and, 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has discussed this issue at two previous 
meetings and the White Chapel Cemetery representatives have reviewed the 
Master Plan revision and agreed to the revision. 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission recommends that the 
City Council authorize distribution of the draft City of Troy 2008 Master Plan, “June 
10 Draft for Distribution”, as per the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act, PA 
285 of 1931, as amended, with page 95 being revised as discussed and other minor 
grammar and non-substantive revisions as discussed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 24, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Yes: All (6) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
9. DDA DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES 

 
Mr. Branigan provided a project update and summarized the proposed intent and 
layout of the document. 
 

Mr. Branigan stated the intent of a joint Planning Commission/Downtown 
Development Authority Special meeting is to describe the existing conditions of the 
DDA District and discuss the intent of the document. 
 

General discussion followed. 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 

Mr. Miller introduced the item and summarized the proposed text amendment 
process to date. 
 

Mr. Savidant presented a slide show to generate discussion and reach consensus 
on a number of issues relating to commercial vehicle definitions and regulations. 
 

General discussion followed.  
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

11. JOINT PLANNING COMMISSION/DDA MEETING 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-06-081 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission shall hold a Special Meeting on 
Wednesday, July 23 at 7:30 a.m. in the Troy Public Library, Library Meeting Room, 
510 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan. 
 
Yes:  All (6) 
Absent:  Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 24, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 6 - 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

13. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There was general discussion. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the timing of BZA actions on items that require 
Planning Commission action.  The Planning Commission generally agreed that the 
Planning Commission should consider these items prior to consideration and action 
by the BZA. 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:25 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2008 PC Minutes\Draft\06-24-08 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 24, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on June 24, 2008 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Philip Sanzica 
Mark Maxwell Mark J. Vleck 
Robert M. Schultz Wayne Wright 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-06-076 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Sanzica, Vleck and Wright are excused from 
attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes:  All (6) 
Absent:  Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-06-077 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised.  
 
Yes:  All (6) 
Absent:  Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 24, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Mr. Tagle asked for clarification of a comment made by Burt Kassab at the June 10, 
2008 Regular meeting.  He requested that Page 7 of the draft minutes be revised so 
that the final sentence of the fifth paragraph reads: “He said the restaurant’s 
maximum number of seats is 35”. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-06-078 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 3, 2008 Special/Study Meeting 
and the June 10, 2008 Regular Meeting as revised. 
 
Yes: All (6) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat made a brief BZA Report. 
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Miller made a brief DDA Report.  At their June meeting, DDA members 
discussed proposed gateway improvements at the Big Beaver/Rochester Road 
intersection.  Plans were distributed and discussed. 
 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Miller made a brief Planning and Zoning Report. 
 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
8. DRAFT CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN 

 
Mr. Miller introduced the item. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 24, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Branigan summarized the draft Master Plan, including a description of the 
conceptual nature of the Future Land Use Plan as described on page 88 of the 
Master Plan. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for questions. 
 
Dennis Cowan, 38505 Woodward Avenue, Suite 2000, Birmingham, attorney for 
White Chapel Cemetery, addressed the Planning Commission.  Mr. Cowan stated 
that he and his clients have reviewed the proposed revision which provides for 
cemetery uses within the Neighborhood Node located at the intersection of Crooks 
and Wattles.  He stated it is a great compromise.  He assumed that the Planning 
Commission would act in good faith when updating the Zoning Ordinance in the 
future, so that the Zoning Map would be consistent with the Master Plan. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated the proposed revision was a very good compromise. 
 
Deanna Ball, 926 West Wattles, asked what the impacts would be on her residential 
property if it were to be located within the Neighborhood Node. 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the potential impacts. 
 
Mr. Branigan summarized grammatical and non-substantive changes made to the 
Master Plan. 
 
Resolution # 2008-06  (motion amended) 
 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The responsibility of cities and villages to adopt and update a master 
plan is outlined in the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended; and   
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission prepared the draft City of Troy 2008 Master 
Plan; and,  
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has determined that the draft City of Troy 
2008 Master Plan represents the long-range vision of the City of Troy. 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission recommends that the 
City Council authorize distribution of the draft City of Troy 2008 Master Plan, “June 
10 Draft for Distribution”, as per the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act, PA 
285 of 1931, as amended, with page 95 being revised as discussed and other minor 
grammar and non-substantive revisions as discussed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 24, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Schultz suggested adding a paragraph to the motion on the floor that White 
Chapel Cemetery representatives have reviewed the proposed text revision and 
agrees with the proposed text revision. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-06-079 
 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, to add the following to the motion on the floor.  
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has discussed this issue at two 
previous meetings and White Chapel Cemetery representatives have reviewed 
the Master Plan revision and agreed to the revision. 

 
Yes: All (6) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution# PC-2008-06-080 (as amended) 
 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The responsibility of cities and villages to adopt and update a master 
plan is outlined in the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission prepared the draft City of Troy 2008 Master 
Plan; and,  
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has determined that the draft City of Troy 
2008 Master Plan represents the long-range vision of the City of Troy; and, 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has discussed this issue at two previous 
meetings and the White Chapel Cemetery representatives have reviewed the 
Master Plan revision and agreed to the revision. 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission recommends that the 
City Council authorize distribution of the draft City of Troy 2008 Master Plan, “June 
10 Draft for Distribution”, as per the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act, PA 
285 of 1931, as amended, with page 95 being revised as discussed and other minor 
grammar and non-substantive revisions as discussed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 24, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Yes: All (6) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
9. DDA DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES 

 
Mr. Branigan provided a project update and summarized the proposed intent and 
layout of the document. 
 

Mr. Branigan stated the intent of a joint Planning Commission/Downtown 
Development Authority Special meeting is to describe the existing conditions of the 
DDA District and discuss the intent of the document. 
 

General discussion followed. 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 

Mr. Miller introduced the item and summarized the proposed text amendment 
process to date. 
 

Mr. Savidant presented a slide show to generate discussion and reach consensus 
on a number of issues relating to commercial vehicle definitions and regulations. 
 

General discussion followed.  
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

11. JOINT PLANNING COMMISSION/DDA MEETING 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-06-081 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission shall hold a Special Meeting on 
Wednesday, July 23 at 7:30 a.m. in the Troy Public Library, Library Meeting Room, 
510 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan. 
 
Yes:  All (6) 
Absent:  Sanzica, Vleck, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 





BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JULY 2, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, July 2, 2008 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – JUNE 4, 2008 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 4, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. BENJAMIN PALMER, 3024 
NEWPORT CT., for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high wood privacy fence at the 
property line along W. Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a 6’ high wood privacy fence.  This property is a double front thru-lot.  It has front yard 
setback requirements along both Newport and W. Big Beaver.  Chapter 83 limits the 
maximum height of fences in front setbacks to 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 
6’ high wood privacy fence along the property line along W. Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Benjamin Palmer was present and stated that he and his wife have four (4) children 
and would like this fence to keep them in the yard and away from Big Beaver.  This 
privacy fence will also help to alleviate the lights and noise from traffic along Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what type of fence Mr. Palmer is proposing. 
 
Mr. Palmer said that it is the typical 6’ wood privacy fence.  Mr. Palmer also said that 
they are planning to put a more decorative type of fence along Newport Ct., which will 
include a design at the top of the fence.  The fence along Newport Ct. will only be 4’ 
high. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the location of the fence along Big Beaver. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JULY 2, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Palmer stated that his plan was to put the fence at the top of the berm along Big 
Beaver. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked where the location of the fence would fall in relation to the existing 
trees in the area. 
 
Mr. Palmer said that the fence would be behind the first row of trees.  Mr. Palmer also 
stated that they had purchased this home approximately one year ago and it needs a lot 
of work.  There are two rows of existing trees and the fence would be placed in between 
these trees. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked why Mr. Palmer wanted a 6’ high fence at the top of the berm rather 
than a 4’ high fence. 
 
Mr. Palmer stated that there is a pathway along this area and they would prefer to have 
the higher fence. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he understands what Mr. Palmer is saying and asked what is 
located on the northeast corner of the property. 
 
Mr. Palmer said that this is a utility easement and the fence will go around it. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that Mr. Palmer will be responsible to maintain this area as well as 
the area behind the fence along Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the petitioner planned to replace the existing split rail fence along 
the property. 
 
Mr. Palmer stated that this fence is on City property and the City maintains that part of 
the property.  Mr. Palmer further stated that his property line is approximately 6’ to 8’ off 
the sidewalk, and currently there is a lot of ground cover in the area. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked which side of the fence would be facing out. 
 
Mr. Palmer said that along Big Beaver the post side would be facing his home and the 
blank side of the fencing would be facing Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that wood fences can become unsightly over time and when the trees 
lose their leaves the fence would be very visible.  Mr. Kessler also asked who had 
placed the stakes out on the berm. 
 
Mr. Palmer stated that he had done that in order to outline where the fence would be. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how much vegetation would be outside the fence. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JULY 2, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Palmer said that there are trees half way up, and due to the nature of the berm 
there is no vegetation at the top of the berm.  There is quite a bit of vegetation on the 
side of the berm that slopes into the yard.  Mr. Palmer also said that if this Board 
wanted him to add additional vegetation he would be willing to do that. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if a 30” high fence could be placed around the entire yard without a 
variance. 
 
Mr. Stimac confirmed that was correct. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked who would be installing the fence. 
 
Mr. Palmer indicated that he planned on doing the installation himself. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he has found through personal experience that it is very difficult 
to put 6’ high panels at the top of a berm and stated that in his opinion a fence that was 
4’ in height would serve the same purpose. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he can understand Mr. Palmer’s concerns as there is a lot of 
vegetation and the area is quite secluded due to the growth around the property.  Mr. 
Kessler further stated that he would like to see a 4’ fence and more landscaping added 
such as evergreens.   
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that a 4’ high fence will definitely increase the height of the berm 
and Mr. Richnak said that he though the berm was probably 6’ in height. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked the petitioner if he would be willing to make a compromise. 
 
Mr. Palmer stated that a lot of the vegetation is over growth and not very attractive.  He 
plans to clean up the area and remove a lot of the over growth.  Mr. Palmer said that 
they are trying to improve the look of the property.  Mr. Palmer also stated that he did 
not believe the 4’ height would give them the privacy they want and would not help with 
the sound or the lights from cars using Big Beaver.  Mr. Palmer said that they would 
prefer the 6’ height, but would put up the 4’ fence if that is all the Board would approve. 
 
Mr. Palmer also said that he has spoken to the neighbors to the west and the three 
neighbors to the right of his property and they have all indicated that they approve this 
request. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JULY 2, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if they had considered using any other material for this fence. 
 
Mr. Palmer indicated that they had, but it is cost prohibitive. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Benjamin Palmer, 3024 Newport CT. relief of Chapter 83 to 
install a 6’ high wood privacy fence at the property line along W. Big Beaver. 
 

 Additional landscaping to be provided along Big Beaver. 

 Fence posts to face inside petitioner’s property. 

 Area around utility boxes and area between fence and Big Beaver to be 
maintained by petitioner. 

 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:54 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Draft July 9, 2008 

 

 

 1 

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, July 9, 2008, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084.   
 
The meeting was called to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 

 

Trustees Present:   Nancy Bowren 
Mark Calice 

     Martin F. Howrylak 
John M. Lamerato 
William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 
Phillip L. Nelson 

 

Trustees Absent:   Michael Geise 
Thomas J. Gordon, II 

 
 

 
Excuse Absent Members          
Resolution # ER – 2008-7-27 
Moved by Bowren 
Seconded by Nelson 

 
RESOLVED, That Michael Geise and Thomas J. Gordon, II be excused. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent: Geise, Gordon 

 

Minutes             
Resolution # ER – 2008-7-28 
Moved by Bowren 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the June 11, 2008 meeting be approved as amended. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent:  Geise, Gordon 

 

Investments            
Resolution # ER – 2008-7-29 
Moved by Bowren 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the board purchase and sell the following investments: 
 

Purchase:  5,000 shares Freeport McMoran 
   5,000 shares Chesapeake Energy 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Draft July 9, 2008 

 

 

 2 

   5,000 shares Fording 
   5,000 shares Peabody Energy 
   $500,000 Verizon, 5.875% due 1/17/12 
   $500,000 Anheuser Busch, 4.70% due 4/15/12 
   $500,000 Kraft, 6.25% due 6/1/12 
  

Sell:   Jack Henry & Associates 
   Philadelphia Consolidated Holdings 
   10,000 shares Wells Fargo 
   10,000 calls Wells Fargo 
   Bank America 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent: Geise, Gordon 
 

Public Comment            
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The next meeting is August 13, 2008 at 12:00 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:34 p.m.  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JML/mr\Retirement Board\2008\7.09.08 – Minutes_Draft 



RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN & TRUST MINUTES –Draft July 9, 2008 

 

 

 1 

A meeting of the Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, July 9, 2008, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084.   
 
The meeting was called to order at 1:35 p.m. 
 

 

Trustees Present: Nancy Bowren 
 Mark Calice 
 Martin F. Howrylak 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 
 Phillip L. Nelson 
 

Trustees Absent: Michael Geise 
 Thomas J. Gordon, II 
 
 

Excuse Absent Members          
Resolution # RH – 2008 – 07-06 
Moved by Bowren 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Michael Geise and Thomas J. Gordon, II be excused. 
 
Yeas:  All - 5 
Absent: Geise, Gordon 
 

Minutes             
Resolution # RH – 2008 – 07-07 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Lamerato 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the April 9, 2008 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All - 5 
Absent: Geise, Gordon 
 

Investments            
Resolution # RH – 2008 – 07-08 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Bowren 
 
RESOLVED, That the Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust Board purchase the 
following investments: 
 

Purchase:   $450,000 Ivy Managed International Opportunity Fund 
    $250,000 WR Advisors Accumulative Fund 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN & TRUST MINUTES –Draft July 9, 2008 

 

 

 2 

 
    $225,000 WR Advisors Asset Strategy Fund 
    $350,000 WR Advisors Bond A Fund 
    $300,000 WR Advisors Core Investment Fund 
    $425,000 WR Advisors Science & Technology Fund 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
Absent: Geise, Gordon 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The next meeting is October 8, 2008 at 1:00 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:45 p.m.  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JML/mr\Retirement Board\Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust\2008\7-09-08 Minutes_Draft 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 14, 2008  

 Page 1 of 5 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, July 14, 
2008 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 

Henry W. Allemon 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: W. Stan Godlewski 
    
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Godlewski 
 
Resolution #LC2008-07-014  
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Allemon 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Godlewski at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of July 14, 2008 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski 
 

 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of May 12, 2008 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2008-07-015 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Allemon 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the May 12, 2008 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 14, 2008  

 Page 2 of 5 

 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski 
 

 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Loccino, Inc. requests to transfer ownership of 2007 Resort Class C 

licensed business (MCL 436.1531(4); minimum seating 250; non-
transferable and SDM license in conjunction with Official Permit (Food),and 
new Outdoor Service Permit; located in escrow at 5600 Crooks, Suite 106, 
Troy MI 48098, Oakland County, from Palm Troy Company, LLC (an Illinois 
Limited Liability Company). {MLCC Req #441407} 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Frank Shushtari, Farshid 
Shushtari, and attorney John Carlin. 
 
It was explained to the Committee that the Shushtari brothers are partners in this 
business.  They currently own a restaurant in Farmington Hills and formerly owned 
restaurants in Rochester Hills and Sterling Heights. They have operated 
restaurants for more than 20 years.  Loccino will be a moderately priced Italian 
restaurant open for lunch and dinner.  They have made extensive interior and 
exterior modifications and hope to open for business in September.  They will 
transfer staff from their other locations and will also hire additional personnel.  All 
employees will receive TIPS/TAMS training. 
 
Sergeant Cantlon reported that his investigation revealed no disqualifying factors. 
 
Resolution #LC2008-07-016 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that Loccino, Inc. be allowed to transfer ownership of 2007 Resort 
Class C licensed business (MCL 436.1531(4); minimum seating 250; non-
transferable and SDM license in conjunction with Official Permit (Food),and new 
Outdoor Service Permit; located in escrow at 5600 Crooks, Suite 106, Troy MI 
48098, Oakland County, from Palm Troy Company, LLC (an Illinois Limited 
Liability Company). 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 14, 2008  

 Page 3 of 5 

 
 

2. Agrusa International Marketplace, LLC requests new SDM License to be 
located at 5047 Rochester, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County.  

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Steven Primavera, Anthony 
Capizzi, and Salvatore Agrusa. 
 
It was explained to the Committee that they have been operating in this location 
since June 2007.  Their main objective is to offer wine and some imported beer to 
their customers.  The wine will be contained in one area.  They are familiar with 
the required training and will comply.  The partners currently operate a market in 
Sterling Heights and have been involved in retail sales for more than 30 years. 
 
Sergeant Cantlon reported that his investigation revealed no disqualifying factors. 
 
Resolution #LC2008-07-017 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that Agrusa International Marketplace, LLC be granted a new SDM 
License to be located at 5047 Rochester, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County.  
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski 

 
 

 

 
 
3. Arbor Drugs, Inc. requests transfer location of 2008 SDD and SDM 

licensed business from 2963 E. Big Beaver to 1980 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County. 

 
 Present to answer questions from the Committee was Caren Zedro. 
 
This request is merely a transfer of the license from the Big Beaver/Dequindre 
store to the newly constructed Big Beaver/John R location.  The employees will all 
transfer and they will also hire new staff.  There is a planned opening date of 
August 10, 2008.  The store at the current location has been in operation for 25 
years and has not had a liquor violation since 2000. 
 
Sergeant Cantlon reported that his investigation revealed no disqualifying factors. 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 14, 2008  

 Page 4 of 5 

Resolution #LC2008-07-018 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that Arbor Drugs, Inc. be allowed to transfer location of 2008 SDD 
and SDM licensed business from 2963 E. Big Beaver to 1980 E. Big Beaver, Troy, 
MI 48083, Oakland County. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski 
 
 

 
 
Discussion Items 
 
1. Class C Quota Licenses 
 
Sergeant Cantlon advised the Committee that we have a quota Class C license 
available.  After discussion, it was agreed to recommend to City Council that the 
license not be issued, advertised, or made available subject to the Liquor Advisory 
Committee revisiting the matter as circumstances require. 
 
Resolution #LC2008-07-019 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the Class C 
Quota License not be issued, advertised, or made available subject to the Liquor 
Advisory Committee revisiting the matter as circumstances require. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski 
 
 
2. Proposed City Ordinance 
 
Assistant City Attorney Susan Lancaster stated that City Council revoked the 1993 
Resolution related to liquor licensing.  The City Attorney’s Office has drafted a 
proposed City Ordinance.  A draft of this Ordinance was forwarded to all members 
of the Committee in advance of this meeting.   
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 14, 2008  

 Page 5 of 5 

There was lengthy discussion on the language of the Ordinance.  Ms. Lancaster 
took note of the Committee’s comments and suggestions, and a revised draft will 
be forwarded to the members in the very near future. 
  
The meeting adjourned at 9:23 p.m. 
 
 
   
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



DATE:        July 1, 2008

TO:             Phil Nelson, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued July 2007 through June 2008

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
New 1 $476,000.00 $3,477.00
Fnd./Shell New 1 $3,500,000.00 $19,645.00
Completion (New) 2 $3,000,000.00 $19,290.00
Add/Alter 61 $6,262,397.00 $53,834.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $200.00
Wall 1 $12,000.00 $229.00
Repair 2 $153,000.00 $1,361.00

Sub Total 70 $13,403,397.00 $98,036.00

COMMERCIAL
New 8 $7,634,742.00 $49,580.00
Fnd. New 2 $1,545,000.00 $10,105.00
Fnd./Shell New 2 $818,816.00 $6,023.00
New Less Tenent 4 $382,000.00 $3,254.00
Completion (New) 1 $158,064.00 $1,258.00
Completion Less Tenant 3 $335,000.00 $2,780.00
Tenant Completion 24 $2,368,745.00 $20,594.00
Accessory Structure 1 $25,000.00 $320.00
Add/Alter 259 $38,632,588.00 $301,136.00
Wreck 7 $0.00 $710.00
Repair 1 $4,500.00 $115.00
Fire Repair 1 $25,000.00 $365.00
Kiosk 12 $0.00 $420.00

Sub Total 325 $51,929,455.00 $396,660.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 45 $8,500,060.00 $70,207.00
Add/Alter 287 $4,879,354.00 $64,320.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 66 $413,605.00 $8,054.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 37 $524,851.00 $7,270.00
Repair 23 $328,981.00 $5,074.00
Fire Repair 10 $452,751.00 $4,711.00
Wreck 17 $0.00 $880.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 3 $12,700.00 $305.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 2 $4,500.00 $130.00

Sub Total 490 $15,116,802.00 $160,951.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 20 $3,302,139.00 $27,084.00
Add/Alter 17 $86,495.00 $1,847.00
Repair 3 $77,800.00 $905.00

Sub Total 40 $3,466,434.00 $29,836.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 1 $1,200.00 $55.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 3 $53,500.00 $820.00

Sub Total 4 $54,700.00 $875.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
New 2 $14,000,000.00 $74,290.00
Add/Alter 8 $1,814,260.00 $13,483.00

Sub Total 10 $15,814,260.00 $87,773.00

MUNICIPAL
Add/Alter 3 $179,065.00 $0.00

Sub Total 3 $179,065.00 $0.00

RELIGIOUS
New 3 $3,158,000.00 $19,681.00
Add/Alter 6 $104,500.00 $1,567.00

Sub Total 9 $3,262,500.00 $21,248.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 6 $193,800.00 $2,228.00
Signs 471 $0.00 $47,869.00
Fences 160 $0.00 $2,515.00

Sub Total 637 $193,800.00 $52,612.00

TOTAL 1588 $103,420,413.00 $847,991.00

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED JULY 2007 THROUGH JUNE 2008
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 1806 $18,060.00
Cert. of Occupancy 421 $34,280.20
Plan Review 920 $57,334.50
Microfilm 398 $4,269.00
Building Permits 1588 $847,991.00
Electrical Permits 2043 $131,254.00
Heating Permits 1367 $69,190.00
Air Cond. Permits 517 $26,175.00
Refrigeration Permits 20 $1,380.00
Plumbing Permits 1175 $84,489.00
Storm Sewer Permits 148 $11,509.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 151 $5,028.00
Sewer Taps 126 $97,794.79

TOTAL 10680 $1,388,754.49

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED JULY 2007 THROUGH JUNE 2008
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 406 $2,030.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 372 $5,580.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 236 $572.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 80 $800.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 38 $570.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 35 $350.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 180 $1,800.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 29 $435.00

TOTAL 1376 $12,137.00

Page 3



DATE:          July 1, 2008     

TO:               Phil Nelson, City Manager
FROM:         Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued January through June 2008

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
New 1 $476,000.00 $3,477.00
Completion (New) 2 $3,000,000.00 $19,290.00
Add/Alter 32 $3,018,210.00 $27,475.00
Wall 1 $12,000.00 $229.00
Repair 1 $80,000.00 $705.00

Sub Total 37 $6,586,210.00 $51,176.00

COMMERCIAL
New 1 $1,213,000.00 $8,210.00
Fnd. New 1 $45,000.00 $460.00
Fnd./Shell New 1 $450,000.00 $3,295.00
Completion (New) 1 $158,064.00 $1,258.00
Tenant Completion 11 $1,533,500.00 $13,077.00
Accessory Structure 1 $25,000.00 $320.00
Add/Alter 122 $15,206,598.00 $131,748.00
Wreck 3 $0.00 $300.00
Repair 1 $4,500.00 $115.00
Fire Repair 1 $25,000.00 $365.00

Sub Total 148 $18,660,662.00 $159,323.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 23 $3,750,545.00 $33,739.00
Add/Alter 122 $1,656,402.00 $24,612.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 18 $113,638.00 $2,360.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 20 $359,302.00 $4,915.00
Repair 14 $233,493.00 $3,607.00
Fire Repair 6 $298,825.00 $3,176.00
Wreck 8 $0.00 $400.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 1 $5,800.00 $135.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 1 $2,000.00 $55.00

Sub Total 213 $6,420,005.00 $72,999.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 15 $2,711,299.00 $22,215.00
Add/Alter 3 $6,500.00 $185.00
Repair 1 $15,000.00 $265.00

Sub Total 19 $2,732,799.00 $22,665.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 5 $1,415,260.00 $10,255.00

Sub Total 5 $1,415,260.00 $10,255.00

MUNICIPAL
Add/Alter 3 $179,065.00 $0.00

Sub Total 3 $179,065.00 $0.00

RELIGIOUS
New 1 $500,000.00 $3,645.00
Add/Alter 4 $74,500.00 $1,057.00

Sub Total 5 $574,500.00 $4,702.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 3 $108,800.00 $1,198.00
Signs 199 $0.00 $20,974.00
Fences 90 $0.00 $1,405.00

Sub Total 292 $108,800.00 $23,577.00

TOTAL 722 $36,677,301.00 $344,697.00

PERMITS ISSUED JANUARY THROUGH JUNE 2008

NO. PERMIT FEE
Mul. Dwel. Insp. 781 $7,810.00
Cert. of Occupancy 202 $13,599.20
Plan Review 431 $21,333.00
Microfilm 190 $1,959.00
Building Permits 722 $344,697.00
Electrical Permits 916 $69,198.00
Heating Permits 584 $30,765.00
Air Cond. Permits 227 $11,420.00
Refrigeration Permits 15 $780.00
Plumbing Permits 579 $43,367.00
Storm Sewer Permits 86 $3,799.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 79 $2,614.00
Sewer Taps 70 $22,634.00

TOTAL 4882 $573,975.20

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED JANUARY THROUGH JUNE 2008

NO. LICENCE FEE
Mech. Contr.-Reg. 143 $715.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 229 $3,435.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 114 $450.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 44 $440.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 26 $390.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 21 $210.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 77 $770.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 23 $345.00

TOTAL 677 $6,755.00

Page 2



DATE:          July 1, 2008

TO:               Phil Nelson, City Manager
FROM:         Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:    Permits issued during the Month of June 2008

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 6 $482,600.00 $4,385.00

Sub Total 6 $482,600.00 $4,385.00

COMMERCIAL
Tenant Completion 1 $257,500.00 $2,695.00
Add/Alter 31 $4,080,797.00 $38,695.00
Kiosk 1 $0.00 $35.00

Sub Total 33 $4,338,297.00 $41,425.00

RESIDENTIAL
Add/Alter 30 $496,553.00 $6,960.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 7 $38,774.00 $815.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 8 $127,045.00 $1,860.00
Repair 2 $56,000.00 $790.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 1 $5,800.00 $135.00

Sub Total 48 $724,172.00 $10,560.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 4 $1,400,000.00 $10,380.00

Sub Total 4 $1,400,000.00 $10,380.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 2 $1,213,260.00 $8,400.00

Sub Total 2 $1,213,260.00 $8,400.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $20,000.00 $315.00

Sub Total 1 $20,000.00 $315.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 50 $0.00 $5,081.50
Fences 17 $0.00 $255.00

Sub Total 67 $0.00 $5,336.50

TOTAL 161 $8,178,329.00 $80,801.50

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



PERMITS ISSUED DURING JUNE 2008

NO. PERMIT FEE
Mul. Dwel. Insp. 165 $1,650.00
Cert. of Occupancy 40 $3,176.70
Plan Review 61 $4,216.00
Microfilm 40 $373.00
Building Permits 161 $80,801.50
Electrical Permits 202 $10,965.00
Heating Permits 98 $5,590.00
Air Cond. Permits 72 $3,460.00
Refrigeration Permits 4 $230.00
Plumbing Permits 166 $8,979.00
Storm Sewer Permits 20 $632.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 13 $392.00
Sewer Taps 8 $3,228.00

TOTAL 1050 $123,693.20

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING JUNE 2008

NO. LICENSE FEE
Mech. Contr.-Reg. 19 $95.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 32 $480.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 41 $205.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 8 $80.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 5 $75.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 8 $80.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 24 $240.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 6 $90.00

TOTAL 143 $1,345.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2007 2007 2008 2008

JANUARY 119 $7,595,008.00 71 $4,678,432.00

FEBRUARY 101 $8,056,092.00 81 $5,464,681.00

MARCH 135 $9,204,932.00 107 $3,480,525.00

APRIL 140 $4,844,929.00 141 $10,518,298.00

MAY 170 $11,201,261.00 161 $4,357,036.00

JUNE 183 $6,057,272.00 161 $8,178,329.00

JULY 134 $5,755,737.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 149 $10,867,085.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 151 $15,498,043.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 194 $13,663,761.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 136 $16,386,272.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 102 $4,572,214.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1714 $113,702,606.00 722 $36,677,301.00



Jul 1, 2008 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JUNE 2008Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter INTEGRATED DESIGN SOLUTIONS 101 W BIG BEAVER 1200  1,220,000
Commercial, Add/Alter KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC 101 W BIG BEAVER 320  250,000
Commercial, Add/Alter INTEGRATED ACOUSTICAL INC 100 W BIG BEAVER 390  137,000
Commercial, Add/Alter PREMIER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 900 WILSHIRE 255  127,000
Commercial, Add/Alter BREN-MAR CONSTRUCTION CO 2800 W BIG BEAVER P-137  106,000
Commercial, Add/Alter CHAMPAGNE BUILDING CO INC 3270 W BIG BEAVER 400  200,000
Commercial, Add/Alter STELLAR BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT INC 2105 W SOUTH BOULEVARD  1,370,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  3,410,000

Commercial, Tenant Completion RYAN CONSTRUCTION INC 6854 ROCHESTER  257,500

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  257,500

Industrial, Add/Alter AMSON DEMBS DEVELOPMENT 1699 STUTZ  375,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  375,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter BARTON MALOW COMPANY 44201 DEQUINDRE BRIDGE  1,200,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  1,200,000

Total Valuation:  5,242,500Records  11



 
 
 

 
 
 
July 7, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction  – Fleet Vehicles - June 2008  
 
 
 
Background 
 

 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 
BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented the on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through the 
City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement website used by the City for 
posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a Purchasing goal that 
one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 
 
Financial Considerations 
 

 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for one (1) 
1999 Dodge Ram pickup #229, two (2) Dodge Club cabs #211 & #216, one (1) 2001 
Chevrolet Tahoe #941, one (1) 2000 Chevrolet Camaro #921, one (1) 1998 Nissan #898, 
one (1) 2003 Ford Explorer #976, one (1) 1996 Chevrolet Lumina #154, one (1) 2000 
Chevrolet Cargo van #255, and two (2) Ford Crown Victoria #964 & #971 that were 
auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, from May 28, 2008 
through, June  23, 2008.   

 
 

 
1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



 
 
July 7, 2008 
 
To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction – Fleet Vehicles - June 2008  
         
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS   SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME 

(2) Ford Vic, (1) Dodge Ram Pick-up, (1) GMC Cargo van 
(1) Chevy Camaro, (1) Nissan, (1) Ford Explorer, (2) Dodge  
Ram Club Cabs, (1) Chevy Tahoe & (1) Chevy Lumina 

   
*$    51,717.28 

 

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:   *  $51,717.28  
                                              *(Includes 5% Buyer’s Premium)    

 FEES:   
5% MITN Auction Fee – Fleet Vehicles   $     (2,462.73)   
Feature Item $5.00 per vehicle – (18 Vehicles x $5.00)*   $         (90.00)   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:    ($2,552.73)  
Sales Tax (None on Vehicles):             0.00   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:         $  00.00  
   $ 49,164.55
*18 Vehicles were listed, only 11 were sold.  The remaining vehicles will be posted to the MITN website at a later date. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the 

surplus auction process. (Goal II).  
 
Options 
 
 To report final results of June 2008 auctions to City management. 

 
 No action required 

 
 
 
G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line–June 2008  

2 of 2 







campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-04a



campbellld
Text Box
J-05





































 

 
 
July 2, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ 

Economic Development Services 
    Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director   
 
SUBJECT: PY 2008 Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Funds 
 
Background: 
 
 The Community and Home Improvement Division of Oakland County has 

notified the City of Troy, effective June 30, 2008, that we may now obligate 
and expend program year 2008 Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Funds as follows: 

 
o Flood Drain Improvements: $ 84,811.00 
o Home Chore Program  $ 71,010.00 
o Administration:   $   2,500.00 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The City of Troy’s PY 2008 CDBG allocation is $158,321.00  

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 07.21.08 – CDBG PY 2008 funds 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 
 
 
To:  The Mayor & City Council 
From: Phil Nelson, City Manager 
Subject: CNNMoney.com Designation of America’s Best Cities 
Date:  June 17, 2008 
 
I know that you have seen a copy of the attached articles regarding Troy’s 
designation as one of CNN & Money Magazines best small cities in which to live, 
but I felt it important to follow up on what the designation might mean, and what 
staff feels are imperatives to keep momentum for the future. 
 
One of the articles points out that “while the city lacks a significant downtown, it 
thrives around its green space, featuring 900 acres of parkland, as well as 
museums, theaters and parks”.  This statement as well as the fact that Troy 
features some of the best schools, low taxes and safe streets goes a long way in 
marketing the City as the place to be in the future.   
 
The Budgeting for Outcomes budget preparation format, and using the 
Downtown Development Authority to start the process of building a “significant 
downtown”, should help to keep Troy as one of America’s most livable cities.  
Staff will also utilize Council direction with regard to weighting outputs to 
appropriation of resources to Council priorities.  Staff will also tie other policy 
related documents such as the Troy Futures Report and the Comprehensive 
Plan to keep improving the city’s role in building a complete community. 
  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07














	AGENDA: July 21, 2008
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Legislative Update from State Representative Marty Knollenberg


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – EcoMotors, 1055 West Square Lake
	C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to EcoMotors, 1055 West Square Lake

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Building Demolition

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None b) City Council Appointments: Building Code Board of Appeals and Library Advisory Board
	E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations: None (b) City Council Nominations:   Historic District Commission; Historic District Study Committee; Historical Commission; Liquor Advisory Committee; and Parks and R...
	E-3 Fire Station 2 Kitchen Renovation
	E-4 Request to Set Dates for the Annual Performance Evaluations of the (a) City Manager and (b) City Attorney in Closed Session
	E-5 Request for Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offer to Purchase Property for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5, Parcel #43 – Sidwell #88-20-02-279-002 and Request for Authorization to Institute Court...
	E-6 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 20 of Troy City Code – Financing of Water and Sewer Benefit Fees
	E-7 Conservation Easement to the State of Michigan – Department of Environmental Quality in Connection with Sylvan Glen Golf Course and Section 4 Weir Projects
	E-8 Charter Revision Committee Recommendation of Proposed Ballot Language to the Citizen Petition Initiated Charter Amendment Proposal – Section 9.16.5 and Proposed Amendment to Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elective Office
	E-9 Verizon’s Request for Amendment to Lease – Sylvan Glen Communications Tower

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted
	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirts
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – General Consulting Engineering Services

	F-5 Contract Extension – Banking Services
	F-6 Request for Approval to Purchase Property from the Oakland County Drain Commission – King Drain District, Sidwell #88-20-04-476-011 and -012
	F-7 Application for New SDM License, Agrusa International Marketplace, LLC – 5047 Rochester Road
	F-8 Application for New Outdoor Service Permit, Transfer of Class C Resort and SDM License, Loccino, Inc. – 5600 Crooks Road, Suite 106
	F-9 Application for Location Transfer of SDD and SDM License, Arbor Drugs, Inc. – 1980 E. Big Beaver Road
	F-10 Schedule a Public Hearing for the Purpose of Receiving Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	G-2 Memorandums:
	Proposed New Liquor License Ordinance – August 11, 2008


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 10, 2008
	Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Special/Final – March 20, 2008
	Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Special/Final – March 31, 2008
	Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – April 9, 2008
	Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – April 15, 2008
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – May 12, 2008
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – June 3, 2008
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 4, 2008
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – June 17, 2008
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 17, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 24, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 24, 2008
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – July 2, 2008
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – July 9, 2008
	Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Draft – July 9, 2008
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – July 14, 2008

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued July 2007 through June 2008
	Building Department – Permits Issued January through June 2008
	Building Department – Permits Issued during the Month of June 2008
	Purchasing Departments – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction – Fleet Vehicles – June 2008

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Adult Services Librarian Barbara Williams Regarding the Service Received from Laura Campbell

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	City of Royal Oak – Resolution Requesting the Federal Legislature to Increase the Formula for Community Development Block Grant Funding

	J-5  Report from Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company – City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters – 28th Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2007
	J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Program Year 2008 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds
	J-7  Communication from City Manager Phillip Nelson Regarding CNNMoney.com Designation of America’s Best Cities

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT

	Reset: 
	Check Box4: 
	0: 
	0: no

	1: 
	0: Yes

	2: 
	0: no

	3: 
	0: no

	4: 
	0: no


	Text1: 
	0: 0
	1: 2614300
	2: 2614300

	Check Box5: Yes
	Text2: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 


	Check Box6: no
	Check Box7: no
	Check Box8: no
	Check Box9: no
	Check Box10: no
	Check Box11: no
	Check Box12: no
	Check Box13: no
	Check Box14: no
	Check Box15: no
	official: 
	name: Assessor, City of Troy



